
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Thursday 19 November 2020 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Friday 27 November 2020, 1.30 pm 
 

Zoom Virtual Meeting 
 

Membership: 
  
Councillor Michael Heaslip (Chair) Councillor Iain Greaney (Co-Chair) 
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Carmel Bell 
Councillor John Crouch Councillor Allan Daniels 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Daniel Horsley 
Councillor Adrian Kirkbride Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes 
Councillor Paul Scott  
 

This meeting will be broadcast live on the Allerdale Borough Council YouTube™ Channel.  
 

If you have any questions or queries contact Ian Hinde on 01900 702544. 

 

Agenda 
 
1. Minutes  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 

 To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 16 October 2020. 
  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Declaration of Interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda, in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 

  

4. Questions   
 



 To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting. 

  

5. Public Participation   
 

 To hear representations from members of the public on items which appear on 
the agenda – submitted in writing or by electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 
working days before the meeting. 

  

6. Draft Waste and Recycling Policy   
 

 Presentation outlining the rationale for and key elements of this policy 
  

7. Local Government Reorganisation   
 

 Consideration of the decision taken by the Executive on 25 November 2020 
  

8. Quarter 2 Performance Report 2020/21  (Pages 9 - 36) 
 

9. Quarter 2 Finance Report & Revised Budget 2020-21  (Pages 37 - 102) 
 

10. Strategic Commissioning and Procurement Strategy action plan  (Pages 
103 - 116) 

 

11. Forward Plan  (Pages 117 - 130) 
 

12. Work Programme 2020/21  (Pages 131 - 132) 
 

13. Task and Finish Group Updates  (Pages 133 - 154) 
 

  Verbal update from the Budget and the Pandemic Response Task and Finish 
Groups 

 

 Consideration of the report of the Future Waste Task and Finish Group 
 

The Chair will move:   
 

That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they may 
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of part 1 
of Schedule 12A of the Act. 

 

 Consideration of the report of the Procurement Task and Finish Group 
  

 

 
 
Chief Executive 
 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 

 
Friday 15 January 2021, 1.30 pm 



Zoom Virtual Meeting 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



At a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on Zoom on Friday 16 
October 2020 at 1.30 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Iain Greaney (Co-Chair) Councillor Michael Heaslip (Co-Chair) 
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Allan Daniels 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes 
Councillor Paul Scott Councillor Andrew Semple 
 
Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Carmel Bell, Councillor John 
Crouch, Councillor Joe Holliday, Councillor Daniel Horsley and Councillor Adrian 
Kirkbride 
 
Staff Present 
 
A FitzGerald, N Hardy, I Hinde, J Irving, L Jardine, K Kerrigan and L Tomlinson 
 
 
 
114. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 28 August 2020 were signed as a correct 
record. 
 

115. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

116. Questions  
 
None received 
 

117. Public Participation  
 
None received 
 

118. Quarter 1 Performance Report 2020/21  
 
The Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information) introduced the 
Quarter 1 performance report for 2020/21 and provided an overview of the 
report including key projects and activities, corporate KPIs and strategic risks 
which are based on the interim delivery plan. 
 
Members were informed that most of the activities/projects were performing as 
expected. The exception as per previous reports being delays with the Arcus 
project, this is due to resource and technical issues. In terms of KPIs, due to the 
current pandemic some KPIs have a ‘no fixed target figure’. The KPI for valid 
and missed bin collections was showing as Red ‘RAG Status’, however officers 
provided context to this, advising that the bin collection rate for Q1 was 99.90%. 
The ‘percentage of Council spend (less than £50k) on goods and services with 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



local suppliers’ was also shown as below performance target which has been 
influenced with the need purchase specialist equipment due to the pandemic. 
 
Members raised questions in relation to vulnerable groups and digital services, 
the officer explained that although the future model is targeted towards online 
services, the council acknowledges the need to provide services for all. 
 
Performance Management Reporting was debated, and concerns were raised 
that the reports provided to the Overview and Scrutiny did not show outcomes 
and outputs. The Head of Policy, Strategy and Performance explained to the 
committee that a newly appointed Project Officer would work with the committee 
to review the Performance Management Framework.  
 
Members then asked questions in relation to the impacts of Covid-19, paying 
Cumbrian businesses, NNDR and expressed concerns with the increasing costs 
and delayed implementation of the Arcus project. An update on the Arcus 
project will be provided to members and officers clarified that following report 
publication, requests for further information on specific items can be 
accommodated in advance of committee meetings. 
 
Debate then ensued in relation to cleaner, greener Allerdale, the Reedlands 
Road project and the financial cost of the Allerdale Waste Services contract. 
 
Members noted the contents of the report. 
 

119. Developing a Resilient Communities strategy  
 
The Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information) presented the 
report to members to update members on progress and to seek views from the 
committee on strategy content. 
 
Members were advised of what is meant by resilience and community 
resilience, specifically how communities adapt both to emergency scenarios 
and general ongoing situations. 
 
The officer went on to explain the current situation and how the pandemic has 
further impacted inequality and health outcomes. Positives from the pandemic 
however were highlighted, in particular the resilience shown within the 
communities and the support provided to vulnerable groups, and those isolating 
or shielding. 
 
The initial areas for focus were outlined to members and asked for thoughts, 
opinions and suggestions. Focus areas are; 

 Engaging, involving, collaborating and empowering  

 Promoting healthy, active lifestyles  

 Addressing community safety issues  

 Addressing inequalities and hardship 
 
Debate ensued and members made suggestions which should be 
acknowledged within the strategy, including tackling loneliness, community 
empowerment and maximising the use of public open spaces. It was also 

Page 6



commented that the Council should be reviewing what it can do to facilitate and 
influence community resilience. 
 

120. Developing an Economic Growth strategy  
 
The Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance presented the report to 
members and to provide an update on the development an economic recovery 
and growth plan for the Council. 
 
Following a procurement exercise, Mott McDonald were commissioned by the 
Council in March 2020 to; 

 Update the baseline economic analysis of the local economy in Allerdale  

 Develop a new economic growth plan  

 Develop a Workington Town Investment Plan, (to the point of 
submission) 

 
Members were advised that the report contained the challenges facing the 
Council, the key themes, assets and opportunities and that since the Covid 19 
pandemic, focus has also turned to recovery plans. 
 
Members were advised as community advocates to contribute to the economic 
growth plan and that the report will be brought back to Overview and Scrutiny 
early 2021. 
 
The Programme Director for Workington then provided an update on the 
Workington Town Investment Plan. The proposal will be submitted to 
government at the end of October 2020. The public engagement to the 
consultation was positive with over 100 project ideas submitted which was 
above the national average. In addition to public consultation, in depth 
interviews were undertaken with key partners and stakeholders. Following 
consultations, the ‘Town Deal’ board performed a sifting exercise of potential 
projects using its agreed parameters and within the government intervention 
framework. This concluded with the identification of six key priority areas which 
have been presented again for public consultation. This consultation has since 
received 500 responses, the overwhelming majority of which were positive.  
 
Members were then advised of the next steps including future consultations and 
the development of detailed business cases. 
 
Questions were asked of the officers in relation to job retention and creation, 
and debate ensued in relation to the future skills gap in Allerdale. 
 
Debate then ensued in relation to the nuclear sector and future green, 
sustainable employment.  
 
Members noted the contents of the report. 
 

121. Task and Finish Group Updates  
 
The Chair provided an overview of the ‘Response to the Pandemic’ Task and 
that the initial assessment has been undertaken. Cllr Heaslip as Chair of this 
Task and Finish Group then expressed concerns in relation to the national test 

Page 7



and trace regime, and the increased burden local authority Environmental 
Health Teams. 
 
Members were then advised that the Procurement Task and Finish Group 
report is close to completion and should be presented at the next meeting of the 
committee, whilst the future waste task and finish group is in at first draft stage. 
 

122. Forward Plan  
 
Members discussed the Reedlands Road development, officers explained that 
the development was no longer feasible within the current budget. Following 
detailed site investigations, it was discovered that additional extensive work 
would be required as ground conditions were worse than indicated on the initial 
desktop study. 
 
Members noted the contents of the Forward Plan 
 

123. Work Programme 2020/21  
 
Debate ensued in relation to the ‘Development of a new Housing Strategy’ 
which will be discussed by the committee in early 2021 and the relevance of the 
new Government White Paper. Officers confirmed to members that an overview 
of the White Paper will be provided to members in a briefing session.  
 
Affordable housing and second homes were then debated, with members 
expressing concerns over the amount of holiday homes in the rural areas. 
 
To support officers and to engage members, a series of policy workshops will 
be arranged. 
 
Members then debated and agreed to set up a Budget Task and Finish Group. 
 
Members noted the contents of the Work Programme 2020/21. 
 

The meeting closed at 3.40 pm 
 

Page 8



 

 

Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Executive – 25 November 2020 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 November 2020 

 

Quarter 2 Performance Report 2020/21
 

Portfolio holder Councillor Mike Johnson – Deputy Leader 

Councillor Marion Fitzgerald - Policy, 

Governance and People Resources Portfolio 

Report from Alex FitzGerald, Policy Manager (Corporate, 
Performance and Information) 

Wards affected   All 

Is this a key decision  No 
 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 Sets out the Council’s performance at the end of Quarter 2 2020/21 as measured 
by key projects/activities and KPIs set out in the Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21. 

 

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 That Members note the information contained within the report with a view to 
seeking continuous improvement in performance. 

 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 
3.1 The Council’s Corporate Performance Management Framework has been aligned 

with the Council Strategy 2020-2030 through the Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21 
(agreed by Executive in June 2020).  The Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21 sets out a 
series of actions and indicators relating to how the Council will deliver against the 
six priority themes in the Council Strategy 2020-2030 over the coming year. 

3.2 The Quarter 2 Corporate Performance Report for 2020/21 covers the period from 1 
July to 30 September 2020 and focuses on the key actions and performance 
indicators set out in the Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21.   

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



 

 

3.3 In line with the Council’s Performance Management Framework the Executive and 
Overview and Scrutiny receive quarterly performance reports based on the Council 
Strategy. 

4.0  Corporate Performance  

 
4.1 The Corporate Performance Report is attached as Appendix A and contains: 

 Detail of progress on key actions  

 Detail of performance on key performance indicators  

4.2 The Corporate Performance Report is set out following the six priority themes in the 
Council Strategy 2020-2030: 

 A financially secure council 

 A cleaner, greener Allerdale 

 Invest to grow 

 Outstanding local services 

 Thriving towns and villages 

 Resilient communities 

4.3 The report at Appendix A shows that despite the continuing challenging times 
progress on activities is good overall, with 32 of the 39 key actions being green and 
6 amber.  15 of the 25 indicators attributed a RAG rating were green (on target), 9 
amber (close to target) and 1 red (off target).    Full details are given in the report at 
Appendix A.  

 

5.0  Delivery arrangements 

 
5.1 Not applicable to this report. 

6.0 Implications and Impact 

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

This is a performance report on delivery against the Council’s priorities as set out in 
the Council Strategy 2020-2030. 

6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

 There are no financial implications directly associated with this report. 

6.3 Legal and governance implications  

 There are no legal or governance implications directly associated with this report. 

6.4 Risk analysis 

  

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Mitigated 
score 

Indicators and 
performance 

Loss of focus on 
priorities as set out in 

Regular performance 
monitoring. 

Low 

Page 10



 

 

measures are not 
monitored 
effectively 

the Council Strategy so 
ambitions not 
achieved. 
Corrective action is not 
identified early. 

Any 
recommendations for 
corrective action are 
followed up. 

 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

Projects within the priority area of ‘Outstanding local services’ in the Council 
Strategy relate specifically to customer satisfaction and service.   

6.6 Equality impacts 

 Equality impacts are considered in the development of individual projects and 
programmes.  There are no negative equality impacts from reporting performance. 

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

There are no health and safety implications directly associated with this report. 

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

The performance report shows progress against activities intended to improve 
health, wellbeing and community safety outcomes. 

6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

The performance report shows progress against activities intended to improve 
environmental and sustainability outcomes. 

6.10 Other significant implications 

None. 
 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

Appendix A Q2 Performance Report 2020-21 

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

Council Strategy 2020-2030 https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/about-
council/council-strategy-2020-2030/ 
 

Council Strategy Interim Delivery 
Plan 2020/21 

https://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.
aspx?CId=11&MId=4767 
 

 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Alex FitzGerald 

Page 11

https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/about-council/council-strategy-2020-2030/
https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/about-council/council-strategy-2020-2030/
https://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=11&MId=4767
https://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=11&MId=4767


 

 

Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information) 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk 
01900 702719  

Page 12



 

1 

 

Corporate performance report 
 

Quarter 2 2020/21  
 
This performance report summarises our performance during the second quarter of 2020/21 
covering the period from 1 July to 30 September 2020.  
 
 

Performance overview 
 
The table below summarises the Quarter 2 position on the projects/activities and performance 
indicators set out in our Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21. 
 
Summary of Quarter 2 
position 

Total Green 
 
 

Amber Red Blue No fixed 
target 
figure1 

No new 
data 

available2 

Projects/activities 39 32 6 0 1 n/a n/a 

KPIs  40 15 9 1 n/a 13 5 

 

Projects/activities:  

There are 39 projects/activities set out in the Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21 of which for Q2: 

 84% are green (on track) 

 15% are amber 

 0% are red 
 
The majority of projects and activities set out in the Interim Delivery Plan are on track, with 
notable achievements including the significant work of teams across the organisation to keep 
day to day services running as well as undertaking considerable additional work relating the 
pandemic situation such as paying out over 3500 grants to businesses; undertaking advisory 
and enforcement work around safe practices in local businesses; continued successful delivery 
with the county council of the local test and trace system; and working with the visitor sector to 
develop recovery plans.  The Housing Options team have successfully secured additional 
revenue funding for rough sleepers of £82k from a Next Steps Accommodation Programme bid, 
but are still waiting to hear about the capital side of the bid which would secure additional 
funding to house rough sleepers.    
 
Alongside this our key regeneration schemes in Workington and Maryport have moved forward 
with further funding awarded to the HAZ Scheme in Maryport and Executive approving the 
Workington Town Investment Plan for submission to Government by the end of October.  There 
has also been good progress made on green infrastructure and biodiversity projects in our 

                                                           
1 No fixed target figure. The pandemic situation has had a significant impact on a number of council 

services making target setting in some cases very difficult. In these cases we are not attributing a red, 
amber or green performance rating but will be tracking trends in performance and comparing to previous 
years where appropriate rather than measuring against a fixed target figure. 
2 No new data available at the time of reporting.  Some of these measures are only reported once a 
year, two have a time lag on the data. The ongoing pandemic situation has also meant that there is no data 
available for certain indicators for Q1 – in particular for leisure centre usage as centres remained closed 
until the end of July 2020. 

Page 13



 

2 

 

communities and Q2 saw the successful reopening of two of our leisure centres as part of the 
Phase 1 reopening plans.  

 
Six projects/activities have seen some delays or issues, with details given in the report.    
 
The Reedlands Road project has been closed.  Following a full options appraisal Executive 
considered a report outlining the significant increase in capital costs meaning that the project 
was forecast to have a net negative impact on the Council's annual revenue budget. Based on 
this Executive have agreed to discontinue the project.   
 

Key performance indicators: 

There are 25 performance indicators attributed a RAG rating reporting in Q2 of which: 

 60% were green (on or better than target) 

 36% were amber (close to target) 

 4% were red (off target) 
 
There is one indicator reporting as off target (red) for Q2.  The percentage of successful 
homeless preventions and relief outcomes was 43% for Q2 which is below the target of 50% and 
a drop in performance since Q1.  This is a consequence of pandemic related activities to take 
rough sleepers off of the streets and into temporary accommodation. The numbers involved and 
their often complex support needs have meant that moving people on into more permanent 
accommodation has impacted this indicator. Additional funding is being sought through the Next 
Steps programme to provide solutions for this client group. 
 
The latest available data for residual household waste collected per household is for Q1 as there 
is a time lag in verifying this data.  The Q1 performance was below target at 147kg against a 
target of 129kg. The temporary suspension of garden waste in Q1 allowed AWS management 
team and collection crews to focus on collecting the extra refuse that had developed from most 
residents being under lockdown at home. To protect public health during the lockdown the 
normal practice of not collecting excess waste placed alongside bins was ignored, this excess 
waste collected has added to our kilograms per household. 
 
Of the eight indicators with no fixed target figures that reported in Q2, six showed a static or 
improving trend including incidents of fly tipping.  Those with a worsening trend included the 
percentage of self-serve digital transactions which showed a fall from Q1 to Q2 as increasing 
volumes of telephone calls to the Customer Contact Centre were seen in Q2 to report issues or 
request a service. 
 
 

Definitions 

Projects/activities: 

G Everything is on target / satisfactory progress is being made / no action required 

A 
There are some concerns over achieving deadlines or outputs  / there are issues to rectify, but 
plans are in place to get the project back on track 

R 
There are significant concerns over achieving outputs / there is serious slippage in the timetable / 
there are major issues to rectify 

B Project closed 

Page 14



 

3 

 

 

Key performance indicators: 

G On, or better than, target 


 Improving trend 

A 
Close to target (up to 10% variance) - some action may 
be required to improve performance 



 No change  

R 
Off target (>10% variance) – action required to improve 
performance 



 Getting worse 

Note: Trend is compared to previous quarter or in a few cases same quarter in the previous year. 

Page 15



 

4 

 

A financially secure council 
Our objectives: Address the projected budget gap    Become self-sufficient by 2030    Become more commercial    Become more 

efficient and productive 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status 

Q2 
RAG 
status
  

Q2 commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

Analyse actual and projected financial 
impacts of Covid-19 crisis and 
recovery phase and build into revised 
budget decisions for 2020/21 and 
medium term financial plan 

by March 
2021 

Finance and 
Property 

G G 

The financial position continues to be monitored monthly and 
Executive have been presented with the finance report for 
April to July.  Monthly returns have been submitted to MHCLG 
to set out the actual and forecast impacts.   

Develop and deliver service specific 
recovery plans for our income 
generating services (in particular trade 
waste, estates, and car parking) 

from May 
2020 

Finance and 
Property 

G G 

In July the government announced an income guarantee 
scheme, under which authorities will be compensated for 75% 
of losses of income from sales, fees and charges (for example 
car parking charges) - arising as a result of Covid-19 and the 
consequent reductions in economic activity. The first return 
has been submitted for this compensation.  Commercial 
revenues (e.g. rental incomes) are not considered relevant 
losses and will not be compensated for under this scheme. 

Review the Council’s Target Operating 
Model and working practices as part of 
our Recovery Strategy  

from June 
2020 

Programmes 
and Projects 

G G 

Continued support for remote working in almost all services 
including providing appropriate equipment, devices and 
increased use of cloud-based technology. The Programme 
Office has successfully attracted additional resources through 
internal secondments and recruitment of project managers to 
deliver a range of projects to modernise our approach to 
recruitment and development of staff, increase the flexibility of 
our workforce so that we can respond better to changing 
priorities and to develop a plan for our offices and other 
properties. 

Continue a programme of service 
reviews across the council looking at 
cost, quality and delivery mechanisms 

from June 
2020 

Programmes 
and Projects 

G G 

Building on work already completed, we have recruited a 
Performance and Insight Project Manager to conduct detailed 
reviews of services and then use that data and evidence to 
help improve work processes and develop a meaningful 

P
age 16



 

5 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status 

Q2 
RAG 
status
  

Q2 commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

(building in learning from operating during 
the pandemic)  

performance management framework to measure our 
effectiveness. Initial work will focus on waste services, parking 
and community services. 

  

Key performance indicators 
2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Q2 
actual 

Trend Target 
2020/21 

Progress and management action (where 
red/amber) 

% of council income that is from grants, 
CTax, NNDR, fees and charges 
(including commercial income streams)  

CTx,NNDR 
49%; Fees, 

charges 
etc.40%; Gov 
grants 11% 

 
Reported annually  

Reduce 
reliance on 
grants over 
longer term 

We are likely to see the effect of the pandemic in these 
figures at the end of the year, as fees, charges and 
commercial income streams have all been hit hard by the 
pandemic.  

Overall % of budget coming from 
balances 

Net charge to GF 
balances £966k 
against revenue 

expenditure 
£15,654k 

 
Reported annually 

Reduce 
over longer 

term 

The 2020/21 budget as agreed in March 2020 did not 
identify any revenue budget to come from balances.  
However, the pandemic situation has had budgetary 
impacts.   A further report on the budgetary impacts of 
the pandemic was considered by Executive in 
September. 

Level of forecast budget gap 

£2.2m 
2021/22 
£2.1m 

2022/23 

 
Reported annually 

Reduce 
over longer 

term 

The current MTFP is being reviewed in detail to assess 
which of the assumptions made for 2021 and beyond will 
need to be amended in light of Covid-19 and the 
associated government announcements about the 
postponement of the expected Spending Review and 
reform to the Business Rates System. The updated 
MTFP will go to Executive in November. 

% of invoiced debt collected within 30 
days of invoicing 

58% 55% 54%  Increase  
Percentage is consistent both with previous months and 
previous quarters. 

% of debt outstanding for over 90 days 29% 28% 29%  Reduce  
The quarterly percentage of debts over 90 days is 
consistent with the previous quarter.  

NNDR collection rate 98.48% 29.47% 55.51%  97.70% 
The collection rate has been affected by the pandemic 
situation and recovery action being suspended for the 
first two quarters of the financial year.  

P
age 17



 

6 

 

Council Tax collection rate 97.38% 28.85% 56.77%  97.20% 
The collection rate has been affected by the pandemic 
situation and recovery action being suspended for the 
first two quarters of the financial year. 

Occupancy rates of Council’s property 
portfolio 

91% 91% 94%  90%  

 
  

P
age 18



 

7 

 

A cleaner, greener Allerdale  
Our objectives: Make sure our neighbourhoods are clean and tidy    Reduce waste and increase recycling    Improve and protect our 

open spaces and green infrastructure    Ensure environmental sustainability is at the heart of our policies    Use our assets to encourage 

green technology 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q2 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Tackle and reduce fly tipping through 
enforcement action and educational 
activity focusing resources on known 
hotspots. 

from March 
2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

G G 
Joint patrols with local PCSOs in place for education and 
enforcement activity. Regular press releases in relation to 
FPNs issued and as a directive control to reduce this activity. 

Carry out recycling initiatives and 
educational campaigns to reduce waste  

by March 
2021 

Finance and 
Property  

G G 

The latter stages of Q2 have seen some positive work begin 
with a reduced set of restrictions at HWRC's and a new 
initiative led by the climate change group and the media team. 
During this period CCC began to allow single axle trailers 
access to the HWRC sites and the permit system was re-
instated. Subject to criteria being met the climate change 
group have facilitated a potential trial for Tetra Pak bring banks 
to be installed at Otley Road Keswick and the media team are 
reviewing the ABC recycling web pages. 

Progress strategic green infrastructure 
and biodiversity projects and 
encourage environmental volunteering: 
Water Environment Grant projects at 
Siddick Pond; improvements to land at 
Northside near Siddick Pond; Workington 
Nature Partnership projects; development 
of 'Get Cumbria Buzzing' sites (12 sites) 

Northside 
by 2021 
Other 
projects by 
2022 

Finance and 
Property 

G G 

SIDDICK POND WATER ENVIRONMENT GRANT: Good 
progress is being made and several projects are well 
underway and in some cases nearing completion including 
reed bed management, control of invasive species, water 
quality and biodiversity survey, and the design of a new 
wetland area. A planning application for the new wetland 
habitat area, comprising a mosaic of scrapes, island and 
channels, will be submitted before Xmas. 2. NORTHSIDE 
NON-STATUTORY ALLOTMENTS /COMMUNITY PLOTS: A 
Change of Use planning application has been submitted for 
the northern section of the site, with a view to the land being 
cleared and reinstated as green space to integrate with 

P
age 19



 

8 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q2 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Siddick Pond Nature Reserve.  3. GET CUMBRIA BUZZING: 
Excellent progress continues to be made on our "Get Cumbria 
Buzzing" sites, and we have now undertaken work on eight of 
the twelve sites that we are responsible for delivering. This has 
included the creation of extensive new pollinator-friendly 
habitat at Shore Road, Derwent Howe, Oldside and Maryport 
Coastal Park, while existing meadows at Siddick Pond and 
Harrington Nature Reserves have been enhanced with 
additional wildflower planting. The project continues to provide 
opportunities for volunteers and schools to participate. 

Develop and start delivery of a Climate 
Change Action Plan 

Developed 
by Sept 
2020 

Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance 

G G 

First meeting of the group held early October. Agreed to 
progress carbon audit as the first major action. Action plan to 
be reviewed at next meetings (early and late November) as 
several aspects will have changed as a result of the pandemic 
and likely future ways of working and delivering services.  

  

 

Key performance indicators 
2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Q2 
actual 

Trend Target  
Q2 

Progress and management action (where red/amber) 

Number of fly tipping incidents  689 328 283  Reduce 
An improvement since the last quarter, but rates are still 
significantly higher than last year (Q2 2019/20 – 154). 

Number of Fixed Penalty Notices 
issued (fly tipping) 

9 0 4  Increase 

Challenges posed by the pandemic have led to detailed risk 
assessments having to be carried out to ensure safety of 
enforcement officers, but officers are out patrolling and 
investigating now with FPNs issued in Q2.  

% of household waste sent for reuse, 
recycling and composting 

33.7% 37.7% 
Data not 

yet 
available 

 41.5% 

Performance in Q1 was lower in Q1 2020/21 than the previous 
two years due to the temporary suspension of garden waste 
services. The decision was taken by the council to suspend 
the garden waste service to allow a more guaranteed and 
continuous residual refuse service from the start of the 

P
age 20



 

9 

 

contract with AWS which coincided with the Covid-19 
pandemic and the national lockdown. Although some 
improved tonnages were seen in the latter stages of Q1 the 
delayed start-up of the garden waste collection services has 
had a detrimental effect on the recycling rate. In addition the 
increased tonnages of residual refuse created from families 
being locked down at home further supresses this recycling 
rate. 

Residual waste per household (kgs) 522.09 147.81 
Data not 

yet 
available 

 129kg 

The temporary suspension of garden waste allowed AWS 
management team and collection crews to focus on collecting 
the extra refuse that was put out which had resulted from most 
residents being under lockdown at home. To protect public 
health during the lockdown the normal practice of not 
collecting excess waste left alongside bins was ignored, this 
excess waste collected has added to our kilograms per home 
figure. 

% of bins collected on scheduled 
collection day 

New 99.90% 99.91%  99.92% 
The collection rate has improved slightly between Q1 and Q2 
and is only very slightly off target. 

 

 

 

P
age 21



 

10 

 

Invest to grow  
Our objectives:  Use our asset portfolio to create new or different opportunities    Work with partners on key economic sites and 

opportunities    Utilise the Allerdale Investment Partnership, the Local Enterprise Partnership and Britain’s Energy Coast to stimulate 

growth     Develop a housing company to provide the right homes in the right places at the right price   

 Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q2 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Develop plans for economic recovery 
including a new Economic Growth 
Strategy for Allerdale to guide economic 
development activity to ambitiously rethink 
and rebuild the local economy over the 
longer term 

 
by Oct 2020 

Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance 

G A 

There has been a requirement to undertake some additional 
activity to further the Workington Town investment Plan in 
time for submission. This has meant that some timescales on 
the economic strategy have slipped and further discussions 
about resources will need to take place. Regular meetings 
are taking place with the consultant team. 

Deliver the national programmes of 
support grants to small businesses, 
including developing and delivering any 
discretionary schemes to support local 
businesses  

from April 
2020 

Customer 
Operations 

G G 

As per government instructions the Small Business, Retail 
Hospitality and Leisure, and Local Authority Discretionary 
Grant Funds for businesses closed to applications on 28 
August with all payments processed by 30 September.  In 
total we paid out £36.9m to 3,368 businesses under the 
SBGF and RHLGF, representing 95% of the allocation from 
Government.  In addition, the Council helped 236 businesses 
through the smaller Discretionary Business Grants Scheme 
with grants totalling £1.75m, representing 89% of the 
allocation.  Details of a new local lockdown business grants 
scheme were released by the government at the end of 
September. 

Develop the Housing Company: existing 
properties let and converted (7 properties); 
develop Phase 2 Programme for future 
years 

 
by 2021  
 

Programme 
Director 
(Maryport) 

G G 

Work to develop the councils own housing company 
continues with planning permission for the Otley Road 
scheme now granted. The project remains on target and will 
see the unoccupied building converted into 4 x 1 bed units for 
local occupiers and key workers. Works due to commence in 
Nov with a completion date of April.    

P
age 22



 

11 

 

 Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q2 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Progress investment and regeneration 
schemes including: 

Review viability options for delivery of new 
business units at Reedlands Road 

by Sept 
2020 
 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

A B 

Following ground investigation works underlying mine-
workings, buried obstructions and extremely poor ground 
conditions have been identified on site, and as such forecast 
project costs have increased significantly. The Programmes 
and Project Team have undertaken a full options analysis 
and considered rental income projections against the 
increase in capital costs.  The significant increase in capital 
costs means that the project is now forecast to have a net 
negative impact on the Council's annual revenue budget. 
Based on the original capital costs the project would have 
been cost-neutral for the Council. At the Executive meeting 
on 14 October it was agreed that the project should be 
discontinued. 

Development of Lillyhall North to provide 
business accommodation (also a 
commercial opportunity for the Council)  

by March 
2021 
 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

G G 

Cumbria LEP has confirmed a funding award of £1,789,961 
Local Growth Fund support to progress the development of 
enabling infrastructure by March 2021. CLEP has also 
confirmed an allocation of £5.5m, subject to approval of a Full 
Business Case, for the development of a vertical farming 
facility at Lillyhall North. A dedicated project team has been 
established to co-ordinate the delivery of these projects and a 
planning application submission for the infrastructure 
development is anticipated in November. 

Progress discussions around Lower 
Derwent Valley Regeneration Scheme 
(including a community sports village) 

from June 
2020 
 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

G G 

A new Project Board for the Sports Village project has been 
established with Workington Town and Workington Reds 
taking a lead role in developing the project with support from 
the Council. The Workington Town Deal Board has 
recommended inclusion of the Sports Village as a priority 
project within the Workington Town Investment Plan for which 
funding is sought through the Town Deal.   

P
age 23



 

12 

 

 Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q2 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Development of other investment and 
regeneration opportunities with 
development partners and the Allerdale 
Investment Partnership as a priority. 

from June 
2020 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

G G 

Proposals for a number of regeneration proposals are 
included within the Town Investment Plan for Workington and 
discussions are ongoing as to how the AIP can support the 
delivery of these and other projects. Work is ongoing to 
develop opportunities arising from the vertical farm proposal 
at Lillyhall.  

  

Key performance indicators 
2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Q2 
actual 

Trend Target 
Q2 

Progress and management action (where red/amber) 

% of major planning applications 
determined within statutory period 

89% 100% 100%  90% Improvement on 2019/20. 

% of grant monies paid out in grants to 
small businesses 

n/a 90% 92%  

100% by 
Oct 

2020 

At 30 Sept 2020 the Council had paid out 95% of the allocation 
from Government for the Small Business and Retail, Hospitality 
and Leisure Grant Funds and 89% of the allocation for the 
smaller Discretionary Business Grants Scheme. Government 
announced that the grants schemes needed to close by 28 Aug 
2020. 

 
  

P
age 24



 

13 

 

Outstanding local services 
Our objectives:  Make it easy for customers to contact us    Ensure we get it right first time    Be bold in our use of technology    Look 

at different and better ways to deliver services 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q2 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Deliver technology projects 
to provide improved digital 
platforms and self-service 
options including: 

 implementation of the 
Arcus land and property 
system 

 
 
 
by May 
2021 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services/ 
Customer 
Operations  

R G 

Phase 2 of the Arcus project delivery plan is on track for Planning and 
Land charges to go live in Q3 joining Building Control and completing 
the first stage of the project within the revised project plan timescales. 
Work on the next phase - the Regulatory Services module focussing on 
delivery of the Environmental Health, food and protection elements of 
the module are on track to go live during Q4. 

 purchase and 
implementation of a new 
finance, payroll and HR 
system 

by March 
2021 

Finance and 
Property 

A G 

A refreshed procurement process has taken place via G-Cloud 12. The 
project team continues to meet weekly to ensure that a report 
recommended the award of contract to a successful bidder will be 
brought to the Executive meeting in November. 

Review the Council’s Target 
Operating Model and 
working practices as part of 
our Recovery Strategy  

from May 
2020 

Programmes 
and Projects 

G G 

Continued support for remote working in almost all services including 
providing appropriate equipment, devices and increased use of cloud-
based technology. The Programme Office has successfully attracted 
additional resources through internal secondments and recruitment of 
project managers to deliver a range of projects to modernise our 
approach to recruitment and development of staff, increase the flexibility 
of our workforce so that we can respond better to changing priorities and 
to develop a plan for our offices and other properties. 

Continue a programme of 
service reviews across the 
council looking at cost, quality 
and delivery mechanisms 
(building in learning from 

from May 
2020 

Programmes 
and Projects 

G G 

Building on work already completed, we have recruited a Performance 
and Insight Project Manager to conduct detailed reviews of services and 
then use that data and evidence to help improve work processes and 
develop a meaningful performance management framework to measure 
our effectiveness. Initial work will focus on waste services, parking and 
community services. 

P
age 25



 

14 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q2 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

operating during the 
pandemic) 

Ensure Allerdale Waste 
Services is delivering against 
performance targets 

from April 
2020 

Finance and 
Property 

G G 

Work is ongoing in this area with the number of reported justified missed 
collections consistently coming in close to the target of no more than 80 
reported justified missed collections per 100,000 collections. Work 
continues to reduce the number of defined hot spot properties that 
continue to pose a challenge. Hot spot properties are homes that are 
classed as being justified as missed on more than 2 occasions in a 6 
week period, or where an assisted collection customer is classed as 
being justified as missed on 1 occasion. 

  

Key performance indicators 
2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Q2 
actual 

Trend   Target 
Q2 

Progress and management action (where red/amber) 

% of abandoned calls 12% 4% 5%  7% 
Significant improvement on the previous year’s performance 
with the reallocation of resources to ensure service delivery. 

Customer satisfaction (ring back) 96% 90% 89%  90% 

Performance in Q1 and Q2 demonstrates that public 
confidence in customer services remained high and was not 
adversely affected by changes in the way the public now 
contact us. 

Number of complaints 1280 158 185  Reduce  
A slight increase in complaint numbers between Q1 and Q2, 
but still well below previous year’s figures.   

% change in website unique page 
views  

New 29.7% 28.2%  

5% 
increase 
(6 month 

rolling 
average) 

This is a rolling measure looking at the change in unique 
page views over the past year.  Percentages have remained 
similar between Q1 and Q2 as more people have been 
looking for information via our website during the pandemic. 

% change in new website users New 237.1% 46.4%  

30% 
increase 
(6 month 

rolling 
average)  

This is a rolling measure looking at the change in new 
website users over the past year.  Percentages increased 
considerably over Q1 as more people began looking for 
information via our website during the pandemic, but have 
come down over Q2. 

P
age 26



 

15 

 

Facebook reach rate  New 22.52% 35.61%  

10% rise 
(6 month 

rolling 
period)  

This is a rolling measure looking at change in the reach of our 
Facebook posts.   

Facebook engagement rate New 10.71% 9.94%  

10% 
increase 
(6 month 

rolling 
average) 

This is a rolling measure looking at how far people have 
engaged with our Facebook posts (for example by sharing a 
post). Very slightly below target for Q2.  

Self-service digital transactions as a 
% of total transactions (Report it, 
Apply for it and Complaint and 
Compliments) 

New 68% 39% 
Baseline 

year 

There were a large volume of online applications particularly 
for business grants during Q1 leading to a higher reported 
percentage. These have tailed off during Q2 which coupled 
with an increase in reports through the contact centre (by 
phone) has led to a fall in the figure shown.   

Overall time ICT systems available for 
use  

100% 100% 100%  99.9% 
The IT team continue to ensure that ICT systems support the 
organisation effectively, enabling almost all staff to work from 
home seamlessly.  

 

  

P
age 27



 

16 

 

Thriving towns and villages 
Our objectives:  Support businesses    Create deliverable town plans that enable our towns to adapt to the changing nature of the high 

street   Ensure there are suitable, affordable, decent homes for all   Give people a reason to visit our towns (festivals, events, cultural and 

sporting activities, markets)    Increase the number of people living in our town centres    Build communities, not just homes 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q2 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

Maryport Regeneration 
Programme: work to access funding 
from the Future High Street Fund and 
Heritage Action Zone and 
development of the town centre and 
waterfront plans, building in new 
intelligence about the impacts of the 
pandemic.   

Submit FHS 
business 
case by end 
July 2020 

Programme 
Director 
(Maryport) 

G G 

This quarter has seen the success of further funding being 
awarded to the HAZ Programme in the shape of an additional 
10k from Historic England to support a public street art 
project for the town. The painting will be inspired by 
Maryport's history and will give the opportunity for a group of 
young people to interact with the artist as he is painting. In 
relation to the FHSF we were able to provide further 
information to MHCLG on the justification of the programme 
which resulted in the bid being strengthened. 

Workington Town Deal:  
- Develop investment plan building in 
intelligence about the impacts of the 
pandemic 
- Develop Delivery Plan once funding 
secured for 2021 onwards 

 
by August 
2020 
from 2021 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

G G 

At the meeting on 14 October the Executive approved in 
principle the Workington Town Investment Plan for 
submission to Government by the end of October. The 
Council has received £750,000 of funding for the delivery of 
capital projects within the current financial year and this 
money is to be spent on the acquisition and demolition of the 
former Opera House building and public realm improvements 
including the Central Way underpass and the creation of an 
outdoor events space and an outdoor gym at the Leisure 
Centre. 

Undertake business engagement 
and support activity to enable the 
Council to better understand 
businesses issues, challenges and 
ideas and feed those through to local, 
regional and national forums. 

from April 
2020 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) &  
Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance   

G G 

A Business Services Coordinator was appointed on 5 
October 2020 to understand businesses needs and 
coordinate our approach to support businesses across our full 
range of services. The Coordinator is developing a joint work 
programme with SMART objectives that will incorporate the 
work of the existing Business Engagement Manager and the 

P
age 28



 

17 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q2 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

newly appointed Business Communications and Engagement 
Officer. 

Undertake work with partners to 
support the recovery of the visitor 
economy including assessing the 
impact, considering appropriate 
interventions and delivering actions as 
part of a recovery plan for the visitor 
sector, markets and events.  

from June 
2020 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) &  
Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance   

G G 

A long list of recovery projects has been evaluated and three 
projects selected with the best fit to encourage visits and 
support business. They will be worked up with industry 
representatives to a stage where they can be implemented at 
a time that is safe and beneficial for the industry. The three 
projects are a Residents' Week, a Taste of the Sea Festival in 
Maryport and a cycling sportive event in Silloth. It is 
anticipated that all three will run in 2020/21. The new activity 
is in addition to adding "safe" itinerary content to our Visit 
Allerdale website, planning the new tourism breakfast briefing 
online and regular e-newsletter communications with the 
sector. Outdoor markets in Keswick, Workington, Silloth and 
Wigton are operation with hygiene and social distancing 
measures in place. Keswick continues to operate with 
reduced stall capacity to aid social distancing. Taste 
Cockermouth food festivals in September and December 
were cancelled due to Covid-19 as was the Workington 
activity planned for December to support the retail and night 
time sectors. 

Complete the Allonby to Silloth 
coastal cycle path extension to 
support the visitor economy and 
health and wellbeing agenda 

Open by 
2021 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

G G 
Still awaiting final consent from United Utilities for the path to 
pass over a very small section of their land. 

Deliver targeted public realm 
schemes in our towns including: 

 Work with the county council to 
consider temporary physical 
changes to road and pavement 
layouts to support our town centre 

 
from June 
2020 
 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington)  

G G 

A voluntary one-way pedestrian system was introduced in 
Market Place, Keswick to aid social distancing. On outdoor 
market days, Thursday and Saturdays, marshals have been 
used to encourage members of the public to follow the 
voluntary system. This has been well received, with most 
people complying. 

P
age 29



 

18 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q2 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

businesses with ongoing social 
distancing measures 

 Progress the Central Way 
underpass improvement scheme 

Phase 1 by 
March 2021 

Finance and 
Property 

A A 

Outstanding technical aspects of the scheme have now been 
agreed with CCC. Tender documents are being prepared with 
target date for issue of 26 October. Specification for solution 
to Underpass walls (erection of 4 freestanding steel-framed 
structures in front of the non-bridge sections) to 
accommodate lighting and artwork means that planning 
permission is required for this element of the scheme. 
Detailed drawings to be prepared asap and application 
submitted. 

Ensure our regulatory services 
work to assist businesses as much 
as possible, such as efficient 
planning, building control, licensing 
and environmental health processes, 
implementing improvements to the 
provision of services to help 
businesses  

from March 
2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

A A 

Arcus delay is still an impediment to efficient planning 
process, however, the Go Live date is on track for November. 
Building Control completed an internal audit under the LABC 
QMS ISO9001 and the external audit is complete and we 
have been awarded the accreditation.  Environmental Health 
and Licensing have been offering support and guidance to 
businesses through the changes in legislation required due 
the pandemic. 

Undertake work to understand and 
address impacts of the pandemic 
on the housing market over short, 
medium and longer term  

from June 
2020 

Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance 

G G 

The feedback from Registered Providers is that the level of 
rent arrears in Allerdale area have not risen significantly and 
that their officers during the pandemic teams have worked 
tireless with tenants, offering support in money management, 
and working to prevent or mitigate against tenants from falling 
into debt. As a result of government policy, no evictions have 
taken place.  Some RPs are working with the National 
Housing Federation which has launched a commitment to 
respond well to the Covid-19 crisis on behalf of its members:  
1. Keeping people secure at home 2.Helping people to get 
the support they need 3.Acting compassionately and quickly 
where people are struggling.  Others are discussing internally 
their traditional escalation to eviction process as they have 

P
age 30



 

19 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q2 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

managed to work with 34 cases during the pandemic to get 
payment plans in place which would otherwise have 
proceeded to court action.   Local developers have advised 
that the housing market has been very buoyant in terms of 
sales following lockdown, and they intend to continue 
developing housing in the area. 

Deliver disabled facilities grants 
and review the Housing Grants and 
Assistance Policy in light of the 
pandemic. 

from April 
2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

G G 

The coronavirus pandemic has had an impact on the delivery 
of Disabled Facilities Grants however the team are starting to 
receive more referrals from Occupational Therapists. The 
team have adapted the way customers are supported without 
the need to visit their homes. New systems/processes have 
been introduced and appear to be working well. Most 
contractors now have teams in place to undertake works and 
regular virtual meetings are taking place. The review of the 
Housing Grants and Assistance Policy has not started mainly 
due to the Housing Manager leading on Track and Trace for 
Allerdale.    

 

Key performance indicators 
2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Q2 
actual 

Trend Target 
Q2 

Progress and management action (where red/amber) 

% of invoices from local Cumbrian 
businesses paid within 14 days 

93.3% 97.8% 95.6%  98.0% 
In Q2 the target of 98% was not achieved due to PO's not 
being delivered on time and invoices awaiting the 
authorisation of Budget Holders.  

% of Council spend (less than £50k) on 
goods and services with local 
(Cumbrian) suppliers  

47.40% 43.96% 47.82%  50.00% 

The unprecedented times during Q2 due to the CV-19 
emergency continue but we are heading towards our target 
for spend under £50K with local suppliers. The team continue 
to work with Council Officers about how they can add value 
to communities by spending locally. The Team are 
communicating tenders and requests for quotes through 
more social media channels to ensure local suppliers aware 
of opportunities.   

P
age 31



 

20 

 

% of all Council spend on goods and 
services with local (Cumbrian) suppliers 

51.48% 62.33% 63.60%  50.00% 
For all Council spend at all values we exceed the target and 
Q2 shows an improvement on Q1. 

Numbers of affordable homes delivered 54 0 5  
Not 

targeted 
Numbers still very low.   

Full Plans determined within 5 weeks 
(Building Control) 

84% 100% 100%  85%  

% of Local Land Charges Searches 
carried out within 10 working days 

99.4% 100% 99.9%  100%  

% of minor and other planning 
applications determined within statutory 
period 

90% 95.4% 88.8%  90% 
Q2 performance was affected by a dip in performance in July 
due to a temporary reduction in resource, this has been 
addressed and August and September were above target. 

No. of housing units granted planning 
permission 

380 65 93  84 
Higher than the previous quarter but lower than the same 
quarter in 2019/20.   

Number of DFGs approved 162 19 20  

Increase 
through 
the year 

Referrals for adaptations have been significantly down due to 
the pandemic affecting the ability of Occupational Therapists 
to undertake assessments.  The pandemic has also posed 
significant challenges in terms of carrying out adaptation 
work in people’s homes.  The budget for disabled facilities 
grants can be carried over into next financial year, but the 
aim is still to maximise adaptations carried out this year as 
far as is feasible. 

 

 

 

  

P
age 32



 

21 

 

Resilient communities  
Our objectives:  Promote healthy, active lifestyles    Address community safety issues    Engage with our communities, and our town 

and parish councils    Prevent and reduce homelessness    Address inequalities 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q2 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Work with GLL to plan for 
reopening and future 
operation of leisure centres 
including restarting the 
Healthwise Scheme to deliver 
exercise on referral 

from June 
2020 

Finance and 
Property 

G G 

Both open centres are trading as expected as part of the Phase 1 
opening, with members from Keswick and Maryport members also able 
to use either site. Workington centre is within the top 10 of GLL centres 
(200+ open) for membership retention and class occupancy, although 
users have dropped slightly since the rule of 6 came back in and 
reintroduction of some activities have been postponed.  

Deliver a £140k grants pot to 
support sporting clubs and 
associations to improve 
accessibility, participation and 
to support recovery from 
impacts of the Coronavirus 
pandemic 

by March 
2021 

Finance and 
Property 

G G 
Grant opened in August and a number of projects have been awarded 
funding. Over 50% of the budget has been committed.  

Further develop the Allerdale 
Local Focus Hub to drive a 
thriving families approach with 
existing and new partners 
including responding to the 
ongoing impact of lockdown 
and continued social distancing 
measures.  

from April 
2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

G G 

LFH Manager is now in post to further develop the partnership model. 
The multi-agency enforcement team meet weekly to review and monitor 
Covid-19 enforcement activity, joint premises visits are taking places in 
hotspot locations between Allerdale BC and Police. Referral activity is 
now fully operational and the 'Hub' reopened for Police and Allerdale 
staff on 5/10/20. 

P
age 33



 

22 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q2 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Provide advice and 
guidance, along with 
undertaking investigation 
and enforcement activity, to 
support Covid-19 
restrictions on businesses 
and help them provide safe 
environments. 

from April 
2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

G G 

Continue to support businesses by providing advice and guidance via 
visits, email, telephone calls and by post. This support is enhanced 
through street walks and spot checks. The support is mainly around 
helping businesses understand and implement the rapidly changing 
legislation and guidance and dealing with complaints around Covid-19. 
While education and engage forms the majority of the work, enforcement 
action will be considered and taken when businesses refuse to act on the 
advice and guidance given.  

Undertake test and trace 
activity in partnership with 
Cumbria County Council. 

from June 
2020 

Programme 

Director 

(Maryport) 
G G 

As the national lockdown restrictions lifted, the number of positive Covid-
19 cases in Allerdale has increased. The team play a vital role in local 
contact tracing, providing support and advice to positive cases and to 
businesses where cases are employed or have visited. There have been 
a number of outbreaks over the past few weeks and the Track and Trace 
team have been heavily involved with these to prevent the spread of the 
virus.   

Develop a Resilient 
Communities Strategy setting 
out how we can support 
communities across the district 
as we move out of the current 
restrictions and into recovery. 

by Aug 
2020 

Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance 

G A 

Further development work in Q2 considering impacts of Covid-19 on our 
communities. Discussion held with Scrutiny members about approach 
and strategy content.  Some initial content drafted but further 
consultation work to be undertaken.  Activity has not met original 
timescales due to key staff being drawn into Covid-19 related work.   

Deliver the Hardship Fund to 
support those on the Council 
Tax Reduction Scheme and 
others experiencing financial 
hardship as a result of the 
pandemic. 

from June 
2020 

Customer 
Operations 

A G 
Software enhancements applied and scheme now fully operational, all 
outstanding awards now credited to accounts   

P
age 34



 

23 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q2 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Implement the Homeless 
Strategy action plan including 
a focus on prevention activity 
and ongoing work to help the 
additional people housed 
during the pandemic crisis to 
remain in accommodation. 

from June 
2020 

Customer 
Operations 

G A 

We managed to secure additional funding for rough sleepers as part of 
the revenue side of the Next Steps Accommodation Programme bid total 
£82k. We are still waiting to hear about the capital side of the bid which 
will secure additional funding to house rough sleepers. 

Progress and launch the 
Cold to Cosy Homes Scheme 
– working towards launch in 
autumn 2020. 

by Oct 2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

G A 
The Cold to Cosy Homes scheme is live and staff members have 
attended the training. The team are signposting and referring people to 
the scheme however further work is needed to promote the scheme. 

  

 

Key performance indicators 
2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Q2 
actual 

Trend Target 
Q2 

Progress and management action (where red/amber) 

Leisure centre usage - Workington 268,172 n/a 21704 n/a Increase 

Workington reopened at end of July so the Q2 figure represents 
August and September.  As a comparison the figure for 
September 2019 was 24,943. Swimming lessons have been 
reintroduced at Cockermouth and Workington with around 50% 
of the original number rebooking their places. Workington has 
one of the highest retention rates currently of members 
returning to activity.  

Leisure centre usage - Cockermouth 174,476 n/a 10281 n/a Increase 

Cockermouth reopened at end of July so the Q2 figure 
represents August and September.  As a comparison the figure 
for September 2019 was 16200. Membership across both sites 
is steadily increasing although usage dropped slightly following 
the introduction of the rule of 6. Some activity still not able to 
return either due to the limited space available or following the 
guidance doesn't allow for it to take place safely.  

P
age 35



 

24 

 

% of homeless decisions made within 
guideline 56 days 

100% 100% 100%  100%  

% of successful homeless 
preventions and relief outcomes 

54% 56% 43%  50% 
The impact of Covid-19 requiring all rough sleepers to be 
accommodated and the availability of suitable supported “move 
on” accommodation had impacted adversely on this indicator. 

Time taken to process Housing 
Benefit new claims (no. of days) 

7 13 11  15 days  

Time taken to process Council Tax 
new claims (no. of days) 

13 20 17  20 days  

Time taken to process Housing 
Benefit/Council Tax change of 
circumstances (no. of days) 

3 3 4  4 days  

 

 

 P
age 36



Allerdale Borough Council 

Executive - 25 November 2020 

Council - 9 December 2020 

 

Quarter 2 Finance Report and Revised Budget 2020-21 

 

Portfolio holder Councillor Jim Lister 

 PH Finance and Legal 

Report from Catherine Nicholson, Head of Financial Services  

 telephone no: 01900-702503  
 email: catherine.nicholson@allerdale.gov.uk  

Wards affected   All 

Is this a key decision  Yes 

 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 To inform members of financial performance against budget for the period April to 
September 2020 and seek approval for the revised revenue and capital budgets for 
2020-21. 

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 Members are recommended to: 

i. note the forecasted position against the original revenue and capital 
budgets at the end of quarter 2 

ii. approve the revised budget (inclusive of spend from earmarked reserves) of 
£19,580k 

iii. approve the revised net revenue budget requirement of £18,105k 

iv. approve an additional release from the Council’s earmarked reserves of 
£2,845k 

v. approve a contribution from the Council’s General Fund of £33k 

vi. approve the revised three year capital budget (including proposed 
financing) of £15,997k, comprising £11,629k in 2020-21, £2,724k in 2021-
22 and £1,644k in 2022-23 

vii. note the revised position on earmarked and un-earmarked general fund 
balances.  

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 9



3.0  Executive Summary  

3.1 This report summarises the Council’s financial performance against budget for the 
period April to September 2020 and seeks approval for the revised revenue and 
capital Budgets for 2020-21. 

Quarter 2 – Monitoring position 

3.2 The headline messages at the end of quarter 2 of 2020-21 are: 

 Revenue Budget 

(i) Against the original budget expenditure on services of £15,260k, the 
Council is currently projecting an overspend of £2,850k. 

(ii) After accounting for an increase of £2,812k in income from Taxation 
and Government Grants, comprising £1,594k emergency Covid-19 
funding receivable from central government and a forecast of £1,218k 
receivable under the government’s income guarantee scheme, the 
projected outturn position will require a contribution from the Council’s 
General Fund reserves of £38k. 

 Earmarked Reserves Budget 

(iii) Following publication of the 2019-20 outturn position, the budgeted use 
of Reserves was increased from £190k to £1,855k to reflect the profiling 
of expenditure presented as part of that report.  

(iv) A variance of £380k (underspend) is projected against this updated 
budget. 

 Capital Budget 

(v) The capital budget is forecast to be underspent by £9.086 million. 

(vi) The forecast underspend will be reduced by re-profiling £5.788 million 
of the budget to subsequent financial years, leaving an underspend 
(residual variance) of £3.298 million.  

Treasury Management 

(vii) Treasury management activities during the quarter were carried out in 
accordance with the Council’s treasury management and investment 
strategies and within the limits established by the approved treasury 
and prudential indicators for 2020-21. 

(viii) No new external borrowing was undertaken during the three months 
ending 30 September 2020. 

 
  

Page 38



Revised Revenue and Capital Budgets  

Revised revenue Budget  

3.3 On 4 March 2020, Council approved a revenue budget for 2020-21 comprising:  

 total planned revenue expenditure of £15,450k, including parish precepts 
of £2,458k 

 a net budget requirement of £15,260k, including planned use of 
earmarked balances of £190k. 

3.4 To address budget pressures and savings identified through in-year budget 
monitoring and update the planned use of earmarked reserves, the revised revenue 
budget proposal set out in this report includes: 

 a £4,130k increase in planned revenue expenditure, compared with the 
original 2020-21 revenue budget, increasing the total (including parish 
precepts of £2,458k) from £15,450k to £19,580k 

 an increase in planned use of earmarked reserves (compared to the 
original budget) of £1,285k (£380k decrease compared to the re-profiled 
post 2019-20 outturn total of £1,855k) 

 an increase in the net budget requirement of £2,845k from £15,260k to 
£18,105k (including planned use of earmarked balances of £1,475k).  

3.5  The changes to the 2020-21 Net Service Expenditure Budget of £2,845k comprise: 

 recurring (net growth) adjustments, impacting on the Council’s base 
budget of £149k.  

 non-recurring adjustments (net growth) of £2,696k.  

3.6 These changes:  

 increase the Council’s recurring (base) budget from £12,240k to £12,389k; 
and 

 increase the Net Service Expenditure budget for 2019-20 from £12,802k to 
£15,647k. 

Revised Capital Budget  

3.7 In March 2020, Council approved a three year capital budget of £16,440k 
(comprising £13,295k in 2020-21, £1,611k in 2021-22 and £1,534k in 2022-23), 
financed as follows: 

 capital grants and contributions - £8,365k (including £5,880k in 2020-21) 

 capital receipts - £572k  

 general fund balances - £9k 

 borrowing and credit arrangements - £7,494k (including £6,834k in 2020-21) 

 

 

Page 39



3.8  The capital budget was subsequently increased to £17,835k to reflect the addition 
of budget carried forward from 2019-20 of £1,395k. The capital budget carried 
forward comprises £314k financed from grants, £336k from capital receipts and 
£89k from General Fund Balances. The remaining £656k comprises planned capital 
expenditure that will be met from borrowing. 

3.9 The proposed revised capital budget for the three years 2020-21 to 2022-23 is 
£15,997k. The revised budget includes:  

 re-profiling adjustments involving the transfer of previously approved 
expenditure to subsequent financial years; this includes the transfer of £647k 
of expenditure and associated financing from 2020-21 to 2021-22 and 2022-
23 year in line with current expenditure forecasts 

 growth bids of £1,515k (£859k in 2020-21, £372k in 2021-22 and £284k in 
2022-23),  

 budget savings bids (associated with reported forecast variances at 30 
September) of £3,353k, including savings of £3,273k in 2020-21 

3.10  The revised capital budget is funded as follows:  

 capital grants and contributions - £8,103k 

 capital receipts - £908k 

 general fund balances - £94k 

 borrowing and credit arrangements - £6,892k 

Impact on General Fund Balances 

3.11  The proposed changes to the 2020-21 revenue and capital budgets will result in a 
net contribution to (un-earmarked) general fund balances of £40k. This compares 
with a net contribution from general fund balances of £98k included in the original 
budget for 2020-21. The net change in the planned use of general fund balances of 
£138k comprises: 

 £167k release of previously earmarked reserves back to the general fund 

 a reduction of £4k in the planned use of general fund balances to finance the 
capital programme  

 a contribution from the general fund of £33k to support the revised 2020-21 
revenue budget.  

4.0  Background and Introduction 

4.1 This report summarises the Council’s financial performance against budget for the 
period April to September 2020 and seeks members’ approval for the revised 
revenue and capital budgets for 2020-21.  

Financial performance against budget for the period April to September 2020 

4.2 The Council’s financial regulations require the Section 151 Officer (Head of 
Financial Services) to report regularly (at least quarterly), to Executive, the latest 
financial position against budget. 

Page 40



4.3 This report outlines for both the Council’s Revenue budget (section 5) and Capital 
budget (section 7), the forecast outturn for 2020-21 based on net expenditure to the 
end of September 2020 and the projected net expenditure to 31 March 2021. 

4.4 Reasons for significant variances (+/- £30k) between the full year forecast and the 
approved estimates (original budget) for 2020-21, are summarised in this report 
alongside details of how these variances have been addressed in preparing the 
revised budget.  

4.5 This report also provides: 

 details of forecast expenditure on projects funded from earmarked 
reserves (section 5) 

 a summary forecast income from business rates, council tax and non- 
specific (un-ringfenced) grants (section 5)  

 a summary of the impact of the forecast outturn position on earmarked 
reserves and general fund balances (section 9)  

 details of treasury management activity and confirmation of compliance 
with the Treasury and Prudential Indicators included in the Council’s 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement (section 10). 

 Revised Budget 

4.6 The Council has a statutory responsibility (under the Local Government Finance Act 
1992) to set a balanced budget for each financial year. This means the Council’s 
expenditure on services must be contained within the available funding envelope. 
The Council’s 2020-21 (original) revenue and capital budgets were approved by 
Council on 4 March 2020. 

4.7 The financial management approach agreed by Members in 2012-13 also requires 
the Council to prepare a revised budget that takes into consideration, the outputs 
and findings of in-year financial monitoring procedures and quarterly financial 
reporting to the Council’s Executive. This approach allows for more accurate 
monitoring of expenditure and enables the Council’s Executive to approve revisions 
and supplementary estimates. 

4.8 Since the Council approved its Revenue and Capital Budgets for 2020-21 the 
ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on the Council’s finances. 

4.9 In particular, the Council has experienced significant income variances against 
budget. The Government introduced a compensation scheme to help counter some 
of these variances, however full losses are not recoverable and not all income 
streams are eligible under the scheme. A summary of the scheme is provided at 
paragraph 5.17.  

4.10  Monthly returns continue to be completed and submitted to MHCLG on the financial 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and officers continue to monitor the financial 
position on a monthly basis. 

4.11 During the course of the pandemic, there has been no certainty around the level of 
funding expected to be received from the government making it very difficult to 

Page 41



forecast the overall impact on the council’s current year finances and its longer term 
financial plans.  

4.12 As part of the revised budget process, a series of budget review meetings have 
been held with the purpose of: 

 reviewing the financial position against budget after the first six months of the 
financial year, focusing in particular on the impact of the pandemic and 
measures introduced to control transmission of the virus 

 identifying any large variances against budget 

 considering these variances and approving any necessary revisions or 
supplementary budgets. 

4.13 This report sets out the Council’s proposed: 

 revised revenue budget for 2020-21 (section 6), and 

 revised capital budget for the three year period 2019-20 to 2021-22 
(section 8). 

5.0  Summary of Projected Revenue Outturn Position 

5.1 Table 1 shows, as at the end of September 2020, the Council's overall projected 
2020-21 revenue outturn position. It shows:  

Revenue Budget Expenditure 

 net budgeted expenditure of £15.26 million 

 a projected outturn (including contributions to reserves) of £18.1 million 

 a projected variance (overspend) against the net service expenditure budget 
for the year to March 2020 of £2.85 million, underpinned by the impact of the 
Covid-19 pandemic on many of the Authority’s largest income streams 
including parking, commercial rents, trade waste and recycling and planning, 
and by its impact on the delivery of planned savings associated with the 
Authority’s transformation and efficiency programmes  

 net of income from Taxation & Government Grants, the overspend on 
services will result in a net contribution from balances of £38k.   

Earmarked Reserves Budget 

 budgeted expenditure of £1.86 million  

 a projected outturn of £1.48 million 

 a projected underspend against the earmarked reserves budget (updated to 
reflect the 2019-20 outturn position) of £380k, reflecting changes in the 
anticipated timing of expenditure from reserves. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 42



Table 1 - Summary of Projected Revenue Outturn against Budget 

 
Original 
Budget 

£’000 

Projected 
Outturn 

£’000 

Projected 
Variance 

£’000 

Report 
Ref. 

Net Expenditure on Services 12,802 15,652 2,850  

Parish Precepts 2,458 2,458 0  

Net Expenditure on Services  15,260 18,110 2,850 5.2 

Expenditure on Earmarked Priorities1 1,855 1,475 (380) 5.4 

Total Net Expenditure  17,155 19,585 2,470  

Less: Planned use of earmarked balances1  (1,855) (1,475) 380 5.4 

Net Budget Requirement/ Outturn 15,260 18,110 2,850  

Funding:     

Taxation & Government Grants 15,260 18,072 2,812 5.8 

Contribution from/(to) General Fund 0 38 38  

Total Funding 15,260 18,110 2,850  

1 £190k (original budget) plus £1,665k re-profiling adjustment to reflect 2019-20 revenue outturn 

5.2 A breakdown of the overall projected outturn variance (£2,850k) by portfolio is 
shown in Table 2. Further details can be found in Appendix A. 

Table 2 – Summary of variance by Portfolio 

 
Annual 
Budget 

Projected 
Outturn 

Planned 
Contribution 
to reserves  

Projected 
Variance 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Economic Growth, Community 
Development & Placemaking 

(217) 638 25 880 

Finance & Legal 4,958 4,681 0 (277) 

Environmental Services 2,726 4,633 0 1,907 

Policy, Governance & People 
Resources 

2,749 2,672 40 (37) 

Leisure & Tourism 324 277 0 (47) 

Customer Experience & 
Innovation 

2,262 2,686 0 424 

Parish Precepts 2,458 2,458 0 0 

Total 15,260 18,045 65 2,850 

5.3 Significant variances between budget and projected outturn have been 
addressed through the revised budget. Explanations for significant variances are 
included within the revised budget proposals set out in section 6. 

 

Page 43



Projects funded from Earmarked Reserves  

5.4 At 1 April 2020, the balance in earmarked reserves was £3,248k, comprising: 

 £1,948k held for service expenditure 

 £1,300k held for accounting purposes or as contingency against specified 
risks.  

5.5 Against the balance of £1,948k, the profiled spend identified for 2020-21 is £1,855k. 
The remaining balance is profiled to be spent in subsequent financial years.  

5.6 The current projected outturn for 2020-21 is £1,475k, giving a projected underspend 
of £380k at the end of quarter 2. This reflects a change in the anticipated timing of 
expenditure from the balances available within earmarked reserves and is 
accounted for within the revised budget by way of a re-profiling adjustment. The 
reported underspend does not have any impact on the (un-earmarked) general fund 
balance.  

 

Table 3 - Summary of Projected Expenditure from Earmarked Reserves 

Reserve Funded projects  

Reserve  
Balance 

1-4-2020 

Profiled  
Budget 
2020-21 

Projected 
outturn 

Variance 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Economic Growth, Community 
Development & Placemaking 

650 604 582 (22) 

Finance & Legal 215 250 140 (110) 

Environmental Services 439 404 399 (5) 

Policy, Governance & People Resources 305 305 106 (199) 

Leisure & Tourism 61 61 61 0 

Customer Experience & Innovation 278 231 187 (44) 

Total held for service expenditure 1,948 1,855 1,475 (380) 

Accounting/Contingency reserves 1,300 0 0 0 

Total Reserves 3,248 1,855 1,475 (380) 

 

5.7 In addition to the £1,475k projected outturn expenditure, £167k will be released 
back to the un-earmarked General Fund. A summary of projected movements on 
earmarked reserves is set out in section 9. 

Taxation and Non-specific grant income 

5.8 Details of the Council’s forecast taxation and non-specific grant income and 
expenditure for the year, compared with budget, are shown in the following table. 
This includes income received from: 

 Non-ring fenced government grants such as Revenue Support Grant and 
New Homes Bonus   

 Council tax and Non Domestic Rates (NNDR). 

 

Page 44



Table 4 -Taxation and Non-specific grant income 

 Budget  

 

£’000 

Forecast 

Outturn 

£’000 

Variance 

 

£’000 

Revenue support grant 199 199 0 

Rural Services Delivery Grant 326 326 0 

New Homes Bonus 606 606 0 

Council tax - excluding parish element 5,400 5,400 0 

Council tax – parish element 2,458 2,458 0 

Collection fund surplus/(deficit) - Council Tax  21 21 0 

NNDR funding (see table 11) 6,250 6,250 0 

Other Grants - Covid-19 emergency funding 0 1,594 1,594 

Other - Covid-19 income guarantee 0 1,218 1,218 

 15,260 18,072 2,812 

 NNDR Funding (business rates) 

5.9 The amount of NNDR income available to the general fund and taken into account 
when setting the budget each year is based on the figures contained in the 
government return - NNDR1.  

5.10 Although the NNDR1 form fixes a significant portion of NNDR income available to 
the Council’s general fund for the financial year, it does not fix:  

 the levy the Council pays to the Cumbria business rates pool  

 the retained levy that the Council receives back from the pool or  

 the grant it receives from central government to compensate for certain 
business rate reliefs (section 31 grant) 

 the balance of amount payable or receivable in respect of the preceding 
years disregarded income (renewable energy reconciliation adjustment). 

5.11 Amounts relating to levy payments and section 31 grant are based on the Collection 
Fund outturn position rather than on the estimates included in the NNDR 1 return. 
The retained levy also takes into account the Collection Fund outturn positions of 
other pool members. As a consequence, the amount of income the Council receives 
and pays in relation to these items is subject to change over the course of the 
financial year. The renewable energy reconciliation adjustment is based on the 
previous year’s outturn position. 

5.12 The composition of funding available from business rates in 2020-21, including 
related s31 grants is summarised in table 5.  

 

 

 

 

Page 45



  Table 5 - NNDR (business rates) funding 2020-21  

Funding element 

Approved 

Budget 
£’000 

Projected 
Outturn 

£’000 

Variance  

 

£’000 

Fixed Elements:    

Allerdale Share of NNDR Income  11,168 11,168 0 

Renewable Energy ‘disregard’ retained  522 522 0 

Net tariff payable to Central Government (7,418) (7,418) 0 

Share of estimated collection fund surplus 138 138 0 

‘Fixed’ element of NNDR income 4,410 4,410 0 

Variable Elements:    

Reconciliation adjustment (prior year disregarded income) (9) (7) 2 

Section 31 grant  2,298 8,498 6,200 

Levy payable (net of reduction under pool arrangements) (449) (491) (42) 

Variable element of NNDR income 1,840 8,000 6,160 

Total Fixed & Variable Elements 6,250 12,410 6,160 

Transfer to Earmarked Reserve 0 (6,160) (6,160) 

Net Credit to the General Fund 6,250 6,250 0 

5.13 During 2020-21, a number of additional and extended business rates reliefs have 
been introduced in response to the Covid-19 pandemic (including, in particular, the 
increased and expanded retail discount scheme). This has resulted in a significant 
reduction in the amount of business rates expected to be collected from ratepayers 
in 2020-21. 

5.14 The Authority is compensated for this loss in business rates income by way of 
additional section 31 grant payable in 2020-21. Based on the latest forecasts this 
has increased the expected amount of s31 grant receivable in 2020-21 by an 
estimated £6.2m. However, because the demand on the Collection Fund in respect 
of business rates is fixed prior to the start of the financial year, the full impact of the 
cost of these additional and extended reliefs (i.e. the Authority's share of the 
collection fund deficit generated by the additional reliefs granted) and compensated 
through payment of s31 grant, will not be borne by the general fund until 2021-22. 
To offset the significant fall in business rates income in 2021-22, generated by the 
need to repay the collection fund deficit when setting the 2021-22 revenue budget, 
the additional s31 grant received in the current financial year (net of changes to the 
net levy payment and prior year disregard) will be transferred to an earmarked 
reserve in 2020-21 and released in 2021-22 to offset the reduction in business rates 
income.  

5.15   Other variances in respect of business rates income comprise: 

 a £42k increase in the estimated amount of levy (net of reduction under 
pool arrangements) the Council expects to pay, based on current forecasts 
of the Collection Fund outturn positions of pool members 

  an adjustment of £2k in the amount repayable in respect of the preceding 
years disregarded income (renewable energy) following confirmation of 
the 2019-20 outturn position. 

Page 46



 Covid-19 funding - emergency funding tranches 2, 3 and 4 (£1,594k) 

5.16 During the current financial year the Authority has received emergency funding from 
the government totalling £1,148,067 in the form of unringfenced grants to meet 
urgent and unforeseen costs and other financial pressures arising from the Covid-
19 pandemic. A further allocation of £446,161 (tranche 4) was announced in 
October bringing the total awarded to the Authority in 2020-21 to £1,594,228.  

  Covid-19 funding - income guarantee scheme (£1,218k) 

5.17 In July, the government announced an income guarantee scheme, under which 
authorities will be compensated for 75% of losses of income from sale, fees and 
charges - for example, car parking charges - arising as a result of Covid-19 and the 
consequent reductions in economic activity. Under the scheme, authorities are 
required to absorb losses of up to 5% of their planned sales, fees and charges 
income, with the government compensating them for 75% of the losses in excess of 
the 5% threshold. Crucially however, commercial revenues, including rental 
amounts, are not considered relevant losses and will not be compensated for under 
this scheme. 

5.18 The amount receivable by the Authority under the income guarantee scheme is 
based on actual irrecoverable losses incurred, compared to the budgets set by the 
Authority for eligible income streams. The amount receivable will therefore be 
subject to change over the course of the financial year as the full extent of 
irrecoverable revenue losses emerge.  

5.19 At the end of September 2020, the estimated amount of compensation receivable 
under the scheme for the year to March 2021, based on forecast (net) losses 
associated with eligible income streams, is £1,218k. This compares with an 
estimate of £1,471k at the end of July. The decrease of £253k reflects a reduction in 
the estimated net irrecoverable losses and is largely offset by a corresponding 
increase in expected income receivable from fees and charges.   

  Key Variances 

5.20 Significant variances between budget and projected outturn have been addressed 
through the revised budget. A summary of projected outturn variances and 
associated changes included in the revised budget, are set out in table 6 below. 

5.21 Variances not considered significant have not been addressed through changes to 
the budget. When taken together, these variances are currently projected to have a 
net adverse impact on the Authority’s overall financial position of just £5k. These 
remaining variances will continue to be monitored and reported on as part of the 
regular monitoring reports and action taken to reduce or eliminate them over the 
remainder of the financial year. 

  

Page 47



Table 6 – Impact of identified variances on the revised budget 

 
 

 Budget Adjustments   

Outturn 
Variance 

Recurring 
Non 

recurring 
Salary  Total 

Un-
adjusted 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Economic Growth, Community 
Development & Placemaking 

880 125 818 8 951 (71) 

Finance & Legal (277) 9 (312) (161) (464) 187 

Environmental Services 1,907 36 1,981 (113) 1,904 3 

Policy, Governance & People 
Resources 

(37) 0 79 (22) 57 (94) 

Leisure & Tourism (47) (41) 0 6 (35) (12) 

Customer Experience & 
Innovation 

424 (11) 334 109 432 (8) 

Parish Precepts 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 2,850 118 2,900 (173) 2,845 5 

 
6.0  Revised revenue budget 2020-21 

6.1 The proposed revised revenue budget for 2020-21 and the associated increase in 
the Council’s net budget requirement of £2,845k is summarised in table 7. 

Table 7: 2020-21 Revised Revenue Budget 

 
Net Expenditure Budget 

2020-21  
 

Change 

 
 

Para 
Original  

Budget 

Revised 

Budget 
 £000 £000 £000  

Base Budget 11,449 11,449 0  

Change in salary costs - recurring 146 177 31 6.10 

Recurring growth  1,042 1,279 237 6.8 

Recurring savings  (397) (516) (119) 6.8 

Recurring (base) budget 12,240 12,389 149  

Change in salary costs - non-recurring 0 (204) (204) 6.10 

Non-recurring growth  756 4,447 3,691 6.9 

Non-recurring savings (194) (985) (791) 6.9 

Net Service Expenditure budget  12,802 15,647 2,845  

Expenditure on earmarked priorities  1,855 1,475 (380)  

Proposed budget (excl. parish precepts) 14,657 17,122 2,465  

Parish Precepts 2,458 2,458 0  

Proposed Budget (incl. parish precepts) 17,115 19,580 2,465  

Less: Planned use of earmarked balances  (1,855) (1,475) 380  

Net Budget Requirement  15,260 18,105 2,845  

 

Page 48



6.2  The Council’s revised net budget requirement is funded as follows: 

Table 8: 2020-21 Revised Revenue Funding 

 
 

2020-21  
 

Change 

 
 

Para 
Original  

Budget 

Revised 

Budget 

 £000 £000 £000  

Government Grants & Taxation  15,260 18,072 2,812 6.12 

Contribution from/(to) General Fund 0 33 33  

Total Funding 15,260 18,105 2,845  

 

6.3 A summary of the proposed changes to the Net Service Expenditure Budget of is 
set out in table 9. 

Table 9: Summary of changes to Net Service Expenditure budget  

 £’000 

Recurring adjustments  

Increase to the salary budget 31 

recurring growth bids to address forecast variances 237 

recurring savings bids to address forecast variances (119) 

TOTAL - Recurring adjustments  149 

  

Non-recurring adjustments  

Reduction in the salary budget (204) 

non-recurring growth bids to address forecast variances 3,691 

non-recurring savings bids to address forecast variances (791) 

TOTAL – Non-recurring adjustments 2,696 

  

TOTAL – Change to net service budget 2,845 

6.4 These changes:  

 increase the Council’s recurring (base) budget from £12,240k to 
£12,389k; an increase of £149k, and 

 increase the net service expenditure budget for 2020-21 from £12,802k to 
£15,647k; an increase of £2,845k. 

6.5 The revised net service expenditure budget will be met from the increase in income 
from Government Grants & Taxation associated with the additional unringfenced 
grants awarded in response to the Covid-19 pandemic (Covid-19 emergency 
funding tranches 2, 3 and 4 and grant receivable under the income guarantee 
scheme). 

Changes to the Net Service Expenditure Budget 

6.6  A summary of the proposed changes to the net service expenditure budget by 
portfolio is set out in table 10. 

  

Page 49



 Table 10: Summary of Net Service Expenditure by Portfolio 

Portfolio Original 
budget1 

Recurring 
growth & 
savings 

Non- 
recurring 
growth & 
savings  

Salary 
changes 

Revised  
budget  

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Economic Growth, Community 
Development & Placemaking 

(217) 125 819 8 735 

Finance & Legal 4,958 8 (312) (161) 4,493 

Environmental Services 2,726 37 1,980 (113) 4,630 

Policy, Governance & People 
Resources 

2,749 0 79 (22) 2,806 

Leisure & Tourism 324 (41) 0 6 289 

Customer Experience & Innovation 2,262 (11) 334 109 2,694 

Net Service Expend.  12,802 118 2,900 (173) 15,647 

1 Adjusted for in-year virements and revised portfolios  

6.7 Further details of the growth and saving bids underlying these increases are set out 
below. 

Recurring Growth and Savings bids 

6.8 Details of the net recurring growth bid of £237k and recurring savings bid of £119k, 
included as adjustments to the Council’s base budget, are summarised in tables 11 
and 12. If approved, these changes will impact on the base budget for 2020-21 and 
future financial years. 

Table 11: Recurring growth 

Portfolio/Service Description Growth 

  £000 

Recurring growth bids to address forecast variances 

Customer Experience & Innovation  

IT Services Replacement of the existing £40k recurring capital budget 
supporting a rolling program of upgrades to, and replacement 
of, desktop computers, laptops and tablets with a recurring 
£40k revenue budget. 

40 

Customer Services Incorporation of front of house services at Wigton office into 
the leased office agreement. This additional cost is offset by a 
saving within the Customer Services pay group.  

5 

Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking 

Building Control Reduction in fee income from site inspections carried out on 
behalf of Carlisle City Council following the decision by Story 
Homes and Persimmon Homes to use NHBC rather than 
LABC for building control.  

25 

Planning Reduction in planning applications and associated fee income 
particularly in relation to larger schemes as result of past land 
banking activity by developers. 

100 

Environmental Services 

Parks & Grounds 
Maintenance 

Reduction in income following cessation of grass cutting for a 
small number of parish councils & private groups  

9 

Trade Waste 
Removal of fee income budget in relation to charges for 
replacement bins.  

50 

Page 50



Portfolio/Service Description Growth 

  £000 

Finance & Legal 

Corporate Management Increase in External Audit Fees. 8 

Total recurring growth bids to address forecast variances 237 

Table 12: Recurring savings  

Portfolio/Service Description Growth 

  £000 

Customer Experience & Innovation  

Benefits 
To realign budget with mid-year estimates of Housing Benefit 
Subsidy receivable. 

(56) 

Leisure & Tourism 

Solway Coast AONB Grant funding of salary costs. (41) 

Environmental Services 

Allerdale Fleet Revision to budget to reflect current expenditure forecast (22) 

Total recurring savings to address forecast variances  (119) 

Non-recurring growth and savings bids 

6.9 Non-recurring growth of £3,691k and savings bids of £791k (net value £2,900k) 
submitted as part of this report are summarised in tables 13 and 14. If approved, 
these will impact on the 2020-21 budget but will not impact on the base budget for 
future financial years. 

Table 13: Non-recurring growth 

Portfolio/Service  Description Growth 

  £000 

Non-recurring growth bids to address forecast variances  

Customer Experience & Innovation  

Revenues Loss of income from court summons (net of payments to 
HMCS) as a consequence of Covid-19. 

90 

Benefits Reduction in income from the recovery of overpaid Housing 
Benefits. This follows from the suspension of recovery 
action on new debt, by both the Authority and DWP during 
Q1 & Q2 of 2020-21, in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

70 

IT services 
 

Additional ICT service costs incurred due to Covid-19, 
including: i) enabling all BT One Phone service users to 
work remotely, ii) enabling officers to access data services 
remotely in the absence or temporary loss of a residential 
internet service.  

42 

Covid-19 Homelessness Additional costs incurred in accommodating rough sleeps as 
part of the Governments response to the COVID-19 crisis. 

132 

Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking 

Corporate Property 
Maintenance 

Demolition of Westfield Welfare building. 
 

22 

Camping & Caravan Site Lockdown and other measures imposed in response to the 
Covid-19 pandemic meant the camping & caravan site was 
closed until July 2020. Although the site has now re-opened, 

410 

Page 51



Portfolio/Service  Description Growth 

  £000 

its closure, along with additional costs incurred to make the 
campsite Covid-19 safe is expected to have a significant 
impact on the Authority’s share of profits from the site in 
2020-21. 

Workington Town Centre Reduction in the variable element of the quarterly rental 
income from the shopping centre as a consequence of   
lockdown, government restrictions and social distancing 
measures introduced in response to the Covid-19 
pandemic.  

89 

Planning Reduction in planning fee income as a consequence of the 
Covid-19 pandemic. Furloughing of staff by several key 
developers meant no submissions were received from them 
during lockdown and despite the subsequent easing of 
restrictions, indications are that no applications are 
expected from them during the remainder of the current 
financial year.  

78 

Markets Loss of income as a result of the cancellation of markets 
due to the Covid-19 pandemic and the reduction in the 
number of stalls to facilitate social distancing following their 
subsequent reopening. 

116 

Reopening High Streets 
Safely 

Costs relating to the reopening of high streets safely 
following the national lockdown; Eligible expenditure of up to 
£86k is eligible for reimbursement from an ERDF grant 
allocation from Central Governments Reopening High 
Streets Safely Fund. 

86 

Reedlands Business Park 
project 

Establishment of a non-recurring revenue budget to 
accommodate the write off of previously capitalised project 
expenditure and unwind associated capital financing. This 
includes recognition of the requirement to repay ERDF grant 
funding drawn-down to date of £145,559. This follows the 
decision made by the Executive on 14 October to 
discontinue the project. The impact of this write-off on 
unearmarked general fund balances is partly offset by the 
release of £95k from the Strategic Priorities Earmarked 
Reserve and the removal of interest costs on related 
borrowing of approximately £24k (included in Banking and 
Interest savings bid below). 

270 

Environmental Services 

Domestic Waste Costs associated with FCC operating the domestic waste 
service from 1 April 2020 to 3 April 2020. 

23 

Domestic Waste Costs associated with the delivery of replacement bins. 34 

Recycling Removal of charge for replacement bins. 32 

Recycling Costs associated with the delivery of replacement bins. 102 

Trace Waste Costs associated with the delivery of replacement bins. 5 

Trade Waste Loss of income (net of reductions in disposal costs) as a 
result of reductions in trade collections arising as a 
consequence of business closures during lockdown and 
other measures imposed in response to the Covid-19 
pandemic.  

420 

Off-street – Owned Car Parks Reduction in income from Machines, Season Tickets & 
Fixed Penalties due to Covid-19; This includes the impact of 
the temporary closure of car-parks and other local and 
national measures introduced in response to the pandemic 

1,090 

Page 52



Portfolio/Service  Description Growth 

  £000 

Multi-storey Car Park Loss of parking income at the MSCP arising from temporary 
closure of the car park and other measures introduced in 
response to the pandemic. 

213 

Off-street – Managed Car 
Parks 

Loss of (fee) income arising from reductions in the use of 
managed carparks as a result of the lockdown and other 
measures introduced in response to the pandemic.  

32 

Sport & Leisure Centres Additional budget pressures arising from closure of the 
Council’s leisure centres as a result of the Covid-19 
including the expected loss of budgeted income of £45k, 
receivable under the profit share arrangements with GLL 
and the agreement made to provide £40k of additional 
funding to GLL in response to circumstances created by the 
Covid-19 pandemic. 

78 

Finance & Legal 

Banking & Interest Reduction in investment income to reflect the significant 
falls in market yields since March 2020, investment returns 
achieved in the period April to September and forecast 
returns anticipated over the remainder of the financial year. 

40 

Covid-19 General Costs 
 

Unbudgeted costs associated with the Authority's response 
to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

37 

Policy, Governance & People Resources 

Assistance - Housing Services Reduction in fee income associated with the delivery of 
Disabled Facilities and Empty Homes Grants programme as 
a consequence Covid-19 and the restrictions in place during 
lockdown. 

34 

Track & Trace Expenditure to match grant received to fund the Council’s 
work on the Track and Trace process. 

96 

Head of Governance & 
Regulatory 

Removal of savings targets built into the 2020-21 budget, 
which will not be achieved due the impact of Covid-19. 

50 

Total Non-recurring growth bids to address forecast variances  3,691 

Table 14: Non-recurring savings 

Portfolio/Service  Description Saving 

  £000 

Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking 

Corporate Property 
Maintenance 

Reduction in the use of utilities due to Covid-19 working 
arrangements. 

(22) 

Festivals & Events Savings arising from the cancellation of Taste Cumbria, 
Workington Christmas promotions and the suspension of 
the small grants fund during 2020-21. 

(118) 

Head of Development 
Services 

Budget no longer required. Post fully funded from 
application of grant income carried forward at 31 March 
2020 and included in Earmarked Reserves.  

(6) 

Town Centres No advertising and promotions required in the financial year 
due to Covid-19. 

(20) 

Reopening High Streets 
Safely 

Government grant received to support the Covid-19 safety 
measures required in reopening the high streets   

(86) 

Finance & Legal 

Business Grants Covid-19 Receipt of additional New Burdens Grant for the 
administration of Business Grants introduced by 
government in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

(170) 

Insurance Savings against budget on premiums paid in 2020-21. (25) 

Page 53



Portfolio/Service  Description Saving 

  £000 

Banking and Interest Reduction in borrowing costs to reflect PWLB borrowing 
undertaken in 2019-20, updated interest rate forecasts for 
2020-21 and changes included in the revised capital 
programme in respect of the timing and amount of capital 
expenditure funded from borrowing. 

(150) 

MRP & Finance Charges Reduction in 2020-21 MRP to reflect 2019-20 capital outturn 
position  

(44) 

Environmental Services 

Community Services Pay 
Group 

Income received from secondment of Operations Manager 
to AWSL. 

(13) 

Street Cleansing Savings achieved through contractual arrangements. (11) 

Recycling Increase in income from domestic recycling (net of disposal 
cost) as a result of an increase recycling activity generated 
from the imposition of lockdown restrictions in response to 
the Covid-19 pandemic. 

(25) 

Policy, Governance & People Resources 

Track & Trace Grant received to support the Council’s Track and Trace 
work. 

(96) 

Human Resources New priorities coupled with a reduction in training requests 
due to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

(5) 

Total Non-recurring savings (791) 

Change in salary costs (Pay Groups) 

6.10 Details of the recurring and non-recurring salary cost adjustments made to net 
service expenditure are included in table 15. They include:  

 recurring growth of £31k; these changes will impact on the base budget for 
2020-21 and future financial years 

 non-recurring savings of £204k; these changes will not impact on the base 
budget for future financial years. 

Table 15: Changes to salary costs 

 

Recurring Non-
Recurring 

£000 £000 

Structure changes including reduction in hours  (36) (204) 

Additional cost of Pay Award 67 0 

 31 (204) 

Use of Contingencies 

6.11 The original approved budget included a contingency amount of £105,050 to cover 
unexpected expenditure. At the end of Quarter 2 this balance was fully allocated. 

  

 

 

Page 54



Government Grants and Taxation Financing 

6.12 Proposed changes to the financing element of the 2020-21 budget - including 
income from non-ring fenced government grants and business rates (NNDR) - are 
summarised in table 16. 

Table 16: Taxation and non-specific grant income 

 Original  
Budget 

£000 

Revised 
Budget 

£000 

Change  

 

£’000 

Para 

Revenue support grant 199 199 0 - 

Rural Services Delivery Grant 326 326 0 - 

New Homes Bonus 606 606 0 - 

Council tax – excluding parish element 5,400 5,400 0 - 

Council tax - parish precepts  2,458 2,458 0 - 

Collection fund surplus/(deficit) - Council Tax  21 21 0 - 

NNDR funding 6,250 6,250 0 6.13 

Other Grants – Covid-19 emergency fund 0 1,594 1,594 5.16 

Other – Covid-19 income guarantee scheme 0 1,218 1,218 5.17 

 15,260 18,072 2,812  

6.13 A summary of the funding from National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) in 2020-21 is 
set out in table 17. 

 
Table 17: NNDR funding 2020-21 

 
Budget 

£000 
Revised 

£000 
Change 

£000 

Fixed Elements:    

Allerdale share of NNDR Income  11,168 11,168 0 

Allerdale share of NNDR Income- Renewable energy 522 522 0 

Net tariff payable to Central Government (7,418) (7,418) 0 

Share of estimated collection fund surplus 138 138 0 

‘Fixed’ element of NNDR income 4,410 4,410 0 

Variable Elements:    

Reconciliation adjustment re prior years disregarded income (9) (7) 2 

Section 31 grant  2,298 8,498 6,200 

Levy payable (net of reduction under pool arrangements) (449) (491) (42) 

Variable element of NNDR income 1,840 8,000 6,160 

Total Fixed & Variable Elements 6,250 12,410 6,160 

Transfer to Earmarked Reserve 0 (6,160) (6,160) 

 6,250 6,250 0 

 

 

Page 55



7.0 Capital budget – projected outturn position 

7.1 The current capital budget is £14.69m, comprising: 

 £13.3m approved budget for 2020-21 

 £1.39m budget carry forward from 2019-20. 

7.2 The projected 2020-21 Capital Outturn position, as at the end of quarter 2 
(September 2020), is summarised in table 18. This shows: 

 a projected outturn position of £5.604m 

 an underspend compared to the budget of £9.086m (including £4.40m 
related to the Regeneration and Investment budget and £2.563m relating to 
the Reedlands Road Development)  

 expected budget carry forward requests (£5.141m) and reprofiling 
adjustments (£0.647m) incorporated into the 2020-21 revised budget, of 
£5.788m  

 remaining underspend of £3.298m including £3.273m addressed through net 
savings bids included in the 2020-21 revised budget proposals. 

Table 18: Capital Programme – Projected Outturn by Portfolio 

 Current 

Budget 

Projected 

Outturn 

Outturn 

Variance 

C/Fwd & 

Reprofiled 

Residual

Variance 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Capital Expenditure      

Economic Growth, Community 
Development & Placemaking 

10,907 2,561 (8,346) 5,151 (3,195) 

Finance & Legal  47 0 (47) 0 (47) 

Policy, Governance & People 
Resources 

1,601 1,164 (437) 437 0 

Environmental Services  752 736 (16) 0 (16) 

Leisure & Tourism 1,258 1,058 (200) 200 0 

Customer Experience & 
Innovation 

125 85 (40) 0 (40) 

Total - Capital Expenditure 14,690 5,604 (9,086) 5,788 (3,298) 

Capital Financing           

Capital Grants 6,193 3,741 (2,452) 518 (1,934) 

Capital Receipts 908 540 (368) 341 (27) 

Earmarked Reserves 0 0 0 0 0 

Revenue Budget 0 0 0 0 0 

General Fund Balances 98 71 (27) 0 (27) 

Borrowing 7,444 1,252 (6,192) 4,929 (1,263) 

Credit Arrangements 47 0 (47) 0 (47) 

Total - Capital Funding 14,690 5,604 (9,086) 5,788 (3,298) 

 

 

Page 56



Key Variances 

7.3 Commentary on the key projected outturn variances and the impact of these on the 
revised capital budget are set out in the following paragraphs. 

Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking 

7.4 The overall forecast variance against the capital budget for the Economic Growth, 
Community Development & Placemaking portfolio is £8,346k (underspend). 
Projected budget carry forwards and re-profiling adjustments of £5,151k, leaves a 
net variance of £3,195k of which £3,168k is dealt with by way of proposed revisions 
to the capital budget (see section 8 below).  

Table 19: Economic Growth portfolio key variances 
 Outturn 

Variance 
C/fwd & 

Reprofiled 
Residual 
Variance 

Budget 
revision 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Strategic Acquisitions (379) 379 0 0 

Demolition Moorclose Sport Centre (22) 0 (22) (22) 

Lillyhall Infrastructure (600) 0 (600) (600) 

Reedlands Road Development (2,564) 0 (2,564) (2,564) 

Maryport Regeneration (HAZ) (221) 221 0 0 

Regeneration and Investment (4,400) 4,400 0 0 

Markets - Plant and Equipment (27) 0 (27) 0 

Solar Panels  (50) 50 0 0 

Kirkgate Centre Contribution (100) 100 0 0 

Workington Hall Repair Scheme 18 0 18 18 

Other  (1) 1 0 0 

Total  (8,346) 5,151 (3,195) (3,168) 

Strategic Acquisitions – (underspend of £379k; budget to be carried forward to 
2021-22) 

7.5 The capital budget of £379,329 (funded from capital receipts and borrowing) was 
established to meet the costs of acquiring and redeveloping commercial properties 
to support business start-ups and the small business sector. This includes £200,000 
carried forward from 2019-20. No expenditure has been incurred against this budget 
in the period April to September 2020. However, the Council continues to explore 
opportunities to acquire land and property that will contribute to the delivery of key 
strategic objectives.   

7.6 No revisions to the existing budget are proposed as part of the 2020-21 revised 
budget and a request to carry forward any unused budget will be submitted as part 
of the 2020-21 outturn report. This will ensure the budget remains available to take 
advantage of property acquisition and development opportunities that support the 
achievement of Council Priorities. 

 

Page 57



Demolition Moorclose Sport Centre (underspend of £22k; budget removed from 
capital programme) 

7.7 The remaining budget for this scheme was earmarked to meet a financial 
contribution towards the cost of a new boiler system for the Moorclose Community 
Centre. This budget (financed from general fund balances) is no longer required 
and has been removed from the capital programme as part of the 2020-21 revised 
budget proposals. 

Lillyhall Infrastructure (underspend of £600k; budget removed from capital 
programme) 

7.8 The Council is seeking to progress development of the site, acquired in 2018-19, by 
securing planning approval and carrying out enabling infrastructure works, 
alongside an element of speculative commercial development, to enable ‘product’ in 
terms of sites and units to be brought to the market and thus provide availability and 
certainty to attract business to the location. No expenditure was incurred on the 
project in the period April to September 2020.  

7.9 Expenditure on this scheme was expected to be financed from LEP Grant funding 
(£1.6m) and other private sector contributions (£600k). The latter is, however, no 
longer expected to be forthcoming. Match funding to meet the total forecasted 
scheme expenditure of £2.2m will instead be met from the Regeneration and 
Investment budget (see below), resulting in the reported forecast variance of £600k 
against the current Lillyhall Infrastructure budget. This is addressed in the revised 
budget proposals (see below).   

Reedlands Road Development – (underspend of £2,564k; budget removed from 
capital programme) 

7.10 The Reedlands Road scheme involves the development of additional industrial units 
on land, owned by the Authority at Reedlands Road, Workington. Initial site survey 
work identified difficult ground conditions, the presence of mine-workings and the 
need for further ground investigation works to be carried out as part of the detailed 
design process.  

7.11 These investigations identified underlying mine-workings, buried obstructions and 
extremely poor ground conditions requiring changes to the original construction 
plans. These have in turn contributed to a significant increase in forecast project 
costs. At the end of RIBA Stage 4, estimated project costs had increased to 
£3,765,987 compared with a total scheme budget of £2,829,463. In response to the 
escalation in costs and the challenges posed by the difficult ground conditions, the 
project was paused and a full options appraisal undertaken. Following this appraisal 
a report was presented to the Council’s Executive on 14 October recommending 
that members approve discontinuation of the project. The forecast underspend 
reflects the recommended discontinuation of the scheme, including the write-off to 
revenue of project costs incurred during 2020-21. 

7.12 Following the Executive's decision on 14 October to approve discontinuation of the 
project, the remaining budget (£2.564m) and associated financing (grant £1.341m 
and borrowing of £1.223m) has been removed from the capital programme as part 

Page 58



of the 2020-21 revised budget proposal. A non-recurring revenue bid of £269,677 
has also been included in the revised 2020-21 revenue budget to accommodate to 
the write off of previously capitalised project expenditure and unwind associated 
capital financing. This includes recognition of the requirement to repay ERDF grant 
funding drawn-down to date of £145,559. 

Maryport Regeneration (HAZ) (£221k underspend; budget reprofiled to 2021-22 and 
2022-23) 

7.13 The current budget of £280k, comprising 150k approved in 2019-20 (funded from 
capital receipts) and £130k (funded from borrowing) transferred from the Healthy 
Homes (Empty Homes) budget in 2020-21 is earmarked to support the Maryport 
Regeneration Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) Programme. No expenditure was 
charged against this budget in the six months to September 2020. £58,750 of the 
existing budget is forecast to be spent during the remainder of the current financial 
year with the remaining budget (£221,250) forecast to be utilised in 2021-22 
(£105,000) and 2022-23 (£116,250).  

7.14 The Authority's contribution of £280,000 is earmarked as a contribution toward 
those elements of the project expenditure meeting the statutory definition of capital 
as defined in the Local Government Act 2003. Programme costs relating to repairs 
and other items of revenue expenditure will not be eligible to be met from the 
Council's contribution (although these may be eligible for HAZ grant funding). 

Regeneration and investment (£4,400k underspend unused budget to be carried 
forward to 2021-22) 

7.15 Following the Executive’s decision in June 2019 not to proceed with previous 
proposals for the stadium development, the capital budget of £5m previously 
allocated for the project in 2019-20 was reprofiled from 2019-20 to 2020-21 and 
repurposed for use in supporting regeneration and investment opportunities. No 
expenditure has been incurred against this budget in the period April to September 
2020. £600k of the available budget has however been allocated to provide match 
funding for the Lillyhall scheme in order to offset the funding shortfall created by the 
loss of third party contributions (see comments above).    

7.16 To reflect this allocation the 2020-21 revised budget proposals include the transfer 
of 600k (funded from borrowing) from the Regeneration and Investment budget to 
the Lillyhall Infrastructure budget. A request to carry forward any unused budget, 
currently forecast at £4.4m, to 2021-22 will be submitted as part of the 2020-21 
capital outturn report. 

Solar Panels (underspend of £50k budget to be reprofiled to 2021-22) 

7.17 The budget of £50,000 was established to support the installation of solar panels on 
operational properties. As a consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, it has not 
been possible to progress this scheme. No expenditure has therefore been incurred 
on the project in the period April to September 2020 and no expenditure is expected 
to be incurred on the project during the current financial year. The revised budget 
includes proposals to re-profile the existing budget from 2020-21 to 2021-22. 

Page 59



 Kirkgate Centre Contribution (underspend of £100k to be carried forward to 2021-
22) 

7.18 A budget of £100k was approved in 2017-18 to enable the Council to make a capital 
contribution to support the financing of a project to renovate and extend the facilities 
at the Kirkgate Arts and Heritage Centre, Cockermouth. The Council’s contribution 
is subject to the outcome of a bid made to the Heritage Lottery Fund by the 
charitable body responsible for running the centre. No expenditure was incurred on 
the project in the six months to September 2020 and no expenditure is currently 
forecast to be incurred during the current financial year. The proposed 2020-21 
revised capital budget includes no changes to the existing budget and a request to 
carry forward any unused budget to 2021-22 will be submitted as part of the 2020-
21 capital outturn report. 

 Workington Hall Repair Scheme (£18k forecast overspend; Budget growth bid of 
£18k) 

7.19 The current capital budget of £194k covers refurbishment and consolidation works 
necessary to ensure progression towards eventual removal of the building from the 
At Risk Register. The project is funded from a grant of £150k from Historic England 
with the balance being met from capital receipts (12k), general fund balances (£26k) 
and borrowing (£6k). Work commenced on site in September and is expected to be 
completed by the end of the current financial year. Forecasted expenditure at the 
end of September reflects contracted costs, inclusive of provisional sums and 
contingencies contained within the tender submission that may need to utilised as 
work progresses. 

7.20 A bid of £17,893, funded from general fund balances, is included in the 2020-21 
revised budget proposals to cover the forecasted expenditure and ensure sufficient 
budget exists should it be necessary to draw on contingencies to accommodate 
variations required to the original scope of works as work progresses. 

Finance and Legal 

7.21 The capital budget for the Finance and Legal portfolio is currently forecast to be 
underspent by £47k. This is addressed by way of a savings bid included in the 
revised capital budget proposals for 2020-21.  

Table 20: Finance and Legal key variances 

 Outturn 
Variance 

C/fwd & 
Reprofiled 

Residual 
Variance 

Budget 
revision 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Leased Assets - property, vehicles & 
equipment  

(47) 0 (47) (47) 

Total  (47) 0 (47) (47) 

Leased Assets - property, vehicles & equipment (underspend £47k); budget 
removed from capital programme 

7.22  The current capital budget was predicated on the assumption that changes to the 
rules governing the accounting treatment of leases would come into force on 1 April 

Page 60



2020 and mean that, with the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets, all leased assets and the related lease liabilities will be recognised on 
the Authority’s balance sheet. Under these new requirements the acquisition of an 
asset under a lease (excluding short-term leases and leases of low-value assets) 
will be treated as capital expenditure. A budget of £97k, including £47k in 2020-21, 
was therefore established to cover the initial cost of assets expected to be acquired 
under leases on or after 1 April 2020.  

7.23 In response to Covid-19, CIPFA/LASAACs Local Authority Accounting Code Board 
took the decision in March 2020 to defer implementation of IFRS 16 from 1 April 
2020 to 1 April 2021 in-line with the government’s Financial Reporting Advisory 
Board’s proposals for central government departments. As a consequence, the 
2020-21 capital budget of £47k will not be required. 

Policy, Governance and People Resources   

7.24 The capital budget for the Policy, Governance and People Resources portfolio is 
currently forecast to be underspent by £437k. This is matched by a forecast budget 
carry forward (re-profiling adjustment) of £437k, leaving no overall variance.  

Table 21: Policy, Governance and People Resources  portfolio key variances 

 Outturn 
Variance 

C/fwd & 
Reprofiled 

Residual 
Variance 

Budget 
revision 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Disabled Facilities Grants  (261) 261 0 0 

Discretionary Grants (50) 50 0 0 

Ladore Toilets - conversion (34) 34 0 0 

Housing Improvement Projects (92) 92 0 0 

Total  (437) 437 0 0 

Disabled Facilities Grants (£261k underspend; £261k to be carried forward as part 
of 2020-21 capital outturn report) 

7.25 This scheme involves mandatory and discretionary grant support to individuals to 
meet the cost of housing adaptations that enable people to stay living in their own 
home for longer. The Authority has a statutory duty to provide adaptations to the 
homes of disabled people who qualify for a mandatory DFG. Expenditure on DFGs 
is fully funded from an annual grant paid to upper-tier authorities as part of the 
Better Care Funding allocations and cascaded to district councils responsible for 
providing DFGs. During the period April to September, Covid-19 and the measures 
introduced to control transmission of the virus, has had a significant impact on the 
ability of contractors to undertake work related to DFG applications and on the 
levels of DFG expenditure incurred to date. It has also added to the challenges of 
forecasting demand for grant support and levels of expenditure over the remainder 
of the year. 

7.26 In recognition of the unpredictability of demand for DFGs and the additional 
uncertainties generated by the Covid-19 pandemic, over levels of expenditure 
expected to be incurred over the remainder of the current financial year, no 
adjustment has been made to the existing budget. A request to carry forward any 

Page 61



unused budget and associated grant funding will be submitted as part of the 2020-
21 capital outturn report. 

Discretionary Grants (£50k underspend) budget reprofiled from 2020-21 to 2021-22 

7.27 The budget of £50k was established to provide match funding in connection with an 
application to the Electricity North West Empowering Our Communities Fund, to 
deliver the Cold to Cosy Homes Scheme, in Allerdale, from April 2020. Expenditure 
on this scheme is financed from capital grants (£40k) and capital receipts (£10k).  
The scheme was launched in September and will run over two years. However 
there are currently no plans in place to utilise this budget during the current financial 
year and the £50k budget has been reprofiled from 2020-21 to 2021-22 as part of 
the 2020-21 revised budget proposals. 

Ladore Toilets – conversion (£34k underspend; budget reprofiled to 2021-22) 

7.28 The budget of £44,500 was established for the development of the disused toilet 
block adjacent to the Ladore Hotel in the Borrowdale Valley into holiday 
accommodation. Expenditure on this scheme is financed from capital receipts. 
Forecasted expenditure on this scheme in 2020-21 is £10,000.  The remaining 
£34,500 from the existing budget has been reprofiled from 2020-21 to 2021-22 as 
part of the 2020-21 revised budget proposals. 

Housing Improvement Projects (£92k underspend; budget reprofiled to 2021-22) 

7.29 A budget carry forward of £91,938 was agreed as part of the 2019-20 capital outturn 
report and allocated to support the Maryport Future High Street Fund scheme. No 
expenditure has been incurred against this budget in the period April to September 
2020 and no expenditure is forecasted to be incurred over the remainder of the 
current financial year.  

7.30 The 2020-21 revised budget includes the proposal to reprofile the available budget 
from 2020-21 to 2021-22 where it will be used to support the Maryport Future High 
Street Fund scheme. 

  Environmental Services  

7.31 The overall forecast variance against the capital budget for the Environmental 
Services portfolio summarised below, is £16k. 

Table 22: Environmental Services portfolio key variances 
 Outturn 

Variance 

C/fwd & 
Reprofiled 

Residual 
Variance 

Budget 
revision 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

LATCo - vehicles and Equipment (17) 0 (17) 0 

Car Park - signage and equipment (5) 0 (5) 0 

Brow-Top Enhancement Schemes 6 0 6 0 

Total  (16) 0 (16) 0 

 

Page 62



Leisure and Tourism 

7.32 The capital budget for the Leisure and Tourism portfolio is currently forecast to be 
underspent by £200k. This is matched by a budget carry-forward (re-profiling 
adjustment) of £200k included in the 2020-21 revised budget proposals, leaving no 
overall variance. 

Table 23: Leisure and Tourism portfolio key variances 
 Outturn 

Variance 

C/fwd & 
Reprofiled 

Residual 
Variance 

Budget 
revision 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Solway Coast Pathway (200) 200 0 0 

Total  (200) 200 0 0 

 

Solway Coast Pathway (Underspend of £200k to be carried forward to 2020-21) 

7.33 A budget of £1,250k was approved in 2018-19 to support the creation of a multi-
user coastal pathway, linking Silloth-on-Solway, the West Cumbria Cycle network 
and the Hadrian’s cycle route. The scheme is funded by a grant of £1million from 
the Coastal Communities Fund (CCF) and £250k from the RDPE Tourism 
Infrastructure Fund. Expenditure of £203,271 was incurred during financial years 
2018-19 and 2019-20. The remaining budget for this scheme currently stands at 
£1,046,729, including £276,949 carried forward from 2019-20. 

7.34 Construction work to create the Solway Coast pathway is now underway with work 
to create the new section of path between Allonby and Silloth due to be completed 
by the end of the current calendar year. A schedule of associated capital works has 
also been drawn-up in line with the Coastal Communities funding bid. Elements of 
these associated works (car park improvement works and resurfacing of the existing 
path) will be completed during the current financial year alongside the work being 
carried out by main contractor. Other elements require planning and or third-party 
land-owner consent and will be undertaken in the 2021-22 financial year following 
completion of feasibility and prioritisation exercises.   

7.35 Current forecasts are for expenditure in the region of £847k to be spent during the 
current year with the remainder of the project budget (£200k) to be spent in the 
2021-22 financial year. In line with these forecasts the proposed revised capital 
budget for 2020-21 include an adjustment to £200k to reprofile £200k from 2020-21 
to 2021-22. 

Customer Experience and Innovation  

7.36 The capital budget for the Customer Experience and Innovation portfolio is currently 
forecast to be underspent by £40k. This is addressed by way of a savings bid 
included in the revised capital budget proposals for 2020-21. 

 

 

 

Page 63



Table 24: Customer Experience and Innovation portfolio key variances 
 Outturn 

Variance 

C/fwd & 
Reprofiled 

Residual 
Variance 

Budget 
revision 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £000 

IT Equipment  (40) 0 (40) (40) 

Total  (40) 0 (40) (40) 

IT Equipment (£40k underspend – budget removed) 

7.37 The current capital programme includes a recurring capital budget of £40k per 
annum, funded from borrowing, to support a rolling program of upgrades to, and 
replacement of, desktop computers, laptops and tablets.  

7.38 To reduce the administrative burden associated with the capitalisation of large 
numbers of small value items, which individually and collectively are not material to 
the Authority's financial statements, the cost of such items are typically charged 
against the revenue budget rather than capitalised with only items of significant 
value recorded as capital expenditure. To better reflect the accounting treatment of 
these items, the proposed revised budget for 2020-21 includes the removal of the 
recurring capital budget from the capital programme and its replacement with a 
recurring revenue growth bid of £40k.  

8.0 Revised Capital Budget  

8.1 A summary of the proposed adjustments to the three year capital budget is set out 
in table 25. These changes comprise:  

 re-profiling adjustments of £781k, including the transfer of £647k of 
expenditure and associated financing from 2020-21 to 2021-22 in line with 
current expenditure forecasts 

 growth bids of £1,515k (£859k in 2020-21, £372k in 2021-22 and £284k in 
2022-23),  

 budget savings bids (associated with reported forecast variances at 30 
September) of £3,353k, including £3,273k in 2020-21. 

Table 25: Revised Capital Budget – summary of changes 

 

Financial year  

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Total  

Capital Scheme £000 £000 £000 £000 

Original (Current) Budget 14,690 1,611 1,534 17,835 

Re-profiling adjustments  (647) 781 (134) 0 

Capital Growth - see table below 859 372 284 1,515 

Capital Savings  - see table below (3,273) (40) (40) (3,353) 

Proposed Revised Budget 11,629 2,724 1,644 15,997 

 

 

Page 64



Capital Growth and Savings  

8.2 In addition to the reprofiling adjustments and savings and growth bids associated 
with reported variances at 30 September outlined in Section 7, a number of new 
capital expenditure bids have been submitted for approval as part of the 2020-21 
revised budget proposals. These are summarised in table 26.  
 

Table 26: Summary of Capital Bids and Savings   

Capital Scheme 

Financial year   

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 Total bid 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Growth Bids     

Maryport Regeneration (HAZ) 101 240 284 625 

Workington - Towns funding scheme 502 0 0 502 

Brow-Top Enhancement Schemes 238 0 0 238 

Maryport Future High Streets initiative 0 132 0 132 

Workington Hall Repair Scheme* 18 0 0 18 

sub-total - growth bids 859 372 284 1,515 

Savings Bids     

Demolition Moorclose Sport Centre* (22)  0 0 (22) 

Lillyhall – Infrastructure* (600) 0 0 (600) 

Reedlands Road* (2,564) 0 0 (2,564) 

Leased Assets - property, vehicles & 
equipment * 

(47) 0 0 (47) 

IT Equipment * (40) (40) (40) (120) 

sub-total -  savings (3,273)  (40)  (40)  (3,353)  

Total Bids (2,414) 332 244 (1,838) 

*to address reported variance at 30 Sept 

Maryport Regeneration (HAZ) (growth bid £625k) 

8.3 Following confirmation in April of the award of Heritage Action Zone Funding from 
Historic England of £592.5k (including capital funding of £470k) the 2020-21 revised 
capital programme includes proposals to:  

 reprofile the existing budget across the financial years 2020-21 to 2022-23 in 
line with current delivery timetable and expenditure profile 

 increase in the total scheme budget though a growth bid of £625k allocated 
across financial years 2020-21 to 2022-23 and funded from HAZ grant of 
£470k and private sector contributions of £155k.  

8.4 Key capital projects within the scheme include the refurbishment of four key high 
street buildings (including Maryport Town Hall and the Maritime Museum), an 
extensive shopfront grant scheme and public realm works. The growth bid of £625k 
brings the total budget for the scheme to £905k. This is funded from the HAZ grant 
of £470k, private sector contributions of £155k, capital receipts of £150k and 
borrowing of £130k. 

Page 65



Workington - Towns funding scheme and Brow-top enhancement schemes (growth 
bid £750k) 

8.4 As part of Central government response to aid economic recovery from the Covid-
19 pandemic, the Authorty was invited to submit proposals for accelerated funding 
through the Towns Fund programme in respect of projects capable of being 
completed by the end of the current financial year.  

8.5 The Authority was notified in September of its success in securing funding of £750k, 
to fund a number of capital projects that are in line with the Towns Fund intervention 
framework. More specifically, the funding will be used to:  

 expand the existing Brow-top enhancement scheme to:  

 create a dedicated cycleway through the underpass between Central 
Way and the Brow Top car park, improve lighting and introduce 
Workington themed artwork to the walls of the underpass to make it more 
attractive for users  

 make public realm improvements to the Cloffocks area adjacent to 
Workington Leisure Centre by creating an outdoor events and activity 
area. This will include new pathways for walking and jogging, a new 
paved area to create a suitable space for a mobile big screen for public 
viewing of major events and high-quality outdoor gym equipment  

 support the proposed demolition and redevelopment of the former Opera House 
site in the town centre.  

Maryport Future High Streets initiative (growth bid £132k) 

8.6 The three year capital programme 2020-21 to 2022-23 approved in March 2020 
included £500k (£250k in 2021-22 and 2022-23) to support the programme of works 
being developed as part of the business case for the Maryport Future High Streets 
initiative. This expenditure is unfinanced and will be met from borrowing. 

8.7 A report setting out the detailed business case for the Regeneration of Maryport 
Town Centre was subsequently presented to the Council’s Executive on 15 July 
2020. Following approval of the business case and the Authority’s £724k 
contributions towards the capital costs of the scheme, the final business case was 
submitted to the Government's Future High Streets Fund team on July 30 2020. An 
announcement on the outcome of that submission is expected later this year. 

8.8 The growth bid of £132k included in the 2020-21 revised budget proposals, coupled 
with a reprofiling adjustment of £250k to move the existing budget of £250k from 
2022-23 to 2021-22 and £92k allocated from the Housing Improvements budget, 
brings the total capital budget (in 2021-22) to £724k. This represents the Authority’s 
contribution towards the capital costs of the scheme and aligns the budget provision 
with the contribution agreed by the Council’s Executive in July. Scheme costs to be 
financed from Future High Streets grant funding and from other (private sector) 
contributions are not currently included in the capital programme and any further 
adjustment to the capital budget to reflect those costs and related funding, remains 
subject to the outcome of the grant application process. 

 

Page 66



 Proposed revised capital programme 

8.9 The original three year capital budget, inclusive of the approved budget carry 
forward from 2019-20 is £17,835,418. This comprises planned expenditure of 
£14,690,282 in 2020-21, £1,611,000 in 2021-22 and £1,534,136 in 2022-23. 

8.10 The proposed revised three year capital budget of £15,997,384 is summarised in 
Table 26. This comprises the original capital budget of £17,835,418, net capital 
savings bids of £1,838,034 and re-profiling adjustments. 

Table 27: Proposed revised capital programme  

 
Current  
budget  

Budget 
change 

(new bids) 

Revised 
Budget  

Revised expenditure profile1 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Gross expenditure        

Economic Growth, Community 
Development & Placemaking 

11,407 (1,909) 9,498 8,071 1,027 400 

Finance & Legal  97 (47) 50 0 31 19 

Policy, Governance.& People 
Resources 

4,029 0 4,029 1,425 1,390 1,214 

Environmental Services  839 238 1,077 990 76 11 

Leisure  & Tourism 1,258 0 1,258 1,058 200 0 

Customer Experience & Innovation 205 (120) 85 85 0 0 

Total Expenditure: 17,835 (1,838) 15,997 11,629 2,724 1,644 

Financed by:        

External grant funding:       

Disabled Facilities Grant (BCF)  3,642 0 3,642 1,214 1,214 1,214 

SCP Housing grant 57 0 57 0 57 0 

ERDF grant 1,341 (1,341) 0 0 0 0 

LEP Growth Deal funding  1,600 0 1,600 1,600 0 0 

Contribution - Lillyhall 600 (600) 0 0 0 0 

Coastal Communities Fund  797 0 797 797 0 0 

Other grants - Workington Hall 150 0 150 150 0 0 

Other grants - Solway Coast  250 0 250 50 200 0 

Other grants /contributions 242 (10) 232 175 46 11 

Accelerated Towns Fund 0 750 750 750 0 0 

HAZ Grant 0 470 470 69 171 230 

HAZ -private sector contribution 0 155 155 32 69 54 

ABC resources & borrowing       

Capital Receipts 908 0 908 647 261 0 

General Fund 98 (4) 94 94 0 0 

Borrowing (unfinanced expend.) 8,053 (1,211) 6,842 6,051 675 116 

Credit Arrangements  97 (47) 50 0 31 19 

Total financing 17,835 (1,838) 15,997 11,629 2,724 1,644 

1 inclusive of re-profiling adjustments 

Page 67



Financing of Capital Expenditure  

8.11 The net capital savings bids of £1,838,034 outlined above will result in: 

 a net reduction in capital expenditure funded from grants of £575,694 

 a net reduction in the amount of capital expenditure funded from borrowing 
and credit arrangements of £1,258,196  

 a reduction in the use of general fund balances to fund the capital 
programme of £4,144.   

8.12 Expenditure which is unfinanced (and funded either from PWLB loans or internal 
borrowing) will require the Council to make an annual charge to its general fund to 
meet the capital cost of this expenditure. This charge, known as the minimum 
revenue provision (MRP), is calculated in accordance with the Council’s approved 
MRP policy and is normally charged from the financial year following the one in 
which the expenditure is incurred. Any expenditure which is unfinanced (i.e. met 
from borrowing) will therefore generate an increase in the amount of MRP included 
in the revenue budget. 

8.13 The draw-down of additional external loans, whether from the PWLB or another 
source, will also increase the amount of interest payable. Reductions in interest 
costs arising from the reduction in the amount of capital expenditure funded from 
borrowing are included within the savings bids outlined in section 6 of this report. 

Capital Resources 

8.14 The impact of the proposed revised capital programme and associated financing on 
the levels of capital resources (capital receipts and capital grants) available to the 
Council is summarised in table 28. The impact on the Council’s General Fund and 
Earmarked (General Fund) balances is set out in section 7 of this report. 

Table 28: Capital receipts and grants available to fund the capital programme 

 
Capital 

Receipts 

Grant & contributions 

Housing Non-housing 

£000 £000 £000 

Balance as at 31 March 2019 1,134 57 191 

Received in prior year (receipt in advance at 
31.3.20 

0 0 872 

Received during 2020-21 (YTD) 20 1,214 2 

Forecast to be received in 2020-21 0 0 2,749 

Available for allocation 1,154 1,271 3,814 

Allocation:    

Financing proposed capital budget 2020-21 (648) (1,214)  (3,623)  

Financing budget after 2021-22  (261) (57)  0 

Ring-fenced resources not yet brought into 
budget 

(45) 0 (191)  

Balance unallocated  200 0 0 

 

Page 68



8.15 The items identified as 'Ring-fenced resources’ comprise: 

 £45,000 relating to proceeds from the sale of Workington Hall Lodge, ring-
fenced for improvements to Hall Park 

 £191,213 relating to a number of specific capital grants. 

8.16 Capital receipts included in table 28 do not include anticipated receipts from 
property disposals or other (capital) transactions expected to be completed in 2020-
21. Capital receipts arising from the disposal of property or otherwise are not 
allocated to finance the capital programme until received. This avoids the potential 
impact on the Council’s general fund should the Council fail to realise the expected 
capital receipts and the past financing decisions need to be unwound. 

8.17 Any additional capital receipts received after the date of this report will be 
considered as part of the 2021-22 budget setting process.  

9.0 Impact on General Fund and Earmarked Reserve Balances 

General Fund balances  

9.1 The impact of the proposed revisions to the 2020-21 revenue and capital budgets 
on the Council’s general fund and earmarked general fund balances (Earmarked 
Reserves) is summarised in the following tables. 

Table 29: Estimated General Fund (GF) balances  

 

Original 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget 

Change 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

Opening Balances 3,357 3,357 0 

Adjustment to reflect the 2019-20 outturn position  (213) (213) 0 

Audited Balance at 1 April 2020 3,144 3,144 0 

Add: Release of Earmarked Reserves to GF 0 167 167 

Less: Approved use for 2020-21 capital programme1  (98) (94) 4 

Less: Use of GF to support 2020-21 Revenue Budget 0 (33) (33) 

Forecast balance at 31 March 2020 3,046 3,184 138 

Retained - Minimum Balance (2,700) (2,700) 0 

Available for Use 346 484 138 

1 budget carried forward from 2019-20 

 
Review of Earmarked Reserves  

9.2 The Council has a number of earmarked reserves, all of which have been created 
for a specific purpose. They include amounts:  

 set aside to meet planned future expenditure  

 retained for service departmental use – including budgets carried forward 
from prior years to meet known commitments  

 relating to unspent revenue grants where there are restrictions on use  

 set aside as a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or 
transactions.  

Page 69



9.3 The original budgeted use of earmarked reserves was set before the 2019-20 
outturn position was confirmed and before the approval of budget carry forward 
requests. The revised budget therefore includes adjustments to reflect the available 
balance of reserves following determination of the 2019-20 outturn position and the 
expected timing of expenditure from earmarked reserves.  

9.4 The Earmarked Reserve Balance at 1 April 2020 of £3,248k, can be split as follows: 

 £1,948k held for service expenditure 

 £1,300k held for accounting purposes or as contingency against specified 
risks.  

9.5 The balance at 31 March 2020 is currently forecast to be spent as follows:  

Table 30 - Estimated Earmarked General Fund balances  

 

Original 
Budget 

Current 
Budget1 

Revised 
Budget 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

Opening Balances 1 April 2019 3,467 3,467 3,467 

Projected movement in 2019-20 (2,015) (2,015) (2,015) 

Adjustment to reflect the 2019-20 outturn position  0 1,796 1,796 

Balance at 1 April 2020 1,452 3,248 3,248 

Less: Release to General Fund 0 0 (167) 

Add Planned Contributions to Earmarked Reserves 65 65 65 

Add Planned Contributions –s 31 grant (NNDR) 0 0 6,160 

Less: Planned use in 2020-21 - revenue  (190) (1,855) (1,475) 

Less: Planned use in 2020-21 - capital  0 0 0 

Forecast balance at 31 March 2021 1,327 1,458 7,831 

1 adjusted to reflect 2019-20 outturn and budget carry forwards 

9.6 Earmarked reserves are subject to ongoing monitoring and review to ensure they 
are held in-line with Council priorities and that the balance remains at the 
appropriate level. Further details of the planned use of earmarked reserves are set 
out in Appendix D. 

10.0 Treasury Management 

Treasury Management activity  

10.1 A summary of treasury management activity during August and September and 
year to date, including details of investment and borrowing transactions and 
information about the Council’s investment and loan (borrowing) portfolios is 
contained in Appendix E. 

Treasury and Prudential Indicators 

10.2 The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to determine and keep under 
review, limits on how much money it can afford to borrow by way of loans and other 
forms of credit. The processes the Council must follow in setting these limits (the 
‘Authorised Limit for External Debt’) is set out in the Prudential Code for Capital 
Finance in Local Authorities to which the Council is required to ‘have regard to’ 

Page 70



under provisions contained in the 2003 Act. In addition to the Authorised Limit, 
CIPFA’s Prudential and Treasury Management Codes and accompanying sector 
guidance, include a number of other key treasury management indicators designed 
to support and record local decision making in connection with capital and treasury 
activities. 

10.3 The Council’s Authorised Borrowing Limit (the statutory limit on borrowing under the 
Local Government Act 2003), Operational Boundary (the limit beyond which 
external debt is not expected to exceed) and other indicators and limits required by 
CIPFA’s Prudential and Treasury Management Codes were set out in the Council’s 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy for 2020-21. 
This was approved by the Full Council on 4 March 2020. 

10.4 During the period August to September and year to date, the Council has operated 
within the limits established by the treasury and prudential indicators set out in the 
Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-21. 

10.5 Further information relating to the Council’s treasury management activities during 
the six month period ending 30 September 2020 and compliance with the approved 
treasury and prudential indicators for 2020-21, can be found in the Treasury 
Management Operations – Mid-year review 2020-21. This is presented as a 
separate item on the Council Agenda. 

11.0 Updated Medium Term Plan 
 

11.1 The Council’s medium term financial plan (MTFP) 2020-21 to 2022-23 has been 
updated to incorporate this revised budget. A copy of the updated plan will be 
presented to members as part of the 2022-23 Budget Strategy and Medium Term 
Financial Plan Update report.  

12.0  Delivery arrangements 

12.1 Not applicable to this decision/report 

13.0 Implications and Impact 

 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

13.1 The revenue budget is set to support the Council in achieving its priorities as set out 
in the Council Plan and to facilitate control of expenditure on its activities. Sound 
financial management is essential to successful delivery of the Council’s financial 
plans, achievement of value for money and the stewardship and safeguarding of 
public money. 

 Finance/Resource implications 

13.2 Financial issues and implications are included within the main body of this report. 

 Legal and governance implications  

13.3 The Authority has a statutory obligation to set (and maintain) a balanced budget.  

Page 71



 Risk analysis 

13.4 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

 Increasing satisfaction and service 

13.5 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

 Equality impacts 

13.6 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

 Health and Safety impacts 

13.7 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

13.8 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

13.9 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

 Other significant implications 

13.10 There are no other significant implications arising from report. 

  

Page 72



Appendices attached to this report 

Appendix  Title of appendix 

Appendix A  Projected revenue outturn by portfolio  

Appendix B  Capital expenditure to date and forecast outturn  

Appendix C  Proposed revised capital budgets – 2020-21 to 2022-23 

Appendix D  Revised position on Earmarked Reserves 

Appendix E  Summary of Treasury Management Activity April to September 2020 

Background documents available 

Name of background document Where it is available 

None   

Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 

Catherine Nicholson 
Head of Financial Services  
telephone no: 01900-702503  
email: mailto:catherine.nicholson@allerdale.gov.uk 

Barry Lennox 
Financial Services Manager 
telephone no: 01900-7025086 
email: mailto:barry.lennox@allerdale.gov.uk  

Claire Felters 
Finance Business Partner  
telephone no: 01900-702505 
email: mailto:claire.felters@allerdale.gov.uk 

Page 73

mailto:catherine.nicholson@allerdale.gov.uk
mailto:barry.lennox@allerdale.gov.uk
mailto:claire.felters@allerdale.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



Approved 

Budget

Total Annual 

Budget

Projected Gross 

Outturn
Gross Variance

YE contr to 

reserve

Projected 

Outturn
Variance

REVENUE

Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking (204,406) (216,836) 637,982 854,818 25,000 662,982 879,818

Finance & Legal 5,054,694 4,957,483 4,681,474 (276,009) 0 4,681,474 (276,009)

Environmental Services 2,628,283 2,726,313 4,633,439 1,907,126 0 4,633,439 1,907,126

Policy, Governance & People Resources 2,684,668 2,749,154 2,671,651 (77,503) 40,000 2,711,651 (37,503)

Leisure & Tourism 350,915 323,415 276,804 (46,611) 0 276,804 (46,611)

Customer Experience & Innovation 2,287,606 2,262,231 2,685,875 423,644 0 2,685,875 423,644
REVENUE Sub Total 12,801,760 12,801,760 15,587,225 2,785,465 65,000 15,652,225 2,850,465

Parish Precepts 2,458,074 2,458,074 2,458,074 0 0 2,458,074 0

TOTAL REVENUE 15,259,834 15,259,834 18,045,299 2,785,465 65,000 18,110,299 2,850,465

RESERVE  FUNDED PROJECTS

Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking 19,000 604,519 581,691 (22,828) 0 581,691 (22,828)

Finance & Legal 100,000 250,173 140,475 (109,698) 0 140,475 (109,698)

Environmental Services 0 403,767 398,652 (5,115) 0 398,652 (5,115)

Policy, Governance & People Resources 51,600 305,580 106,006 (199,574) 0 106,006 (199,574)

Leisure & Tourism 0 60,596 60,596 0 0 60,596 0

Customer Experience & Innovation 19,000 230,621 187,324 (43,297) 0 187,324 (43,297)

TOTAL RESERVES 189,600 1,855,256 1,474,744 (380,512) 0 1,474,744 (380,512)

TOTAL 15,449,434 17,115,090 19,520,043 2,404,953 65,000 19,585,043 2,469,953

Portfolio

Net

Summary of Forecast Outturn by Portfolio

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
  

P
age 75



Approved 

Budget

Total Annual 

Budget

Projected Gross 

Outturn
Gross Variance

YE contr to 

reserve

Projected 

Outturn
Variance

REVENUE

Corporate Property Maintenance 522,570 470,140 460,822 (9,318) 0 460,822 (9,318)

Tenanted Properties (217,120) (204,790) (204,790) 0 0 (204,790) 0

Industrial Units (236,060) (281,150) (281,153) (3) 0 (281,153) (3)

Other Land & Buildings (82,760) (73,720) (73,723) (3) 0 (73,723) (3)

Footway Maintenance 126,940 126,940 126,765 (175) 0 126,765 (175)

Coastal Protection & Inland Flooding 44,000 44,000 44,036 36 0 44,036 36

Camping & Caravan Sites (797,991) (797,991) (387,326) 410,665 0 (387,326) 410,665

Workington Town Centre (512,900) (492,350) (405,000) 87,350 0 (405,000) 87,350

Circuses & Fairs (5,700) (3,510) 0 3,510 0 0 3,510

Harrington Harbour 21,830 21,830 23,025 1,195 0 23,025 1,195

Building Control - Chargeable (343,940) (343,940) (317,126) 26,814 0 (317,126) 26,814

Planning and Development (560,250) (560,250) (418,117) 142,133 0 (418,117) 142,133

Public Building Cleaning 89,560 89,560 94,403 4,843 0 94,403 4,843

Public Conveniences 101,320 101,320 100,086 (1,234) 0 100,086 (1,234)

Markets (134,200) (134,200) (22,274) 111,926 0 (22,274) 111,926

Gypsy & Travellers 4,000 4,000 4,000 0 0 4,000 0

Festivals & Events 125,340 125,340 5,471 (119,869) 0 5,471 (119,869)

Car Parks Inspection 38,000 38,000 37,979 (21) 0 37,979 (21)

Building Control - Non-Chargeable 1,010 1,010 (7,022) (8,032) 0 (7,022) (8,032)

Corporate Property (26,000) (25,020) (25,015) 5 0 (25,015) 5

Town Centres 20,000 20,000 0 (20,000) 0 0 (20,000)

Multi Store Car Park Utility & Maintenance 117,910 117,910 88,529 (29,381) 25,000 113,529 (4,381)

Street Naming & Numbering (4,000) (4,000) (4,003) (3) 0 (4,003) (3)

Asset Transfer 50,000 50,000 50,000 0 0 50,000 0

Community Stadium 0 0 5,019 5,019 0 5,019 5,019

Housing Development 0 0 4,310 4,310 0 4,310 4,310

Place Development 0 0 (406) (406) 0 (406) (406)

Maryport FHS Project 0 12,500 18,062 5,562 0 18,062 5,562

Reedlands Road 0 0 269,677 269,677 0 269,677 269,677

Property Services Pay Group 208,930 208,930 208,328 (602) 0 208,328 (602)

Building Control Pay Group 306,030 306,030 305,931 (99) 0 305,931 (99)

Planning and Development Pay Group 394,610 394,610 354,280 (40,330) 0 354,280 (40,330)

Regeneration Pay Group 126,320 126,320 122,412 (3,908) 0 122,412 (3,908)

Head of Development Services 6,460 6,460 0 (6,460) 0 0 (6,460)

Business Support Unit 176,270 176,270 177,043 773 0 177,043 773

Estates 135,645 135,645 138,395 2,750 0 138,395 2,750

PORTFOLIO: ECONOMIC GROWTH, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & PLACEMAKING

Description

Net
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
  

P
age 76



Approved 

Budget

Total Annual 

Budget

Projected Gross 

Outturn
Gross Variance

YE contr to 

reserve

Projected 

Outturn
Variance

PORTFOLIO: ECONOMIC GROWTH, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & PLACEMAKING

Description

Net

Programme Director for Maryport Regeneration 117,270 117,270 122,177 4,907 0 122,177 4,907

Disposal of Allerdale Sites 10,000 10,000 23,105 13,105 0 23,105 13,105

Social Impact Investment Fund (27,500) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Maryport HAZ 0 0 82 82 0 82 82

Total Revenue (204,406) (216,836) 637,982 854,818 25,000 662,982 879,818

RESERVES

Local Development Framework 0 3,798 3,798 0 0 3,798 0

Disposal of ABC Sites 0 7,553 7,553 0 0 7,553 0

Community Housing Fund 0 109,495 109,495 0 0 109,495 0

Gypsy & Traveller Sites 0 4,000 2,270 (1,730) 0 2,270 (1,730)

Towns Fund 0 162,019 162,019 0 0 162,019 0

Social Investment Fund 0 130,964 130,964 0 0 130,964 0

Corporate Property 0 9,433 9,433 0 0 9,433 0

Maryport Shop Front Scheme 0 20,485 20,485 0 0 20,485 0

Footway Lighting Scheme 19,000 19,060 19,986 926 0 19,986 926

MSCP Utilites & Main Fund 0 29,432 14,932 (14,500) 0 14,932 (14,500)

Community Stadium 0 25,000 25,000 0 0 25,000 0

Maryport Promenade 0 7,587 7,587 0 0 7,587 0

Future High Streets 0 75,693 68,169 (7,524) 0 68,169 (7,524)

Total Reserves 19,000 604,519 581,691 (22,828) 0 581,691 (22,828)

TOTAL (185,406) 387,683 1,219,673 831,990 25,000 1,244,673 856,990

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
  

P
age 77



Approved 

Budget

Total Annual 

Budget

Projected Gross 

Outturn
Gross Variance

YE contr to 

reserve

Projected 

Outturn
Variance

REVENUE

Corporate Management 68,975 68,975 78,230 9,255 0 78,230 9,255

Banking and Interest 1,106,535 1,106,535 949,207 (157,328) 0 949,207 (157,328)

MRP & Finance Charges 1,177,808 1,177,808 1,133,998 (43,810) 0 1,133,998 (43,810)

Insurances 244,065 244,065 218,519 (25,546) 0 218,519 (25,546)

Contingencies 365,640 328,140 313,090 (15,050) 0 313,090 (15,050)

Licensing Service (184,660) (184,660) (166,587) 18,073 0 (166,587) 18,073

Land Charges Service (94,140) (94,140) (75,333) 18,807 0 (75,333) 18,807

Health and Safety 1,437 1,437 1,017 (420) 0 1,017 (420)

Food and Occupational Health (3,990) (3,990) (388) 3,602 0 (388) 3,602

Environmental Protection (16,150) (16,150) (14,575) 1,575 0 (14,575) 1,575

Pension Deficit 522,800 522,800 522,800 0 0 522,800 0

Council Tax Discounts 3,500 3,500 9,843 6,343 0 9,843 6,343

New Finance System 390,000 390,000 390,000 0 0 390,000 0

New Cash Receipting System 0 0 6,200 6,200 0 6,200 6,200

Internal Audit Pay Group 112,420 105,983 105,762 (221) 0 105,762 (221)

Finance and Accounting Pay Group 516,349 516,349 525,156 8,807 0 525,156 8,807

Licensing Pay Group 84,090 84,090 87,004 2,914 0 87,004 2,914

Legal Services 169,380 156,506 159,171 2,665 0 159,171 2,665

Head of Financial Services 74,660 74,660 85,288 10,628 0 85,288 10,628

Food Safety & Occupational Health 246,998 246,998 253,353 6,355 0 253,353 6,355

Environmental Protection 268,977 228,577 224,055 (4,522) 0 224,055 (4,522)

Business Grants COVID-19 0 0 (170,000) (170,000) 0 (170,000) (170,000)

COVID-19 General Costs 0 0 37,029 37,029 0 37,029 37,029

Council Tax Hardship Fund 0 0 8,635 8,635 0 8,635 8,635

Total Revenue 5,054,694 4,957,483 4,681,474 (276,009) 0 4,681,474 (276,009)

Parish Precepts 2,458,074 2,458,074 2,458,074 0 0 2,458,074 0

RESERVES

Legal Counsel 0 61,112 54,684 (6,428) 0 54,684 (6,428)

Risk Management 0 3,270 0 (3,270) 0 0 (3,270)

Direct Debits & System Developments 0 27,576 27,576 0 0 27,576 0

Transfer of Land Charges Data 0 624 624 0 0 624 0

Legal advice re GDPR 0 16,430 16,430 0 0 16,430 0

ICT Audit Work 0 6,161 6,161 0 0 6,161 0

New Finance System 100,000 100,000 0 (100,000) 0 0 (100,000)

Waste Services - Legal Costs 0 35,000 35,000 0 0 35,000 0

Total Reserves 100,000 250,173 140,475 (109,698) 0 140,475 (109,698) 

TOTAL 7,612,768 7,665,730 7,280,023 (385,707) 0 7,280,023 (385,707) 

PORTFOLIO: FINANCE & LEGAL

Description

Net
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
  

P
age 78



Approved 

Budget

Total Annual 

Budget

Projected Gross 

Outturn
Gross Variance

YE contr to 

reserve

Projected 

Outturn
Variance

REVENUE

Confidential Waste 3,600 3,600 3,822 222 0 3,822 222

Bereavement Services (143,760) (143,760) (140,462) 3,298 0 (140,462) 3,298

Parks and Grounds Maintenance 396,940 396,940 405,678 8,738 0 405,678 8,738

Street Cleansing 997,360 997,360 985,696 (11,664) 0 985,696 (11,664)

Animal Welfare 41,695 41,695 52,615 10,920 0 52,615 10,920

Pest Control 5,543 4,730 20,318 15,588 0 20,318 15,588

Domestic Waste 1,372,505 1,836,472 1,894,368 57,896 0 1,894,368 57,896

Trade Waste (797,115) (747,504) (274,165) 473,339 0 (274,165) 473,339

Recycling 486,553 934,847 1,043,845 108,998 0 1,043,845 108,998

Environmental Initiatives 43,210 43,210 43,210 0 0 43,210 0

Off-street - Owned Car Parks (2,099,098) (2,099,098) (1,003,352) 1,095,746 0 (1,003,352) 1,095,746

Multi-storey Car Park 32,855 32,855 246,564 213,709 0 246,564 213,709

Off-street - Managed Car Parks (60,000) (60,000) (27,425) 32,575 0 (27,425) 32,575

Sports & Leisure Centres 574,920 574,920 645,198 70,278 0 645,198 70,278

Sports Development 41,700 41,700 40,669 (1,031) 0 40,669 (1,031)

Maryport Wave 184,728 184,728 185,856 1,128 0 185,856 1,128

Supporting Leisure Activity 15,000 15,000 15,000 0 0 15,000 0

Workington Nature Partnership 15,040 15,040 15,754 714 0 15,754 714

Allerdale Fleet 72,817 74,170 52,231 (21,939) 0 52,231 (21,939)

Maryport Open Space improvements S106 0 0 2,146 2,146 0 2,146 2,146

Major Contract Procurement 0 0 134 134 0 134 134

Waste Company 879,950 83,338 66,715 (16,623) 0 66,715 (16,623)

Head of Community Services 67,770 0 2,807 2,807 0 2,807 2,807

Community Services Pay group 496,070 496,070 196,570 (299,500) 0 196,570 (299,500)

Sport Parks Development 0 0 74,297 74,297 0 74,297 74,297

Bereavement Services 0 0 85,350 85,350 0 85,350 85,350

Total Revenue 2,628,283 2,726,313 4,633,439 1,907,126 0 4,633,439 1,907,126

RESERVES

Post Funding - End In 0 7,016 7,016 0 0 7,016 0

Bereavement Services 0 6,636 6,636 0 0 6,636 0

Clean Streets Campaign 0 5,115 0 (5,115) 0 0 (5,115)

Allerdale Waste Services 0 375,000 375,000 0 0 375,000 0

Bin Audit Project 0 10,000 10,000 0 0 10,000 0

Total Reserves 0 403,767 398,652 (5,115) 0 398,652 (5,115)

TOTAL 2,628,283 3,130,080 5,032,091 1,902,011 0 5,032,091 1,902,011

PORTFOLIO : ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Description

Net
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
  

P
age 79



Approved Budget
Total Annual 

Budget

Projected Gross 

Outturn
Gross Variance

YE contr to 

reserve

Projected 

Outturn
Variance

REVENUE

Communications and Marketing 38,500 38,500 38,500 0 0 38,500 0

Training 73,010 73,010 68,010 (5,000) 0 68,010 (5,000)

Corporate Recruitment 5,000 5,000 5,008 8 0 5,008 8

Pensions 155,500 155,500 164,715 9,215 0 164,715 9,215

Mayoral Services 12,630 12,630 12,630 0 0 12,630 0

Mayor's Fund 3,000 3,000 0 (3,000) 0 0 (3,000)

Members Services 245,280 245,280 227,556 (17,724) 0 227,556 (17,724)

Leaders Services 29,410 29,410 29,131 (279) 0 29,131 (279)

Electoral Registration 50,000 50,000 44,967 (5,033) 0 44,967 (5,033)

Elections 45,000 45,000 23,234 (21,766) 40,000 63,234 18,234

Corporate Improvement Team 24,020 24,020 23,986 (34) 0 23,986 (34)

Housing Strat Function (1,040) (1,040) (2,172) (1,132) 0 (2,172) (1,132)

Homelessness 22,680 1,790 4,868 3,078 0 4,868 3,078

Assistance - Housing Services (81,500) (81,500) (65,418) 16,082 0 (65,418) 16,082

Strategic Partnership 32,980 32,980 36,198 3,218 0 36,198 3,218

Grants to Voluntary Organisation 60,329 60,329 60,329 0 0 60,329 0

Planning Policy 42,150 42,150 41,864 (286) 0 41,864 (286)

Localities and Partnerships 7,995 7,995 7,636 (359) 0 7,636 (359)

Leaders Portfolio 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 10,000 0

Cumbria CBL Partnership 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 10,000 0

Moorclose Community Centre 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 10,000 0

Partnership & Collaboration 10,000 10,000 0 (10,000) 0 0 (10,000)

LGR Options Appraisal 0 37,500 50,000 12,500 0 50,000 12,500

Human Resources Pay Group 150,990 150,990 156,680 5,690 0 156,680 5,690

Democratic Services Pay Group 144,140 144,140 147,059 2,919 0 147,059 2,919

Head of Governance 31,550 31,550 83,210 51,660 0 83,210 51,660

Director of Resources & PA 155,110 155,110 52,491 (102,619) 0 52,491 (102,619)

Chief Executive & PA 183,140 183,140 185,229 2,089 0 185,229 2,089

Governance Support Assistants 75,800 75,800 69,936 (5,864) 0 69,936 (5,864)

Elections - Pay Group 94,120 94,120 96,030 1,910 0 96,030 1,910

Strategy, Policy & Performance 575,380 568,943 581,912 12,969 0 581,912 12,969

Head of Strategy, Policy & Performance 67,760 67,760 70,758 2,998 0 70,758 2,998

Housing Improvement 154,430 194,830 197,539 2,709 0 197,539 2,709

Emergency Planning, H&S & Homelessness 247,304 240,867 204,961 (35,906) 0 204,961 (35,906)

PORTFOLIO : POLICY, GOVERNANCE & PEOPLE RESOURCES

Description

Net

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
  

P
age 80



Approved Budget
Total Annual 

Budget

Projected Gross 

Outturn
Gross Variance

YE contr to 

reserve

Projected 

Outturn
Variance

PORTFOLIO : POLICY, GOVERNANCE & PEOPLE RESOURCES

Description

Net

PCC Election 2020 0 0 3,436 3,436 0 3,436 3,436

PARO 2020 0 0 1,018 1,018 0 1,018 1,018

Prevention Fund 0 20,350 20,350 0 0 20,350 0

Total Revenue 2,684,668 2,749,154 2,671,651 (77,503) 40,000 2,711,651 (37,503)

RESERVES

IER Work - Elections 9,000 9,000 4,500 (4,500) 0 4,500 (4,500)

Planning Policy 0 5,952 5,952 0 0 5,952 0

Allerdale Options 5,000 5,000 2,000 (3,000) 0 2,000 (3,000)

Health & Well-being Group 0 3,112 20 (3,092) 0 20 (3,092)

Licensing Service Re-design 0 600 600 0 0 600 0

Corporate Priorities-Credit Union 37,600 37,600 37,600 0 0 37,600 0

SBCB 0 49,767 4,000 (45,767) 0 4,000 (45,767)

Grant Homeless Prevention 0 10,250 10,250 0 0 10,250 0

Rogue Landlord Fund 0 7,429 0 (7,429) 0 0 (7,429)

Homelessness 0 18,700 0 (18,700) 0 0 (18,700)

Strategic Priorities 0 115,182 20,182 (95,000) 0 20,182 (95,000)

Corporate Improvement Team 0 22,086 0 (22,086) 0 0 (22,086)

Arcus - Environmental Health 0 4,293 4,293 0 0 4,293 0

Cumbria CBL Partnership 0 6,609 6,609 0 0 6,609 0

Moorclose Community Centre 0 10,000 10,000 0 0 10,000 0

Total Reserves 51,600 305,580 106,006 (199,574) 0 106,006 (199,574)

TOTAL 2,736,268 3,054,734 2,777,657 (277,077) 40,000 2,817,657 (237,077)

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
  

P
age 81



Approved 

Budget

Total Annual 

Budget

Projected Gross 

Outturn
Gross Variance

YE contr to 

reserve

Projected 

Outturn
Variance

REVENUE

Silloth TIC 10,750 10,750 3,365 (7,385) 0 3,365 (7,385)

Contribution to AONB 31,200 31,200 31,200 0 0 31,200 0

Museums 48,835 48,835 48,835 0 0 48,835 0

Arts Development 10,150 10,150 10,318 168 0 10,318 168

Carnegie Trust 75,000 75,000 75,000 0 0 75,000 0

Tourism Incentive 85,000 57,500 57,500 0 0 57,500 0

Tourism Pay group 53,500 53,500 53,892 392 0 53,892 392

Solway  AONB Core 36,480 36,480 (3,481) (39,961) 0 (3,481) (39,961)

Solway AONB Other Projects 0 0 175 175 0 175 175

Total Revenue 350,915 323,415 276,804 (46,611) 0 276,804 (46,611)

RESERVES

Solway AONB 0 54,661 54,661 0 0 54,661 0

Remembering the Solway 0 5,935 5,935 0 0 5,935 0

Total Reserves 0 60,596 60,596 0 0 60,596 0

TOTAL 350,915 384,011 337,400 (46,611) 0 337,400 (46,611)

PORTFOLIO : LEISURE & TOURISM

Description

Net
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
  

P
age 82



Approved 

Budget

Total Annual 

Budget

Projected Gross 

Outturn
Gross Variance

YE contr to 

reserve

Projected 

Outturn
Variance

REVENUE

IT Services 350,837 350,837 437,859 87,022 0 437,859 87,022

Shared Revenues & Benefits IT Costs 82,584 82,584 85,275 2,691 0 85,275 2,691

Multi-functional Printers 10,530 10,530 11,141 611 0 11,141 611

Revenue (349,240) (349,240) (259,711) 89,529 0 (259,711) 89,529

Benefits (535,721) (535,721) (519,791) 15,930 0 (519,791) 15,930

Shared Revs & Bens 113,500 113,500 109,425 (4,075) 0 109,425 (4,075)

Community Safety 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 10,000 0

Emergency Planning 20,914 20,914 18,799 (2,115) 0 18,799 (2,115)

Shared ICT Costs 49,700 49,700 49,374 (326) 0 49,374 (326)

Referral Centre 5,000 5,000 5,000 0 0 5,000 0

Corporate Postage & Stationery 134,030 134,030 134,030 0 0 134,030 0

Allerdale Local Focus Hub 53,780 53,780 29,206 (24,574) 0 29,206 (24,574)

Lillyhall Project 0 36,640 36,352 (288) 0 36,352 (288)

Shared IT Services Pay Group 301,590 295,153 257,109 (38,044) 0 257,109 (38,044)

Customer Services Pay Group 479,659 479,659 469,214 (10,445) 0 469,214 (10,445)

Head of Customer, Transformation, Commissioning 74,650 74,650 80,105 5,455 0 80,105 5,455

Customer & Transformation 488,230 432,652 451,289 18,637 0 451,289 18,637

Revs, Bens & Recovery Pay group 863,150 863,150 889,916 26,766 0 889,916 26,766

Head of Programmes & Projects 69,060 69,060 73,020 3,960 0 73,020 3,960

Street Scene 0 0 117,633 117,633 0 117,633 117,633

Ferris Maintenance Fund 0 0 (7,780) (7,780) 0 (7,780) (7,780)

Universal Credit 0 0 (6,280) (6,280) 0 (6,280) (6,280)

Arcus 65,353 65,353 63,554 (1,799) 0 63,554 (1,799)

Telco in a Box (TIAB) 0 0 (2,250) (2,250) 0 (2,250) (2,250)

COVID-19 Homelessness 0 0 153,386 153,386 0 153,386 153,386

Total Revenue 2,287,606 2,262,231 2,685,875 423,644 0 2,685,875 423,644

RESERVES

Shared Revs & Bens 0 38,297 0 (38,297) 0 0 (38,297)
Major Incident Response 14,000 25,000 20,000 (5,000) 0 20,000 (5,000)

IT Services-Corporate Printers 5,000 5,000 5,000 0 0 5,000 0

IT Services  0 34,780 34,780 0 0 34,780 0

ARCUS System 0 127,544 127,544 0 0 127,544 0

Total Reserves 19,000 230,621 187,324 (43,297) 0 187,324 (43,297)

TOTAL 2,306,606 2,492,852 2,873,199 380,347 0 2,873,199 380,347

PORTFOLIO : CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE & INNOVATION

Description

Net
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
  

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 84



Appendix B

Actual Commitments Projected

Approved  Virements / Current Year (PO's Raised Department Projected Outturn

Budget Adjustments Budget to Date but not yet paid)  Forecast Outturn  Variance Budget C/F  Variance

Description £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking

Strategic Acquisitions 179,329 200,000 0 379,329 0 0 0 0 (379,329) 379,329 0

Demolition Moorclose Sport Centre 0 22,037 0 22,037 0 0 0 0 (22,037) 0 (22,037)

Lillyhall -Infrastructure 2,200,000 0 0 2,200,000 0 0 1,600,000 1,600,000 (600,000) 0 (600,000)

Reedlands Road Development 2,481,173 82,779 0 2,563,952 10,524 0 (10,524) 0 (2,563,952) 0 (2,563,952)

Riverbank Works - Millfield Workington 0 26,495 0 26,495 (2,780) 2,780 26,500 26,500 5 0 5

Maryport Regeneration (HAZ) 150,000 0 130,000 280,000 0 0 58,750 58,750 (221,250) 221,250 0

Regeneration and investment 5,000,000 0 0 5,000,000 0 0 600,000 600,000 (4,400,000) 4,400,000 0

Markets - plant and equipment 50,000 0 0 50,000 0 22,639 0 22,639 (27,361) 0 (27,361)

Solar Panels 50,000 0 0 50,000 0 0 0 0 (50,000) 50,000 0

Kirkgate Centre Contribution 50,000 50,000 0 100,000 0 0 0 0 (100,000) 100,000 0

Workington Hall Repair Scheme 176,668 16,961 0 193,629 0 211,522 0 211,522 17,893 0 17,893

Public Toilets Review Works 0 41,236 0 41,236 28,291 721 12,300 41,312 76 0 76

Maryport Future High Streets Initiative 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL - Econ. Growth, Community Develop. & Placemaking 10,337,170 439,508 130,000 10,906,678 36,035 237,662 2,287,026 2,560,723 (8,345,955) 5,150,579 (3,195,376)

Finance and Legal

Leased Assets - property, vehicles & equipment 47,000 0 0 47,000 0 0 0 0 (47,000) 0 (47,000)

TOTAL 47,000 0 0 47,000 0 0 0 0 (47,000) 0 (47,000)

Policy, Governance and People Resources

Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants 1,214,000 0 0 1,214,000 134,279 0 818,527 952,805 (261,195) 261,195 0

Healthy Homes (Empty Homes) 151,568 49,670 (130,000) 71,238 12,426 0 58,483 70,909 (329) 0 (329)

Discretionary Grants 50,000 0 0 50,000 0 0 0 0 (50,000) 50,000 0

Conversion of Otley Road 90,000 40,000 0 130,000 0 0 130,000 130,000 0 0 0

Ladore Toilets - conversion 44,500 0 0 44,500 0 545 9,455 10,000 (34,500) 34,500 0

Housing Improvement Projects 0 91,938 0 91,938 0 0 0 0 (91,938) 91,938 0

TOTAL - Policy, Governance and People Resources 1,550,068 181,608 (130,000) 1,601,676 146,704 545 1,016,465 1,163,714 (437,962) 437,633 (329)

Environmental Services 

Waste Contract - vehicle & Bin acquisition costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reinstatement of Public Right of Way - Maryport 100,000 0 0 100,000 0 0 100,000 100,000 0 0 0

Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure programmes 154,907 25,000 0 179,907 2,140 5,277 172,490 179,907 0 0 0

Keswick Car Park - Enhancement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dearham Cemetary 0 10,000 0 10,000 0 7,250 2,750 10,000 0 0 0

LATCo - vehicles and Equipment 40,630 0 0 40,630 0 0 23,100 23,100 (17,530) 0 (17,530)

Car Park - signage and equipment 0 16,427 0 16,427 6,281 5416 0 11,697 (4,730) 0 (4,730)

Highfield Community Centre 0 6,750 0 6,750 0 0 6,750 6,750 0 0 0

Brow-Top Enhancement Schemes 170,000 228,177 0 398,177 3,608 70,357 330,210 404,175 5,998 0 5,998

TOTAL - Environmental Services 465,537 286,354 0 751,891 12,029 88,300 635,300 735,629 (16,262) 0 (16,262)

Leisure and Tourism

Solway Coast Pathway 769,780 276,949 0 1,046,729 58,193 26,185 762,351 846,729 (200,000) 200,000 (0)

Helena Thompson Museum Development 0 211,308 0 211,308 0 4,320 207,000 211,320 12 0 12

TOTAL -Leisure and Tourism 769,780 488,257 0 1,258,037 58,193 30,505 969,351 1,058,049 (199,988) 200,000 12

Customer Experience and Innovation

ICT - Server Infrastructure 85,000 0 0 85,000 0 0 85,000 85,000 0 0 0

IT Equipment 40,000 0 0 40,000 0 0 0 0 (40,000) 0 (40,000)

TOTAL - Customer Experience and Innovation 125,000 0 0 125,000 0 0 85,000 85,000 (40,000) 0 (40,000)

Total Expenditure 13,294,555.00 1,395,727.00 0.00 14,690,282.00 252,961 357,012 4,993,142 5,603,115 (9,087,167) 5,788,212 (3,298,955)

Capital Budget Monitoring 2020/21 - Period April to Sept 2020

Carry fwd from 

2019/20

P
age 85



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 86



Proposed Revised Three-year Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2022/23 Appendix C

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Description £ £ £ £ £ £ £

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking

Strategic Acquisitions 379,329 0 379,329 379,329 0 0

Demolition Moorclose Sport Centre 22,037 (22,037) 0 0 0 0

Lillyhall -Infrastructure 2,200,000 600,000 (600,000) 2,200,000 2,200,000 0 0

Reedlands Road Development 2,563,952 (2,563,952) 0 0 0 0

Riverbank Works - Millfield Workington 26,495 0 26,495 26,495 0 0

Maryport Regeneration (HAZ) 280,000 625,000 905,000 160,000 345,000 400,000

Regeneration and investment 5,000,000 (600,000) 0 4,400,000 4,400,000 0 0

Markets - plant and equipment 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 0 0

Solar Panels 50,000 0 50,000 0 50,000 0

Kirkgate Centre Contribution 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 0 0

Workington Hall Repair Scheme 193,629 17,893 211,522 211,522 0 0

Public Toilets Review Works 41,236 0 41,236 41,236 0 0

Maryport Future High Streets initiative 500,000 132,062 632,062 0 632,062 0

Workington - Towns funding scheme 0 502,136 502,136 502,136 0 0

TOTAL 11,406,678 0 (1,908,898) 9,497,780 8,070,718 1,027,062 400,000

Finance and Legal

Leased Assets - property, vehicles & equipment 97,000 (47,000) 50,000 0 31,000 19,000

TOTAL 97,000 0 (47,000) 50,000 0 31,000 19,000

Policy, Governance and People Resources

Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants 3,642,000 0 3,642,000 1,214,000 1,214,000 1,214,000

Healthy Homes (Empty Homes) 71,238 0 71,238 71,238 0 0

Discretionary Grants 50,000 0 50,000 0 50,000 0

Conversion of Otley Road 130,000 0 130,000 130,000 0 0

Ladore Toilets - conversion 44,500 0 44,500 10,000 34,500 0

Housing Improvement Projects 91,938 0 91,938 0 91,938 0

TOTAL 4,029,676 0 0 4,029,676 1,425,238 1,390,438 1,214,000

Environmental Services 

Reinstatement of Public Right of Way - Maryport 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 0 0

Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure programmes 267,043 0 267,043 179,907 76,000 11,136

Dearham Cemetary 10,000 0 10,000 10,000 0 0

LATCo - vehicles and Equipment 40,630 0 40,630 40,630 0 0

Car Park - signage and equipment 16,427 0 16,427 16,427 0 0

Highfield Community Centre 6,750 0 6,750 6,750 0 0

Brow-Top Enhancement Schemes 398,177 237,864 636,041 636,041 0 0

TOTAL 839,027 0 237,864 1,076,891 989,755 76,000 11,136

Leisure and Tourism

Solway Coast Pathway 1,046,729 0 1,046,729 846,729 200,000 0

Helena Thompson Museum Development 211,308 0 211,308 211,308 0 0

TOTAL 1,258,037 0 0 1,258,037 1,058,037 200,000 0

Customer Experience and Innovation

ICT - Server Infrastructure 85,000 0 85,000 85,000 0 0

IT Equipment 120,000 (120,000) 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 205,000 0 (120,000) 85,000 85,000 0 0

17,835,418 0 (1,838,034) 15,997,384 11,628,748 2,724,500 1,644,136

FINANCING

DFG Housing Grant 3,642,000 0 3,642,000 1,214,000 1,214,000 1,214,000

SCP Housing Grant 57,139 0 57,139 0 57,139 0

ERDF grant - Reedlands Road Development 1,340,694 (1,340,694) 0 0 0 0

LEP Growth Deal funding - Lillyhall Development 1,600,000 0 1,600,000 1,600,000 0 0

Contribution - Lillyhall 600,000 (600,000) 0 0 0 0

Coastal Communities Fund grant - Solway Coast Pathway 796,729 0 796,729 796,729 0 0

Other grants - Solway Coast Pathway 250,000 0 250,000 50,000 200,000 0

Other grants and contributions - Workington  Hall 150,000 0 150,000 150,000 0 0

Other Contributions 70,000 (10,000) 60,000 60,000 0 0

HLF grant 172,043 0 172,043 114,907 46,000 11,136

Accelerated Towns Fund 0 750,000 750,000 750,000 0 0

HAZ funding - Grant 0 470,000 470,000 68,750 171,500 229,750

HAZ funding -Pte sector contribution 0 155,000 155,000 32,500 68,500 54,000

8,678,605 0 (575,694) 8,102,911 4,836,886 1,757,139 1,508,886

Capital Receipts 908,067 0 908,067 647,518 260,549 0

General Fund Balances 97,821 (4,144) 93,677 93,677 0 0

Prudential Borrowing 8,053,925 (1,211,196) 6,842,729 6,050,667 675,812 116,250

Credit Arrangements - capital leases 97,000 (47,000) 50,000 0 31,000 19,000

9,156,813 0 (1,262,340) 7,894,473 6,791,862 967,361 135,250

17,835,418 0 (1,838,034) 15,997,384 11,628,748 2,724,500 1,644,136

Proposed 

Revised 

Budget 

Proposed 

Revised 

Budget 

Current 

Budget 
Reallocations 

Net Budget 

Changes (new 

bids)

 Proposed 

Revised 

Budget

Proposed 

Revised 

Budget 

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



Appendix D

Reserves
Balance at 

01/04/2020
Current Budget

Budget 

Adjustment

Revised Budget 

2020/21

Contributions to 

Reserves

Released to 

General Fund

Balance at 

31/03/2021

Forecasted Spend 

2021/22 onwards

Held as Accounting/

Contingency

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Local Development Framework 3,798 3,798 0 3,798 0 0 0 0 0

Community Housing Fund 109,495 109,495 0 109,495 0 0 0 0 0

Gypsy & Traveller Sites 4,000 4,000 (1,730) 2,270 0 0 1,730 1,730 0

Corporate Property 9,433 9,433 0 9,433 0 0 0 0 0

Community Stadium 25,000 25,000 0 25,000 0 0 0 0 0

Disposal of Allerdale Sites 7,553 7,553 0 7,553 0 0 0 0 0

Shop Front Improvements 20,485 20,485 0 20,485 0 0 0 0 0

Footway Lighting Scheme 40,007 19,060 926 19,986 0 0 20,021 20,021 0

MSCP Utilities & Maintenance fund 54,432 29,432 (14,500) 14,932 25,000 (14,500) 50,000 50,000 0

Maryport Promenade 7,587 7,587 0 7,587 0 0 0 0 0

Future High Streets 75,693 75,693 (7,524) 68,169 0 0 7,524 7,524 0

Towns Fund 162,019 162,019 162,019 0 0 0 0 0

Social Investment Fund 130,964 130,964 130,964 0 0 0 0 0

650,466 604,519 (22,828) 581,691 25,000 (14,500) 79,275 79,275 0

Legal Counsel 61,113 61,112 (6,428) 54,684 0 (6,429) 0 0 0

Risk Management/Insurance 3,271 3,270 (3,270) 0 0 (3,271) 0 0 0

Financial System Developments 27,576 27,576 0 27,576 0 0 0 0 0

Transfer of Land Charges Data 624 624 0 624 0 0 0 0 0

Legal advice re GDPR 16,430 16,430 0 16,430 0 0 0 0 0

ICT Audit Work 6,161 6,161 0 6,161 0 0 0 0 0

New Finance System 100,000 100,000 (100,000) 0 0 0 100,000 100,000 0

Waste Services - Legal Costs 35,000 35,000 0 35,000 0 0 0 0 0

250,175 250,173 (109,698) 140,475 0 (9,700) 100,000 100,000 0

Solway AONB 54,661 54,661 0 54,661 0 0 0 0 0

Remembering the Solway 5,935 5,935 0 5,935 0 0 0 0 0

60,596 60,596 0 60,596 0 0 0 0 0

Post Funding - Env Initiatives 7,016 7,016 0 7,016 0 0 0 0 0

Allerdale Waste Services 375,000 375,000 0 375,000 0 0 0 0 0

Bin Audit Project 10,000 10,000 0 10,000 0 0 0 0 0

Bereavement Serv - system upgrade 6,636 6,636 0 6,636 0 0 0 0 0

Clean Streets Campaign 5,115 5,115 (5,115) 0 0 0 5,115 5,115 0

403,767 403,767 (5,115) 398,652 0 0 5,115 5,115 0

Earmarked Reserves

Leisure & Tourism

Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking

Finance & Legal

Environmental Services

P
age 89



Reserves
Balance at 

01/04/2020
Current Budget

Budget 

Adjustment

Revised Budget 

2020/21

Contributions to 

Reserves

Released to 

General Fund

Balance at 

31/03/2021

Forecasted Spend 

2021/22 onwards

Held as Accounting/

Contingency

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Provision for Elections 0 0 0 40,000 0 40,000 40,000 0

Planning Policy 5,952 5,952 5,952 0 0 0 0 0

IER work -Elections 9,000 9,000 (4,500) 4,500 0 (4,500) 0 0 0

Allerdale Options 5,000 5,000 (3,000) 2,000 0 (3,000) 0 0 0

Health & Well-being Group 3,113 3,112 (3,092) 20 0 0 3,093 3,093 0

Corporate Transformation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Corporate Priorities-Credit Union 37,600 37,600 0 37,600 0 0 0 0 0

SBCB 49,767 49,767 (45,767) 4,000 0 0 45,767 45,767 0

Grant Homeless Prevention 10,250 10,250 0 10,250 0 0 0 0 0

Rogue Landlord Fund 7,429 7,429 (7,429) 0 0 0 7,429 7,429 0

Homelessness 18,700 18,700 (18,700) 0 0 (18,700) 0 0 0

ARCUS - Environmental Health 4,293 4,293 0 4,293 0 0 0 0 0

Cumbria CBL Partnership 6,609 6,609 0 6,609 0 0 0 0 0

Moorclose Community Centre 10,000 10,000 0 10,000 0 0 0 0 0

Strategic Priorities 115,182 115,182 (95,000) 20,182 0 (95,000) 0 0 0

Corporate Improvement Team Misc 22,086 22,086 (22,086) 0 0 (22,086) 0 0 0

Licensing Service Re-design 600 600 0 600 0 0 0 0 0

305,581 305,580 (199,574) 106,006 40,000 (143,286) 96,289 96,289 0

Shared Revs & Bens 38,297 38,297 (38,297) 0 0 0 38,297 38,297 0

Major Incident Response 63,748 25,000 (5,000) 20,000 0 0 43,748 43,748 0

ICT Infrastructure Costs 25,000 25,000 0 25,000 0 0 0 0 0

ICT Training 9,780 9,780 0 9,780 0 0 0 0 0

IT Services - corporate printers 13,229 5,000 0 5,000 0 0 8,229 8,229 0

ARCUS System 127,544 127,544 0 127,544 0 0 0 0 0

277,598 230,621 (43,297) 187,324 0 0 90,274 90,274 0

NNDR Rate Pool Volatility Fund 144,714 0 0 0 0 0 144,714 0 144,714

Business Rate Income 321,000 0 0 0 0 0 321,000 0 321,000

Section 31 NNDR 360,000 0 0 0 6,159,593 0 6,519,593 0 6,519,593

Enterprise Answers Loan & Accrued Interest 437,099 0 0 0 0 0 437,099 0 437,099

Hugh Barbour Bequest 8,661 0 0 0 0 0 8,661 0 8,661

Emergency Planning - Flooding 28,260 0 0 0 0 0 28,260 0 28,260

1,299,734 0 0 0 6,159,593 0 7,459,327 0 7,459,327

Total Earmarked Reserves 3,247,917 1,855,256 (380,512) 1,474,744 6,224,593 (167,486) 7,830,280 370,953 7,459,327

Customer Experience & Innovation

Corporate resources - * held for accounting purposes or as contingency against specific risks

Policy, Governance & People Resources

P
age 90



Appendix E

Summary of Treasury Management Activity - April to September 2020

 Investment Activity August to September 2020  Investment Activity 2020-21 year to date  

Made Repaid Made Repaid

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Call Accounts AA 2,000 3,092 (2,280) 2,812 Call Accounts  AA- 1,386 9,641 (8,215) 2,812

Call Accounts A+/A/A- 4,302 1,894 (1,212) 4,984 Call Accounts  A+/A/A- 1,750 12,106 (8,872) 4,984

Notice Accounts (DMO) AA- 0 0 0 0 Notice Accounts (DMO) AA- 0 92,415 (92,415) 0

Money Market Funds AAA 11,475 10,065 (11,410) 10,130 Money Market Funds AAA 5,856 39,719 (35,445) 10,130

Equity Shares Not rated 11 0 0 11 Equity Shares Not rated 11 0 0 11

Total 17,788 15,051 (14,902) 17,937 9,003 153,881 (144,947) 17,937

Comment:

At 30 September 2020  investment balances totalled £17.937m. This compares with a balance of £9.003m at 31 March 2020 and £17.788m at 31 July 2020.  The average investment balance during 

the period was £20.139m. The average daily investment for first six months of 2020/21 was  £23,758m . This compares with an average of the corresponding period last year was £11.607m.  

Underpinning this increase in average investment balances during the period were cash flows associated with the range of measures implemented by central government  in response to COVID-19.

In accordance with the Council's approved Investment Strategy, all investments made during the period and year to date were restricted to approved investment instruments with counterparties

holding minimum credit ratings of A-. The term of all investments made did not exceed the maximum permitted durations determined by reference to the creditworthiness of the counterparty. 

Borrowing Activity August to September  2020 Borrowing Activity 2020-21 year to date 

New 

Borrowing

Borrowing 

Repaid
01-Apr-20

New 

Borrowing

Borrowing 

Repaid
30-Sep-20

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Long-term Long-term

PWLB – fixed rates 17,165 0 (259) 16,906 PWLB – fixed rates 17,247 0 (341) 16,906

Short-term Short-term

Local Bonds 31 0 0 31 Local Bonds 31 0 0 31

Trust Funds 54 0 0 54 Trust Funds 54 0 0 54

17,250 0 (259) 16,991 17,332 0 (341) 16,991

Comment:

No new borrowing or rescheduling of existing loans took place during August and September 2020.  At 30 September 2020 the total premature redemption premium payable was £18.09m.

(31 March 2020: £18.38m)

Non specified investments Non Specified Investments

01-Aug-20 30-Sep-20

Credit 

Rating

01-Apr-20
Investments

30-Sep-20

Specified investments Specified Investments 

Credit 

Rating

01-Aug-20
Investments 

30-Sep-20

P
age 91



Composition of PWLB loans portfolio Maturity profile of borrowing (inc non PWLB)

 30 Sept 

2020

 31 July 

2020

 31 Mar 

2020

 31 Dec 

2019

 30 Sept 

2019

 30 Sept 

2020

 31 July 

2020

 31 Mar 

2020

 31 Dec 

2019

 30 Sept 

2019

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Maturity loans 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 Less than 1 year 773 773 769 411 408

Annuity loans 1,504 1,505 1,547 1,554 1,588 Between 1 & 2yrs 696 696 692 334 331

EIP Loans 7,402 7,660 7,700 5,320 5,320 Between 2 & 5yrs 2,145 2,145 2,131 1,057 1,045

Total 16,906 17,165 17,247 14,874 14,908 Between 5 & 10yrs 2,495 2,672 2,668 1,954 1,948

Redemption Value* 35,267 36,258 35,832 29,951 32,301 Between 10 & 20yrs 2,601 2,604 2,672 2,683 2,741

Between 20 & 30yrs 280 360 400 520 520

Average interest  % 5.01% 4.97% 4.97% 5.46% 5.47% Between 30 & 40yrs 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000

Average maturity (Yrs) 25 25 25 28 29 Between 40 & 50yrs 0 0 0

Weighted average life (Yrs) 21 21 21 24 25

16,990 17,250 17,332 14,959 14,993

* including accrued interest

P
age 92



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Executive – 25 November 2020 

 

Budget Strategy 2021-22 

 
 
Portfolio holder   Councillor Jim Lister 

Portfolio Holder for Finance and Legal 

Report from    Catherine Nicholson 

     Head of Financial Services 

Wards affected   All 

Is this a key decision  Yes  
 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 This Budget Strategy sets out the guidelines for preparing the 2021-22 Budget.  The 
Strategy takes account of current and future financial issues and sets out 
assumptions and initial proposals for delivering a balanced budget in 2021-22. 

 

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 That the significant financial challenges that the Council faces be noted 
2.2 To note the planning assumptions for building the 2021-22 budget 
2.3 To undertake a public consultation on budget proposals 
 

3.0  Introduction 

 
3.1 This report is the first of the Council’s budget setting process for 2021-22 onwards.  

It sets out the financial pressures that the Council is likely to face in the coming 
years and suggests an appropriate strategy to ensure that this authority remains 
financially stable over the long term. 

 
3.2 The budget setting process is an ongoing annual exercise that determines the 

financial plans for current and future years and is informed by the Council’s priorities 
as set out in the Council Plan.  It is informed by the latest information from 
Government and from the discussions in the budget review meetings with the 
Portfolio Holders and Heads of Service. 

 

Page 93



 
3.3 In respect of the Council’s finances, it is important to understand the impact that the 

Covid-19 pandemic has had. In March 2020, the Council approved a balanced 
budget for 2020-21, but the onset of the pandemic has had a far reaching and 
detrimental impact on the Council’s expenditure, income from sales, fees and 
charges and funding from council tax and business rates. Income streams, such as 
car parking, rents, planning and building control have all been interrupted. 

 
3.4 The challenge for the remainder of this financial year and for 2021-22 will be for the 

Council to regain the lost or deferred income to avoid placing an additional burden 
on the people and businesses of Allerdale while, at the same time, attempting to 
manage its finances effectively.  

 
3.5 This impact of the pandemic is monitored and reported to the Ministry of Housing, 

Communities and Local Government on a monthly basis.  
 
3.6 The Government has provided a package of support measures to support local 

authorities, details of which include: - 
 

 Four tranches of funding worth £1.659 m to support expenditure pressures in 
2020-21 

 Support for reductions in Sales, Fees and Charges income, with the 
Government covering 75% of losses beyond 5% of planned income, 
estimated to be worth £1.2m 

 Phased repayment of Collection Fund deficits over the next 3 years. 
Government has given a commitment to determine what support is needed to 
help councils meet the pressures of irrecoverable tax income at the Spending 
Review 

 Exceptional Support at an individual authority basis for those with unique 
circumstances 

 
3.7 The implications of the pandemic for our budget for 2021-22 and later years are 

significant.  In some areas, these pressures will continue although the precise 
impact will only become clear over time when the full economic impact is known.  
This is likely to have a significant bearing on funding from business rates and 
impact on council tax collection and housing benefit awards, particularly following 
the ending of the Government’s Job Retention Scheme.  

 
3.8 The impact of the second wave of Covid-19 will also have an impact on expenditure 

and income streams.  It is fair to say that planning local authority budgets has never 
been undertaken in such an uncertain period and there are a range of unknowns 
which will impact on the budget. 

 
3.9 The Covid-19 pandemic has introduced considerable risk and uncertainty into the 

budget setting process and will be a key feature of both this report and the work 
over the next few months.  The budget strategy and work on setting next year’s 
budget will seek to place the Council in a strong financial position to support the 
recovery of our borough. 

 
 

Page 94



 
4.0 Background 
 
 
4.1 The financial strategy over the last few years has worked well in delivering a 

balanced budget whilst managing the significant reductions in government funding. 
There is a well-planned approach to budget setting and the budget process 
considers: - 
 

 The Council’s priorities – what does it want to do, to what standard and what 
results does it want to achieve. 
 

 The level of funding anticipated from Government. 
 

 Income that can be generated through fees and charges, such as new and 
increased prices. 
 

 The levels of balances required for financial prudence and to proactively 
manage the Council’s risks. 

 

 The methods of service delivery that will deliver value for money. 
 

 Stakeholder consultation. 
 

4.2 The timetable this year has been shortened and the revenue and capital budget 
proposals are scheduled to be presented to Executive on the 8 February and then 
onward for approval by Council on 17 February 2021.  It is likely that the developing 
financial position around Covid-19 will mean that there is greater variation than in 
previous years. 

 
 
4.3 The Council has been under financial pressure before the Covid-19 pandemic.  It 

has been well reported that we have experienced substantial reductions in 
Government funding in recent years, in line with the Government’s austerity 
programme.   

4.4 Over recent years the Council has gone through a number of budget saving and 
transformation programmes in order to close the budget gaps.  The 2020-21 budget 
anticipated a medium-term budget gap of around £2 million in a pre-Covid-19 world. 

4.5 The pandemic has had a significant financial impact on the Council and our 
residents and businesses.  The extent of the impact of Covid-19 upon the Council’s 
finances for 2020-21, let alone 2021-22 remains uncertain. 

4.6 Beyond the implications of Covid-19, the future for local government funding 
remains very uncertain, with no information available on funding from April 2021 
onwards.  The current 4-year Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) period came 
to an end in 2019-20, with the CSR 2020 delayed until the autumn of 2020 because 
of Covid-19. 

Page 95



4.7 It has now been announced that there will be a one-year Spending Review, to be 
announced on 25 November.  The spending round will inform the local government 
finance settlement and therefore the shape and size of any core central government 
funding to Allerdale BC remains unknown at this time. 

4.8 In addition, the Government has previously announced a few significant policy 
changes for local government funding including: - 

 National move to 75% Business Rates Retention  

 Resetting of baselines – impact being loss of growth accumulated since 
2013-14  

 Fair Funding Review – to examine relative needs and allocation of resources 

4.9 The timing of the implementation of all the above remains unknown, but again it is 
now thought to be more likely that the above policies will be deferred for another 
year. 

5.0 Budget Strategy Assumptions 

 Council Tax and Business Rates 

5.1 There is a level of uncertainty around both council tax and business rates.  The 
collection rates are on a downward trend and significant shortfalls can be expected 
on both Council Tax and Business Rates.  The size of these shortfalls still cannot 
be estimated with certainty. 

5.2 The impact of Covid-19 on the council’s Council Tax income could manifest from 
the ending of the furlough scheme and increased unemployment from an economic 
downturn – which could result in more council tax support claimants and non-
payment by those not in receipt of council tax support.  This could also impact on 
business rates income should there be an increase in business failures during this 
time. 

5.3 Small businesses who have this year been eligible for the retail, leisure and 
hospitality rate relief may find themselves facing significant issue next year, as this 
relief is due to end and they will be expected to start paying rates again. 

5.4 Under the current business rates retention scheme, 40% of business rates (NNDR) 
collected is retained by the Council.  The remainder is paid to Central Government 
(50%) and Cumbria County Council (10%).  The scheme also provides that certain 
sums are to be treated as being outside the scheme and retained in their entirety by 
the Council.  The Council is also able to retain the growth in the local share of 
business rates subject to the payment of a levy to central government designed to 
prevent disproportionate increases in the Council’s funding as a result of growth in 
business rates income. 

 
5.5 The amount of business rates income available to the general fund and considered 

when setting the budget is based on an estimate made in January preceding the 
start of the financial year.  This estimate of business rate income reported in the 
government return NNDR1, also determines how much the Council must pay to 
central government and the County Council during the year. 

Page 96



5.6 Local authorities have the option of working with neighbouring authorities to form a 
business rates pool.  Allerdale has been part of the Cumbria Business rates pool 
since its inception and has expressed its intention to continue in this pool for 2021-
22. 

 
5.7 The reductions in income from central government funding means that there is now 

an increased importance on Council Tax as a means of raising income.  This 
means that the decisions taken now in relation to Council Tax levels are critical to 
the delivery of a sustainable MTFP. 

 
5.8 In terms of Council Tax assumptions, these will be reviewed given the impact from 

Covid-19 on collection rates in the current year.  The MTFP assumed that there 
would be growth in the Council Tax base and that Council Tax would be increased 
(subject to guidance around referendum limits). 

 
 Pay and Price Inflation 
 
5.9 The budget will be prepared on a standstill basis in that no price inflation will be 

added other than to contractual commitments to pay and annual inflationary 
increases such as contracts and software licence agreements. 

 
5.10 The local government pay award has recently been agreed for 2020-21 at 2.75% for 

all pay levels. As with many other factors, there is no indication as to the level of 
pay award from 2021 onwards.  Although inflation in the wider economy currently 
remains low it seems reasonable to assume that the pay award will be at least 2%. 

 
5.11 The Office for National Statistics (ONS) published the September CPI and RPI 

figures on 14 October 2020.   The CPI rate in September was 0.5% up from 0.2% in 
August.  These figures are generally used as the basis for uprating of some welfare 
benefits.  

 
 Fees and Charges 
 
5.12 Budget holders are required to review the fees and charges as part of the budget 

setting process to ensure that they are set at an appropriate level and that charges 
are transparent and show a clear methodology for their increase. 

 
5.13 Whilst the focus is on the level of charge made for services, budget holders are 

encouraged to review and understand the cost drivers within their service as cost 
control is an integral part of the annual review of fees and charges. 

 
 Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
 
5.14 An actuarial review of the local government pension scheme was undertaken in 

2019 with a revised funding schedule included in the current MTFS.  The 
assumptions around employer contributions will not be updated until the conclusion 
of the next actuarial review which will commence in 2022. 

 
 
 

Page 97



6.0 Updated Medium Term Financial Position 
 
6.1 This report has identified some specific risks around the financial impact from 

Covid-19 and the Council’s funding from Government. It is probable that the Covid-
19 pandemic will continue to have some impact on the Council’s finances in 2021-
22 and beyond.  

 
6.2 This is due to the economic outlook, limited information around likely levels of 

Government funding and support and the longer-term changes from the fair funding 
review and the business rates retentions scheme. 

 
6.3 Following the revised budget and the expectations of the provisional local 

government finance settlement, the updated MTFP is as set out below, and 
estimates a starting budget gap of £955k next year. 

 
6.4 This is the starting point for the next round of Budget Review Meetings, which will 

be commencing this month (November). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 98



 
 
 
 
 

2020/21* 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Base Budget 11,449 12,388 12,533 12,565

Change in salary costs - recurring 177 218 199 191

Capital financing costs 87 (7) 0

Recurring growth 1,278 340 340 340

Recurring savings (516) (500) (500) (500)

Recurring (base) budget 12,388 12,533 12,565 12,596

Change in salary costs -non-recurring (203)

Non-recurring growth 4,447 200 200 200

Non-recurring savings (985) (50) (50) (50)

Net Service Expenditure budget 15,647 12,683 12,715 12,746

Expenditure on earmarked priorities 1,475 0 0 0

Proposed budget (excl. parish precepts) 17,122 12,683 12,715 12,746

Parish Precepts 2,458 2,458 2,458 2,458

Proposed Budget (incl. parish precepts) 19,580 15,141 15,173 15,204

Less: Planned use of earmarked balances (1,475) 0 0 0

Net Budget Requirement 18,105 15,141 15,173 15,204

2020/21* 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Revenue support grant 199 200 200 200

Rural Services Delivery Grant 326 326 326 326

New Homes Bonus 606 202 111 0

Council tax – Allerdale only 5,400 5,400 5,400 5,400

Council tax – parish element 2,458 2,458 2,458 2,458

Collection fund surplus/(deficit) - Council Tax 21 0 0 0

NNDR funding 6,112 5,600 4,500 4,500

NNDR - Collection fund surplus/(deficit) 138 0 0 0

Covid-19 Emergency Funding 1,594 0 0 0

Covid-19 Income Guarantee 1,218 0 0 0

Release of Earmarked Reserves 0 0 0 0

Use of general fund balances 0 0 0 0

Total funding 18,072 14,186 12,995 12,884

Funding Gap 33 955 2,178 2,320

*revised budget

Revenue Budget

Funding

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN

Page 99



7.0 Implications and Impacts 
 
7.1 Other risks to the Council include, but are not limited to, the following specific areas: 
 

 Brexit – the impact of the UK leaving the European Union is difficult to 
quantify.  There could be an impact on a range of council services, funding 
streams and Treasury management activity that will need to be factored into 
the budget planning over the coming weeks 

 Economy – there are a number of income streams that are linked to 
economic performance, including fees and charges, commercial rental 
income and treasury management.  A significant downturn in the economy 
could reduce the amount of disposable income available to residents and 
businesses, erode investment performance and reduce the value of 
commercial property and rentals 

 Housing market and Regeneration schemes – there could be an impact on a 
number of key strategic sites across the borough and it will be important to 
continually assess the financial viability of schemes to ensure that they are 
able to deliver the required outcomes. 

  

7.2 Finance/Resource implications 

 As set out in the report 

7.3 Legal and governance implications  

 There is a statutory requirement to set a balanced budget 

7.4 Increasing satisfaction and service 

The budget is set to support the Council in achieving priorities through the Council 
Plan and to facilitate control of expenditure on its activities. 

7.5 Equality impacts 

  As part of the budget growth and savings bids process. 

7.6 Health and Safety impacts 

The budget contains provision for the Council to discharge its obligations under 
health and safety legislation, and to maintain a reserve in order to manage risks. 

 
There are also risks that the Council will not be able to operate within agreed 
budgetary provisions, but this can be minimised by the financial monitoring process 
and by the prudent policy on the level of reserves and balances. 

7.7 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

 As part of the budget growth and savings bids process. 

7.8 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

 As part of the budget growth and savings bids process. 
 

Page 100



Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

  

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

Budget working papers Finance team working papers 

 
 
Report author and contact officer 
 
Catherine Nicholson 
Head of Financial Services 
Catherine.nicholson@allerdale.gov.uk 
01900 702503  
07483 030422 

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 23/11/2020 

 

Twice yearly report to Overview & Scrutiny Committee on setting and reviewing actions in 
the Strategic Commissioning and Procurement Strategy action plan. 

 
 
Portfolio holder   Councillor  

Mike Johnson (Portfolio Holder)  
 

 

Report from    Elaine Ridings/Barbara Watson  

     Brendan Carlin   

Wards affected   All  

Is this a key decision  No (update) 
 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 The purpose of Allerdale Borough Council’s 2020/30 Strategic Commissioning and 
Procurement Strategy is to communicate clearly to employees, partners, suppliers 
and stakeholders the Council’s vision for commissioning and procurement of goods, 
works and services. Covering how commissioning decisions will be made and to 
articulate the procedural framework within which all procurement will take place. The 
Strategy was approved by the Executive at the meeting 18th March 2020.   
 

1.2 The strategy is implemented through a well-managed annual action plan, which 
provides a structure and framework to support ongoing commissioning and 
procurement activity. This will enable the council to maximise opportunities, minimise 
risks and support to achieve council priorities. 
 

1.3 The activities of the Commissioning and Procurement team are monitored at a 
corporate leadership team level by the Chief Executive and at council member level 
by the portfolio holder.  In addition there is a commitment to report twice yearly to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on progress with regard to actions in the annual 
action plan within the strategy.     

 

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 To review progress on actions and to agree actions annually in the revised action 
plan at the start of the each financial year.   

Page 103

Agenda Item 10



 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 
3.1 Allerdale Council first published a Strategic Commissioning and Procurement 

Strategy in March 2016.  The revised Strategic Commissioning and Procurement 
Strategy 2020/30 was published in March 2020 and reflected changes in best 
practice in pursuing sustainable outcomes, value for money and continuous 
improvement in commissioning and procurement of goods, services and works 

4.0  Content (to include alternative options considered) 

 
4.1 It is important that the Council maintains an up to date, forward thinking and long-

term strategic approach to commissioning and procurement activities that supports 
the delivery of Council Strategy priorities.   

 
4.2 The strategy has a well-managed annual action plan to enable the council to 

maximise opportunities, minimise risks and support to achieve council priorities.   

5.0  Delivery arrangements 

 
5.1 A strategic commissioning approach will enable the council to procure goods, 

services and works that will help to deliver the priority outcomes set out in the Council 
Strategy.   

6.0 Implications and Impact 

 Making sure that the Council is on a sound financial footing is a key priority in the 
Council Strategy 2020/30. Governance and progress for strategically important 
contracts and procurements are reported to the Transformation and 
Commercialisation Programme Board, Senior Management Team and quarterly to 
Executive Members through the Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21.  Any deviation in 
strategically important procurements in meeting either budget, objectives or 
timescales is reported and exception reports are brought to the Transformation and 
Commercialisation Board that identify alternatives options to ensure the value of the 
procurement and alignment to council objectives is still achieved.   

6.1 Finance/Resource implications 

Whilst there is no direct financial implication of the Strategic Commissioning and 
Procurement Strategy, cashable and non-cashable savings are anticipated through 
more strategic sourcing. By following the 4 key performance management elements 
in the commissioning cycle of analyse, plan, do, and review to ensure a robust 
process is followed for commissioning goods, services and works.   

 Having procurement as part of a centralised Programme Office ensures that projects 
are planned as part of budget setting and any potential procurement is identified and 
planned for early in the commissioning cycle. This ensure the elements in the 
commissioning cycle are used to inform the most appropriate procurement route.   

Page 104



 This approach is being used as part of a programme of service reviews to look at high 
cost services and identify the best way to commission these in the future to ensure 
efficiencies and best value for the Council.      

6.2 Legal and governance implications  

The Annual Governance Statement includes assurance from Heads of Service that 
they have checked that their managers are procuring goods and services compliantly 
and that contracts are recorded on the Contract Register.    

 

6.3 Risk analysis 

 
 

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Mitigated 
score 

Procurement 
activity does not 
comply with legal 
framework  

The Council is subject 
to legal challenge 
which carries both 
financial and 
reputational risk 

All procurement 
activity is run through 
the procurement 
team with input from 
legal. Guidance and 
templates are 
available for all 
officers undertaking 
procurement to 
ensure a compliant 
process is followed.  
 

2 

Results of the 
procurement fail to 
achieve intended 
outcomes 

The Councils 
reputation is damaged 
by failing to deliver and 
not achieving value for 
money for ratepayer’s 
money.    

Workshop for all 
officers on all aspects 
of the Commissioning 
Cycle including 
contract 
management to 
ensure the full value 
of any procurement is 
delivered.   

2 

The Strategic 
Commissioning and 
Procurement 
Strategy is not 
delivered in full 

The Council delivers a 
procurement function 
that does not fully 
support the Council in 
delivering priorities 

Procurement as a 
centralised role within 
the Programme 
Office ensures 
engagement across 
all departments  

2 

 

6.4 Increasing satisfaction and service 

The Team have continued to strengthen engagement with the local supply chain and 

encourage local suppliers to compete for work through gaining a better understanding 

Page 105



of the barriers and obstacles, which prevent interest from small and medium 

enterprises (SMEs) and local businesses.   

Visibility is a key issue for SMEs. If they cannot see the opportunities and the buyer 
cannot see them then local businesses miss out on bidding for council contracts. 
Since March all new opportunities are posted on the council’s social media platforms 
to ensure more local bidders are aware of opportunities.  A key performance indicator 
is used to identify how spend can support the local economy.  In 2019/20 the average 
of all spend was 51.48% was with local suppliers in Cumbria.  The average of all 
spend with local supplies to date in 20/21 is 63%.    

6.5 Equality impacts 

An Equality Impact Assessment was carried out on the Strategic Commissioning and 
Procurement Strategy in March 2020.  The impact was neutral for all protected 
characteristics apart from people on a low wage where the strategy had a positive 
impact.  Council spend in the local area can have a positive impact on local 
communities.  This is particularly important post Covid-19.   The commitment of the 
council to pay the ‘Foundation Living Wage’ for council contracts also helps to 
address the issue of low income in Allerdale.   

 

6.6 Health and Safety impacts 

 N/A 

6.7 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

 N/A 

6.8 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

 Strategic commissioning and procurement looks at the end-to-end process, not 

simply the transaction of buying. It involves understanding the council as an integral 

part of the supply chain, not just a buyer of goods and services. This means ensuring 

Social Value is at the heart of our commissioning and procurement practices.  

 The procurement team work with all officers to ensure that where possible social 

value is included in all quality evaluation criteria.   

6.9 Other significant implications 

 
 N/A 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

01  Update on Actions within the Strategy  

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

Page 106



  

 
 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Elaine Ridings  
Programme Office Manager  
elaine.ridings@alleradle.gov.uk  
T: 01900 516642 
 
Barbara Watson 
Procurement Officer  
barbara.watson@allerdale.gov.uk 
T: 01900 702521 
 
 

Page 107

mailto:elaine.ridings@alleradle.gov.uk
mailto:barbara.watson@allerdale.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 108



 

Appendix 1 - Annual Action Plan   

 

Ref  Action  Benefit  Timeframe  Owner  Update March - Nov 2020  

Deliver a Sustainable Council  

1.0  Work with other District 
Councils and Cumbria 
County Council, 
Effective Procurement in 
Cumbria (EpiC), to have 
some shared Social 
Value, Public Value 
measures and 
responses to Moderns 
Slavery/Climate 
Emergency.     

Ensures 
consistency 
across Cumbria  

March 2021  Procurement Officer 
and Effective 
Procurement in 
Cumbria (Epic) Group    

Meetings with EpiC members held: 
28/1/20 
24/6/20  
Shared social value statements, 
resources, procured eLearning and 
procurement advice together to 
reduce costs and share resources.   
Next meeting arranged for 14/01/21 
to investigate ways we can give a 
shared message to support local 
communities following Covid 19.    

1.1  Continue to develop 
skills and knowledge 
across the Council to 
allow for innovative 
thinking and practice to 
build social, public value 
outcomes into tendering 
processes through 
workshops for third tier 
managers. Including 
improving skills in 
contract management 
and peer review of 
services.   

Promote 
employment and 
economic 
sustainability  
 
Raise the living 
standards of local 
residents  
 
Promote 
environmental 
sustainability 
 

October 
2020    

Programme Office 
Manager/Procurement 
Officer/Procurement 
Assistant    

Workshops for officers and 
members held between March – 
November 2020 
 
March 2020  
Social Value  
How to include social value in 
tenders 
 
June 2020 
Contract Management including 
the need to complete Contract 
Register and Procurement Pipeline   
(12 attendees) 

P
age 109



Ref  Action  Benefit  Timeframe  Owner  Update March - Nov 2020  

Ensures 
effectiveness of 
outcomes that 
procurement was 
meant to deliver 
have been 
achieved  

 
November 2020 
Getting Ready for Brexit – 
Transition planning for Contract 
Managers (19 attendees) 
 

Make Savings and Deliver Value for Money  

2.0 Report expenditure to 
the Transformation and 
Commercial Board  to 
determine priority 
procurement projects 
and facilitate review and 
renegotiation 
 

Assisting the 
council in 
achieving the cost 
and efficiency 
benefits which 
derive from 
economies of 
scale and 
effective 
procurement 

March 2021  Programme Office 
Manager/Procurement 
Officer  
Transformation and 
Commercial  Board  

Outputs from Services Reviews 
were fed back to the Transformation 
and Commercial Board (March, 
April, and May 2020). This approach 
is being used as part of a 
programme of service reviews to 
look at high cost services and 
identify the best way to commission 
these in the future to ensure 
efficiencies and best value for the 
Council.  Looking currently at how 
we administer, procure and deliver 
bins and how current stock could be 
better used.   
  

2.1 Pursue any appropriate 
opportunities to reduce 
costs or improve 
services that can arise 
from innovative 
procurement, 
commissioning or 
collaboration 

Working with 
others to achieve 
improved value for 
money, derived 
through 
economies of 
scale and 
effective utilisation 

As 
Appropriate  

All buyers of Council 
goods, services and 
works 

This is an ongoing action  
examples include:  

 Consultation on Local 
Government Reorganisation 
(ABC leading the procurement - 
sharing costs between 4 District 
Authorities – shared costs and 

P
age 110



Ref  Action  Benefit  Timeframe  Owner  Update March - Nov 2020  

of shared 
resources.  

best value through economy of 
scale) 
 

 GTAA Review (ABC leading 
the procurement of Gypsy and 
Traveller and Traveling Show 
Person community Review on 
behalf of 4 Cumbria District 
Authorities– shared costs and 
best value through economy of 
scale) 

 Water Contract (Identifying new 
framework to find savings and 
reduce waste water 
inefficiencies through Active 
Water Management service) 

 YPO Framework Associate 
Member (Receipt of dividends 
and savings through bulk 
purchase of goods) 

 Continuous review of 
contracts to identify further 
opportunities for efficiencies 
and savings 

2.2  Ensure lessons learned 
from previous 
procurements are 
captured as part of post 
implementation review 
and fed into planning 
future procurements 

Ensures we don’t 
keep making the 
same mistakes  

As 
appropriate  

Transformation and 
Commercial Board to 
monitor compliance  

This is monitored through closure 
reports going to the Transformation 
Board where outstanding actions 
and/or lessons learned are 
documented.  Exceptions when 
procurements are not meeting; time, 
budget or project objectives are also 
reported and actions to remedy are 
decided.  Ensuring procurement is 

P
age 111



Ref  Action  Benefit  Timeframe  Owner  Update March - Nov 2020  

part of a centralised Programme 
Management Office has provided a 
governance framework to ensure 
lessons are learnt and acted on.  

Knowledgeable and Commercially aware Commissioners/buyers    

3.0 Update ABC Information 
on the Internet for 
suppliers to navigate our 
systems.  Doing 
Business with the 
Council Guide   

Stimulate the local 
economy and 
encourage the 
SMEs 

Aug 2020   Programme Office 
Manager/Procurement 
Officer  
Transformation and 
Commercial  Board 

Doing Business with the Council 
updated.   
 
All relevant tender opportunities are 
now advertised on social media 
messages to ensure a wider 
audience sees the opportunities to 
deliver Council goods, services and 
works.  
 

A key performance indicator is 
used to identify how spend 
can support the local 
economy.  In 2019/20 the 
average of all spend was 
51.48% was with local 
suppliers in Cumbria. The 
average of all spend with local 
supplies to date in 20/21 is 
63%    

3.1 Continuously review and 
update guidance 
documents, procedures 
and codes of practice 

Ensuring a 
consistent and 
uniform approach 
to all procurement 
matters, ensuring 

Ongoing 
Bimonthly 
Procurement 
Pop Up 
Workshops    

Programme Office 
Manager/Procurement 
Officer  
Transformation and 
Commercial  Board 

This is an ongoing action and 
procurement information/templates 
are continually reviewed and 
updated.  Latest guidance included 
preparing for Brexit following end of 

P
age 112



Ref  Action  Benefit  Timeframe  Owner  Update March - Nov 2020  

and make available to all 
relevant employees 

openness and 
clarity with an 
appropriate audit 
trail that is 
resistant to 
challenge. 

transition period.  Workshops are 
advertised to all Council Officers (as 
above 1.1 )  
 
 
   

3.2 Encourage robust 
contract management 
through training and 
development, and use of 
a best practice guide by 
service managers 

Ensuring a 
consistent and 
uniform approach 
to contract 
management, 
ensuring better 
compliance and 
right quality in 
services  

Ongoing  Programme Office 
Manager/Procurement 
Officer  
Transformation and 
Commercial  Board 

Templates for identifying the level of 
contract management required, 
contract check list and contract and 
supplier management plan 
circulated to all third tier managers 
to improve contract management.  
Governments Commercial College 
training has been offered to all 
Officers with contract management 
responsibility  

3.3  
 
 
 

Look to continually 
improve services by 
engaging suppliers in 
feedback post tender to 
identify if lessons can be 
learned to improve 
processes and 
procedures  

SMEs and local 
suppliers are not 
put off from 
engaging in the 
tender process  

Ongoing  Procurement Officer  Since the start of 2020/21 Suppliers 
have had an opportunity to feedback 
comments on the tender process 
Example responses from both 
successful and unsuccessful 
bidders are good: 
“In general our experience of dealing with 
Allerdale for this particular tender, via The 
Chest, was excellent.  We received a 
reasonably detailed feedback letter telling 
us where our bid fell short, and we would 
not hesitate in providing a quotation for 
professional services to Allerdale BC again, 
in the future, should the opportunity arise”. 

Through the feedback, we have 
learned that the provision of the 

P
age 113



Ref  Action  Benefit  Timeframe  Owner  Update March - Nov 2020  

right level of information is 
important.   
 

4.0 
Delivering 
Outstanding 
Local 
Services  

Consolidate our 
approach to market 
through early agreement 
of an annual 
procurement work 
programme signed off by 
every Head of Service. 
 
This will be included as 
part of the Annual 
Governance Statement  

Ensure achieve 
best practice and 
budgets are in 
place and 
appropriate sign 
off of decisions.   

August 2020  Heads of Service 
Governance Group   

Using a programme management 
framework to deliver changes will 
ensure procurements (as a result of 
project) and budgets are better 
aligned.  Service reviews have 
identified commissioning options to 
determine how we can deliver 
services differently in a number of 
high spend areas.  These are used 
to build a business case as key part 
of the planning stage in a project. 
 

4.1 Continue to develop 
relationships with EPiC 
and YPO to maximise 
our purchasing power 
where a local supply 
chain does not exist. 

Economies of 
scale by 
aggregating 
demand.   

Ongoing   Programme Officer 
Manager/ 
Procurement Officer 
/Transformation and 
Commercial Board 

Commissioned an E learning 
service with EPiC Colleagues in 
April 2020 which enabled 
economies of scale for training and 
a consistent approach.  
 
The YPO continues to grow its 
associate membership through 
which we benefit in several ways 
including dividend payments and 
supporting our local economy, the 
framework and its members 
spending in the North West region.  
 

Clear Governance, Compliance & Accountability of Procurement Decisions 
 

 

P
age 114



Ref  Action  Benefit  Timeframe  Owner  Update March - Nov 2020  

5.0 Comply with European 
and UK procurement 
regulations and ensure a 
level playing field exists 
for all prospective 
bidders. 

Reduce the risk of 
legal challenge. 
Equal treatment of 
all prospective 
suppliers 

Ongoing  Programme Officer 
Manager/ 
Procurement Officer 
/Transformation and 
Commercial Board  

Bespoke eLearning procured in April 
2020 in all aspects of Procurement 
and Contract Management 
Legislation and Regulations with 
other Cumbria Districts to ensure 
Procurement and legal Officers are 
aware of all EU and UK regulations 
and legislation and any changes.     
Training undertaken by: 
Procurement Officer, Legal Officer, 
Procurement Assistant and 
Programme Office Manager  

5.1 Comply with Internal 
control through 
challenge and oversight 
from Transformation and 
Commissioning Board 
and twice yearly 
presentations to Elected 
members as part of 
Overview and Scrutiny  

Reduce the risk of 
legal challenge. 
Ensures oversight 
of procurement  

Ongoing  Programme Officer 
Manager/ 
Procurement Officer 
/Transformation and 
Commercial Board  

Governance and progress on 
strategically important contracts and 
procurements are reported to the 
Transformation Programme Board, 
Senior Management Team monthly 
and quarterly to Executive Members 
through the Interim Delivery Plan 
2020/21.  Any deviation in meeting 
either budget, objectives or 
timescales is reported and 
exception reports identify 
alternatives options to ensure the 
value of the procurement is 
achieved. Twice yearly updates at 
Overview & Scrutiny. 

 

P
age 115



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 116



Allerdale Borough Council – Executive Reports and Key Decisions 
 
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 
 

Decision Date decision to be 
made and decision 
maker 

Open/Exempt Portfolio Holder Officer contact details 

Strategic Acquisition 
of Land and Buildings 
in Workington 
 
Key Decision 
 
The proposed 
acquisition of land and 
buildings in Workington 
to support regeneration 
proposals. 

Chief Executive 
 
TBC 

Part exempt 
 
Commercial confidence 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Kevin Kerrigan, 
Programme Director for 
Workington 
 
kevin.kerrigan@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

To consider the Local 
Government Re-
organisation 
 
Non-Key Decision 

Council 
 
23 November 2020 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Mike Johnson Nik Hardy, Head of 
Strategy, Policy and 
Performance 
 
nik.hardy@allerdale.gov
.uk 

Election of a Leader 
 
Non-Key Decision 

Council 
 
23 November 2020 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald 

Sharon Sewell, Head of 
Governance and 
Regulatory Services and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

P
age 117

A
genda Item

 11



Statement of Accounts 
2019/2020 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To present members 
with the Statement of 
Accounts for 
consideration and 
approval 

Audit Committee 
 
24 November 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Finance and Legal 
(Councillor Jim Lister) 

Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

ERP Project Award of 
Contract 
 
Key Decision 

Executive 
 
25 November 2020 

Part exempt 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Finance and Legal 
(Councillor Jim Lister) 

Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Quarter 2 Performance 
Report 2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
A report detailing 
performance against the 
Council Strategy Interim 
Delivery plan 2020/21 at 
the end of Quarter 2 
2020/21. 

Executive 
 
25 November 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

2021/22 Budget 
Strategy & Updated 
Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2020/21 
to 2023/24 

Executive 
 
25 November 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Finance and Legal 
(Councillor Jim Lister) 

Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all

P
age 118



 
Key Decision 
 
To present the updated 
Medium Term Financial 
Plan (MTFP) and outline 
the risks and 
assumptions that will 
underpin preparation of 
the budget for 2021/22 

erdale.gov.uk 

Local Government 
Reorganisation 
 
Key Decision 
 
To consider the 
submission to 
government outlining the 
council’s proposal for 
local government 
reorganisation in 
Cumbria 

Executive 
 
25 November 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Nik Hardy, Head of 
Strategy, Policy and 
Performance 
 
nik.hardy@allerdale.gov
.uk 

Getting Building Fund 
- Submission of an 
Outline Business Case 
 
Non-Key Decision 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking 
 
27 November 2020 
 
 

Part exempt 
 
 

Councillor Mike Johnson Brendan Carlin, Head of 
Programmes and 
Projects 
 
brendan.carlin@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

P
age 119



Quarter 2 Finance 
report and Revised 
budget 2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To inform members of 
the Council’s financial 
performance against 
budget for the period 
April to September 2020 
along with the forecast 
position to 31 March 
2021 and to seek 
approval for the revised 
revenue and capital 
budgets for 2020-21 

Executive  
 
25 November 2020  
 
Council 
 
9 December 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Finance and Legal 
(Councillor Jim Lister) 

Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Portfolio Holder 
updates (non-key) 
 
Non-Key Decision 

Council 
 
9 December 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Treasury Management 
Operations – Mid-year 
review 2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To inform members of 
the Council’s treasury 

Audit Committee  
 
24 November 2020  
 
Council 
 
9 December 2020 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Barry Lennox, Financial 
Services Manager 
 
barry.lennox@allerdale.
gov.uk 

P
age 120



management activities 
during the six month 
period ending 30th 
September 2019 

Treasury Management 
Operation Annual 
Report 2019/20 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To inform members of 
the performance of the 
Council’s treasury 
management activities 
for the year 

Audit Committee  
 
29 September 2020  
 
Council 
 
9 December 2020 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Barry Lennox, Financial 
Services Manager 
 
barry.lennox@allerdale.
gov.uk 

Community 
Governance Review: 
Flimby & Maryport 
 
Key Decision 
 
To receive a report from 
the CGR Working Group 
on the effect of Covid-19 
on the review and to 
seek Council's support 
for the course of action 
taken. 

Council 
 
9 December 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Chief Executive 
 
 

Governance Updates 
 
Non-Key Decision 

Council 
 
9 December 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 

Sharon Sewell, Head of 
Governance and 
Regulatory Services and 
Monitoring Officer 

P
age 121



Fitzgerald)  
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Pay Policy Statement 
 
Key Decision 

Council 
 
9 December 2020 
 
 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald 

Chief Executive 
 
 

Allerdale Investment 
Partnership  - Updated 
Investment Plan and 
Amendments to 
Partnership 
Agreement 
 
Key Decision 

Executive 
 
13 January 2021 

Fully exempt 
 
 

Councillor Mike Johnson Chief Executive 
 
 

Allerdale Borough 
Council Waste Policy 
 
Key Decision 
 
Allerdale Borough 
Council's waste policy 
demonstrates the 
commitment to work 
within the waste 
hierarchy as a priority in 
managing waste across 
the borough. 
 
The authority has a legal 
duty under the 

Executive 
 
13 January 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Environmental Services 
(Councillor Anthony 
Markley) 

Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

P
age 122



Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 to 
collect household waste 
and play a primary role 
for providing recycling 
collection for household 
waste. The act also 
requires the authority to 
arrange a trade waste 
collection for businesses 
if requested to do so. 
 

Scrap Metal Dealers 
Act 2013 
 
Key Decision 
 
Review of fees and 
charges and delegations 

Executive 
 
13 January 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Finance and Legal 
(Councillor Jim Lister) 

Gillian Collinson, Senior 
Licencing And 
Compliance Officer 
 
gillian.collinson@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Contract for the 
supplier(s) to provide 
the testing of hackney 
carriage and private 
hire vehicles 
 
Key Decision 

Executive 
 
13 January 2021 

Fully exempt 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Finance and Legal 
(Councillor Jim Lister) 

Jill Morgan, Legal 
Executive 
 
jill.morgan@allerdale.go
v.uk 

Strategic Acquisition 
of Buildings in 
Maryport 
 
Key Decision 

Executive 
 
13 January 2021 

Part exempt 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 

Graeme Wilson, 
Programme Director for 
Maryport Regeneration 
 
graeme.wilson@allerdal

P
age 123



 
The proposed 
acquisition of buildings 
in Maryport to support 
regeneration proposals. 

Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

e.gov.uk 

Resilient Communities 
Strategy 
 
Key Decision 
 
To consider a Resilient 
Communities Strategy 
setting out the Council's 
approach to supporting 
communities 

Executive 
 
13 January 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Customer Experience 
and Innovation 
(Councillor Alan 
Pitcher), Executive 
Member: Environmental 
Services (Councillor 
Anthony Markley), 
Executive Member: 
Leisure and Tourism 
(Councillor John Cook), 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer, Helen Sant, 
Health Improvement 
Manager 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk, 
helen.sant@allerdale.go
v.uk 

Workington Town 
Centre Supplementary 
Planning Document 
 
Key Decision 
 
This report will consider 
the adoption of the 
Workington Town 
Centre SPD. The 
document will provide 

Executive 
 
13 January 2021 
 
Council 
 
17 February 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Nik Hardy, Head of 
Strategy, Policy and 
Performance 
 
nik.hardy@allerdale.gov
.uk 

P
age 124



further planning 
guidance for 
development in the town 
centre and will become 
a material planning 
consideration when 
deciding planning 
applications. 

Proposed review of 
Licensing Fees and 
Charges 
 
Key Decision 

Council 
 
27 January 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Finance and Legal 
(Councillor Jim Lister) 

Gillian Collinson, Senior 
Licencing And 
Compliance Officer 
 
gillian.collinson@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Calculation of Council 
Tax Base 2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To seek approval of the 
calculation of the council 
tax base for the whole 
district and for each 
parish and town council, 
for 2021-22 

Council 
 
27 January 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Members Allowances 
2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To approve the 
Members Allowances 

Council 
 
27 January 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Lee Jardine, Democratic 
and Support Services 
Officer 
 
lee.jardine@allerdale.go
v.uk 

P
age 125



Scheme for 2020/21. 

Allerdale Economic 
Strategy and 
Workington 
Investment Plan 
 
Key Decision 
 
To consider the 
refreshed Economic 
Strategy for the Borough 
and the Investment Plan 
as part of Workington 
Stronger Towns. 

Executive 
 
24 February 2021 

Fully exempt 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Nik Hardy, Head of 
Strategy, Policy and 
Performance, Kevin 
Kerrigan, Programme 
Director for Workington 
 
nik.hardy@allerdale.gov
.uk, 
kevin.kerrigan@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Quarter 3 Finance 
Report Oct to Dec  
2020 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To inform members of 
the Council’s financial 
performance against 
budget for the period 
April to December 2019 
along with the forecast 
position to 31 March 
2020 

Executive 
 
24 February 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Quarter 3 Performance 
Report 2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 

Executive 
 
24 February 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 

P
age 126



 
A report detailing 
performance against the 
Council Strategy Interim 
Delivery plan 2020/21 at 
the end of Quarter 3 
2020/21. 

Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Allerdale Investment 
Partnership - 
Consideration of 
Future Sites 
 
Key Decision 

Chief Executive, Head of 
Financial Services 
 
February 2021 

Fully exempt 
 
 

Councillor Mike Johnson Kevin Kerrigan, 
Programme Director for 
Workington 
 
kevin.kerrigan@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Council Tax 
Resolution Report 
2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To approve the 
necessary resolutions 
for Council Tax setting in 
accordance with 
Sections 31 – 36 of the 
Local Government 
Finance Act 1992. 

Council 
 
3 March 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Revenue & Capital 
Budget Proposals 
2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 

Executive  
 
24 February 2021  
 
Council 
 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

P
age 127



To seek approval for the 
revenue and capital 
budgets and to present 
the formal advice of the 
Chief Finance Officer on 
the robustness of 
estimates included in the 
budget and the 
adequacy of reserves 
which support the 
Council’s budgetary 
plans 

3 March 2021 

Capital Investment 
Strategy 2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To present the Capital 
Investment Strategy 

Executive  
 
24 February 2021  
 
Council 
 
3 March 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Treasury Management 
Strategy, Annual 
Investment Strategy 
and Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy 
Statement 2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To present the Treasury 
Management Strategy 
Statement, Annual 
Investment Strategy and 

Audit Committee  
 
25 February 2021  
 
Council 
 
3 March 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Barry Lennox, Financial 
Services Manager 
 
barry.lennox@allerdale.
gov.uk 

P
age 128



Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy 
Statement 

Pay Policy Statement 
2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 

Council 
 
3 March 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Kathryn Higgins, HR 
Advisor 
 
kathryn.higgins@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Quarter 4 Performance 
Report 2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
A report detailing 
performance against the 
Council Strategy Interim 
Delivery plan 2020/21 at 
the end of Quarter 4 
2020/21. 

Executive 
 
12 May 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

 
Meetings of the Council, Executive and Scrutiny Committees are open to the public (except when exempt (confidential) items are 
being considered).  It is advisable to check the agenda before attending a meeting, as decision dates may be subject to change.   
Agendas and supporting documents for meetings of the Executive can be found on the Council’s website www.allerdale.gov.uk or 
at Allerdale House, Workington, Cumbria, CA14 3YJ 
 
Further information is available by calling 01900 702502 
 
Any representations as to why a meeting should be open to the public should be made in writing to Democratic Services at the 
above address. 
 
A list of the Executive members can be found at http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11

P
age 129

http://www.allerdale.gov.uk/
http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11


T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 130



  

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020-2021    

Last updated: 17/11/2020 

 

Meeting Date  Items  Further Information Format Council 
Strategy 
Theme 

 

Friday 15 
January 2021 

Progress update 
on climate 
change 

The Committee will consider what progress has been made on the 
climate change agenda over the previous twelve months. 

Report and / or 
presentation to 
Committee 

A cleaner, 
greener Allerdale 
 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Marion Fitzgerald 

     
 

Friday 26 
February 

Development of a 
new Housing 
Strategy 

The current Housing Strategy runs up to 2021.  Work will begin 
later in 2020/21 to start developing a new strategy. 

Report and / or 
presentation to 
Committee 

Thriving towns 
and villages  
Invest to grow  
Resilient 
communities 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Marion Fitzgerald 

Performance 
management 
 

The Committee will consider reports regarding the financial and 
overall performance for quarter 3 to identify any aspects requiring 
detailed consideration. 

Reports and 
presentation to 
Committee 

All Council 
strategy priorities 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 
Portfolio Holder – All Portfolio Holders 

 

Friday 26 
March 

Update and 
review of town 
based 
programmes in 
Workington and 
Maryport 

These major programmes are central to the Interim Delivery Plan. 
The meeting may either have single focus on one programme or a 
short update on each programme. 

Report and / or 
presentation to 
Committee 

Thriving towns 
and villages 
Invest to grow 
Resilient 
communities 
A cleaner, 
greener Allerdale 

Lead Officer – Programme Director Workington;  Programme Director Maryport 
Regeneration 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Mike Johnson 

     
 

P
age 131

A
genda Item

 12



  

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020-2021    

Last updated: 17/11/2020 

Meeting Date  Items  Further Information Format Council 
Strategy 
Theme 

Friday 23 
April  
 

Reports from 
representatives 
to other scrutiny 
bodies 

There are a number of other scrutiny bodies which the Council is 
represented on. Other scrutiny bodies to provide update on their 
work: 
LEP Scrutiny Board 
Cumbria Police and Crime Panel Joint Committee 
Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 
Sellafield sites stakeholder group 

Presentation / 
Committee meeting 
agenda item 

Resilient 
communities  
 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor  

Annual work 
programme 2021-
2022 

Consideration of items for the work programme during the next 
municipal year. 

Committee meeting 
agenda item 

All Council 
strategy priorities 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 

    

 

Regular items for each Committee agenda 
 
Items  

 

Council Strategy 
Priority  

 

Purpose  
 

Lead Officer  
 

Lead Portfolio Holder   
 

Lead Scrutiny Member  
 

Forward Plan All Council Plan priorities To identify any forthcoming items which 
the Committee may consider  

Head of Governance and 
Regulatory Services 

Leader of the Council  Co-Chairs of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Work Programme 
Updates  

All Council Plan priorities To provide the Committee with the 
opportunity to review  its’ own work plan 
for the rest of the year  

Policy Officer (Scrutiny 
and Partnerships) 

Not applicable Co-Chairs of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Task and Finish 
Group Updates  

All Council Plan priorities To receive progress reports from any 
Task and Finish Group 

Policy Officer (Scrutiny 
and Partnerships) 

Not applicable Chair of individual Task and Finish 
Groups 

 

P
age 132



  

Future Waste Management 

  Task and Finish Group 

Report 

November 2020 

 

 

 

 

 
 

“Allerdale – a great place to live, work and visit” 

Page 133

Agenda Item 13



Future Waste Management Task and Finish Group Report October 2020 

Background 

This group was created to consider the options around the delivery of waste 

collection services in Allerdale once it became clear the arrangements resulting from 

the tender exercise were not going to continue. 

The group members were: 

 

 Councillor Iain Greaney 

 Councillor Sally Lansbury 

 Councillor Elaine Lynch 

 Councillor Alan Tyson 

 

Councillor Alan Pitcher was also a member of the group to the point at which he 

joined the Executive (March 2020).  

Arrangements for developing the new company 

The Executive meeting held 2 December 2019 approved the business case to 

develop a new waste company, limited by shares, which would be 100% owned by 

Allerdale Borough Council. 

  

The company would have a sole director, transferring via TUPE from the council to 

the new company.  Council officers has made a visit to Blackpool Council, which 

brought their service in-house the previous summer, which highlighted that their 

company included non-executive directors and this council would adopt the same 

approach. 

 

The Council agreed to establish a shareholder committee and to create this 

committee a report was presented to Executive on 18 March 2020. 

 

The new company board would create an annual business plan to present to the 

shareholder committee which will in turn be submitted to the Council though at the 

time of writing the detail of how this will work is still to be determined. 

Page 134



Future Waste Management Task and Finish Group Report October 2020 

The Group felt this stakeholder committee ought to include the potential for 

proportionate representation across the Council membership and makes this 

recommendation. 

The workforce  

The operator then running the service distributed a newsletter from the Council to the 

workforce in early January 2020. Council staff then met with that operator and unions 

on 17 January. Council staff spoke to all staff affected on 23 January (not including 

agency staff) then held one-to-one sessions with staff between 27-30 January. 

Agency staff would initially transfer; some agency staff may become employed once 

the service need has been reviewed, which is due in early autumn 2020. 

For health and safety reasons, all staff would need to have an induction from the 

new company and this would be delivered over the weekend before operations 

begin. 

The group questioned whether current managers working for the operator will 

transfer to the new company however under TUPE rules this would only become 

certain who would actually transfer by them attending the workplace on day one, 

though all the indications were that they would. 

One issue had been that a member of the company needed to hold a CPC 

(competent persons) licence. Due to potential transfer of staff and a new 

appointment, it was reported that the company would potentially have two licence 

holders. 

The service  

The Whitespace technology would be fitted to vehicles on 4/5 April. The asset 

register was received and discussions took place about what would be required by 

the new company. 

Branding would be based on the Allerdale Borough Council style and colours so a 

link is established but it is not the same; branded staff clothing (PPE) was being 

Page 135



Future Waste Management Task and Finish Group Report October 2020 

prepared.  

The public ought not to notice any change in service given the 'lift and shift' 

approach. Any changes would be in autumn 2020. 

The option to charge for replacement bins was approved by Executive in February 

2020. Charging for garden waste was not being pursued at the point of that decision. 

Trade Waste Fees and Charges needed to be reviewed and all 1,700 customers 

were written to outlining their new charges; at the time of reporting 8 customers had 

been lost as a result, and it was recognised that more might be lost when bills were 

sent out in July. It was noted that some businesses would prefer to use the Council's 

service on efficiency grounds but are prevented by their parent organisations. 

The issue with the quality of the newly purchased blue bins, including cracking 

caused by cold weather, was being looked at and customers would not be charged 

for these faults. 

The first six months of Allerdale Waste Services 

With the disruption to meetings resulting from the pandemic, the group was not 

meeting when the company began operating, however in October the group met with 

the Managing Director of Allerdale Waste Services and the Assistant Business 

Development Manager for the Council to explore how the first six months had gone 

to conclude the business of the group. 

These are the main points since operations began: 

 There are now three directors of the company 

 The staff team received a lot of strong public support for their work during 

lockdown as essential service key workers 

 The management team believes they have an excellent staff team right 

across the organisation 

The new company has not experienced the issues seen twelve months previously as 

the figures below show. There are approximately 48,000 households to collect from 

in the Allerdale area, averaging 3-4 lifts per household which includes weekly 

Page 136



Future Waste Management Task and Finish Group Report October 2020 

residential collections, fortnightly co-mingled recycling, fortnightly garden waste, and 

monthly paper/card collections. The variation in lift numbers is related to the 

reintroduction of garden waste collections and increased requirements for this 

service over the summer. Missed bins are usually either positioned in the wrong 

place or inaccessible and when reported are collected within 48 hours. While there is 

a very small percentage of regularly missed bins (the ‘failed’ column in the chart 

below), these are addressed with focused effort to reduce these to zero.  

MONTH LIFTS MISSED FAILED % RATE 

April 375,000 303 0 99.2 

May 413,000 497 24 99.88 

June 448,000 437 3 99.9 

July 483,000 482 9 99.9 

August 414,000 351 11 99.91 

September 475,000 344 12 99.93 

 

Recommendations 

The Task and Finish Group makes the following recommendations –  

1. That the Council should consider that the stakeholder committee for Allerdale 

Waste Services ought to be proportionally representative across the Council 

membership. 

2. That all Councillors should be able to access an annual update presentation 

and meeting delivered by one of the Stakeholder Committee members.   

3. That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee accepts this report from the Task 

and Finish Group and considers the need for a future scrutiny process or 

group to oversee the service review process from autumn 2020.  

 

Page 137



Future Waste Management Task and Finish Group Report October 2020 

 

Conclusion 

The Group appreciated the overview of the inception and introduction of Allerdale 

Waste Services provided at the final meeting and was both satisfied with work being 

done and impressed with commitment and dedication of the staff involved. 

The Group noted that the work of the first six months is due for review in autumn 

2020, with a view to delivering the savings originally intended as part of reshaping 

the services, but considers that with the publication of this report the work of the 

group is now complete.  

Page 138



Document is Restricted

Page 139

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	8 Quarter 2 Performance Report 2020/21
	Appendix A for Quarter 2 Performance Report 2020/21, 25/11/2020 Executive

	9 Quarter 2 Finance Report & Revised Budget 2020-21
	Appendix A - Projected Outturn by Portfolio, 25/11/2020 Executive
	Appendix B - Capital Expenditure v Budget -Sept 2020, 25/11/2020 Executive
	Appendix C - Proposed Revised Capital Budget 2020-21 to 2022-23, 25/11/2020 Executive
	Appendix D - Revised Position on Earmarked Reserves, 25/11/2020 Executive
	Appendix E - Summary of Treasury Management Activity, 25/11/2020 Executive
	Budget Strategy 2021-22 final, 25/11/2020 Executive

	10 Strategic Commissioning and Procurement Strategy action plan
	Appendix 1 for Strategic Commissioning and Procurement Strategy action plan

	11 Forward Plan
	12 Work Programme 2020/21
	13 Task and Finish Group Updates
	Procurement TFG Report-final corrected version


